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CORPORATE INFORMATION
RREH

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
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Mr. CHING Chi Fai (Chairman)
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Mr. LIU Zigang
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Mr. KEUNG Kwok Hung
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CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER AND

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. KEUNG Kwok Hung cra

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking
Corporation Limited

Hang Seng Bank Limited
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Suntera (Cayman) Limited
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P.O. Box 1586, Gardenia Court, Camana Bay
Grand Cayman, KY1-1100

Cayman Islands

BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR IN

THE HONG KONG SPECIAL ADMINISTRATIVE
REGION OF THE PEOPLE’S REPUBLIC OF CHINA

(THE “PRC")("HONG KONG")
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Investors’ enquiries:
17M Floor
Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai
Hong Kong

Transfer of shares:

Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor
Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai
Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE
P.O. Box 309GT

Ugland House

South Church Street

George Town, Grand Cayman
Cayman Islands

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE
OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Unit D3, 8/F, TML Tower

No. 3 Hoi Shing Road

Tsuen Wan, New Territories

Hong Kong
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Bainikeng, Pinghu, Longgang
Shenzhen, the PRC

WEBSITE
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HIGHLIGHTS FOR THE YEAR 2020

—EERE

Revenue decreased 33.8% to approximately HK$1,353.1 million
(2019: approximately HK$2,043.1 million).

Gross profit decreased 26.8% to approximately HK$363.5
million (2019: approximately HK$496.3 million).

Gross profit margin increased 2.6 percentage points to 26.9%
(2019: 24.3%).

Operating profit is approximately HK$102.2 million (2019:
approximately HK$126.4 million) and the profit attributable to
owners of the Company is approximately HK$79.0 million
(2019: approximately HK$97.9 million).

A proposed final dividend in respect of the year ended 31
December 2020 of HK1.5 cents per share of the Company (the
“Share”) was recommended, together with the interim dividend
of HK1.0 cent per Share, representing a total dividend of HK2.5
cents per Share (2019: HK4.5 cents per Share) and the annual
dividend payout ratio of 23.1% (2019: 33.3%).
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CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY
TFHMBERE

Years ended 31 December
BZ+-A=t+—-HLEE
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
—E-RF ZE+tF ZE-N\F ZE-NF —EZEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAET FET FET TRET
Revenue ION 1,698,005 1,863,559 2,052,708 2,043,095 1,353,099
Profit before income tax KEHFTERIETEF 191,439 143,248 130,931 127,102 101,537
Income tax expenses FTiEHAY (42,355) (34,408) (34,850) (35,022) (26,937)
Profit for the year FEEF 149,084 108,840 96,081 92,080 74,600
CONSOLIDATED ASSETS, EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
HREEE RERKAE
As at 31 December
Rt+=B=+-8
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
“E-AF Bt ZF-N\F ZT-NF CZBIEF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FAET FAET FiET THET
ASSETS BE

Non-current assets EREEE 331,064 380,180 467,444 569,549 610,755
Current assets TEEE 1,322,931 1,269,650 1,237,607 1,269,396 1,192,680
Total assets BEQE 1,653,995 1,649,830 1,705,051 1,838,945 1,803,435

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES ExkEE
Total equity B 975,036 1,060,440 1,090,530 1,130,906 1,192,334
Non-current liabilities ErRHAE 2,612 2,792 10,339 17,905 24,153
Current liabilities MEEE 676,347 586,598 604,182 690,134 586,948
Total liabilities B (5 678,959 589,390 614,521 708,039 611,101
Total equity and liabilities BRERXNEE 1,653,995 1,649,830 1,705,051 1,838,945 1,803,435
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KEY SHAREHOLDER VALUE INDICES
TERREERER
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of Ming Fai International Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”), | am
pleased to present the audited annual results of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2020.

According to the UNWTO World Tourism Barometer (Update January
2021), tourism suffered the greatest crisis on record in 2020
following an unprecedented health, social and economic emergency
amid the outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic. International tourist
arrivals (overnight visitors) plunged by 74% in 2020 over the previous
year due to widespread travel restrictions and a massive drop in
demand.

Beyond the influence of COVID-19 pandemic, the China-U.S. trade
war and the rising public awareness on environmental protection
with stringent related laws and regulation over the world, which
brought a decrease to the Group’s performance. The Group recorded
an overall revenue of approximately HK$1,353.1 million for the year
ended 31 December 2020, a 33.8% year-on-year decrease compared
to 2019 of approximately HK$2,043.1 million, in which the
hospitality supplies business, operating supplies and equipment
("OS&E") business and health care and hygienic products business
contributed approximately HK$820.9 million, HK$112.9 million and
HK$419.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2020 (for the year
ended 31 December 2019: approximately HK$1,743.4 million,
HK$168.4 million and HK$131.2 million), respectively.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
TEHES (&)

Gross profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 was
approximately HK$363.5 million (for the year ended 31 December
2019: approximately HK$496.3 million), representing a 26.8%
decrease compared with 2019. The gross profit margin of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2020 increased 2.6 percentage
points to 26.9% (for the year ended 31 December 2019: 24.3%).
Profit attributable to owners of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2020 stood at approximately HK$79.0 million (for the year
ended 31 December 2019: approximately HK$97.9 million), a 19.3%
decrease compared with 2019.

The Group has been producing disposable infection control products
such as medical equipment covers, and has switched some of the
production lines in early 2020 to produce alcoholic instant hand
sanitizers under the brands “Pasion” and “everybody LABO"” and
3-ply disposable face masks under the brands “Pasion” and “"MING
FAI", to respond to our community as part of our corporate social
responsibilities and the increasing demand of health care and
hygienic products in the markets driven by the COVID-19 pandemic.
“Pasion” has been awarded by PCCW Media Limited the best brand
of anti-bacterial products under Yellow Pages Award 2020-21.

Ming Fai International Holdings Limited e Annual Report 2020
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Looking ahead, 2021 will continue to be a year full of uncertainties.
With the ongoing and repeated resurgence of COVID-19 pandemic
everywhere, which will continuously influence the travel and tourism,
hospitality and aviation industries, the restlessness tension between
China and U.S. and the international geopolitical conflicts, these
factors will expect to bring negative impact on the Group's hospitality
supplies business and OS&E business.

To mitigate the negative impact resulted in the COVID-19 pandemic
and a series of geopolitical events, the Group will continue to put
great efforts on exploring new business markets and enhancing cost
efficiencies by diversification of production bases. We will try our
best to seize new business opportunities and diversify the product
portfolio along with prudent and flexible business strategies as a way
to strengthen the Group’s performance in the coming year.

On behalf of the Board, | am sincerely grateful to all Shareholders,
business partners and our dedicated, cautious, and conscientious
management and employees for their continued loyalty,
professionalism, and contributions to the Group.

CHING Chi Fai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 March 2021
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEBN®mRDM

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Key Financial Highlights

Set out below are the consolidated key financial highlights of the
Group:

Bt 75 [0 iR

FTEMBRRE

UNTEINAEEGEETRHHRE

Year ended 31 December

BE+T-A=+—HLEFE

2020 2019 Change
—E-EE  —ZE-AF 23
HK$ million HK$ million %
BEET BEATT Bkt
Revenue WA 1,353.1 2,043.1 (33.8)%
Gross Profit E F 363.5 496.3 (26.8)%
Profit attributable to owners of the KABIHEA A
Company JE& 154 7 79.0 97.9 (19.3)%
Basic earnings per Share attributable to KANBER AEG TR
owners of the Company (HK cents) EARBF GEM) 10.8 13.5 (20.0)%
Diluted earnings per Share attributable to AR B#H A AERTR
owners of the Company (HK cents) BERAR CENW) 10.8 13.4 (19.4)%
Dividend per Share (HK cents) BRRE CEWL) 2.5 4.5 (44.4)%
Revenue WA
For the year ended 31 December 2020, the total revenue of the BE_ZT_EF+_A=+—HIFE K
Group recorded a decrease of 33.8% to approximately HK$1,353.1 E@ﬂﬁ%]\ﬁ‘ SEIIE33.8% £491,353.18 8
million compared with approximately HK$2,043.1 million for the year BT (BE-_ZF—-AF+-A= ‘|’ = JJ:E
ended 31 December 2019. For the year ended 31 December 2020, X :#J2,083.18&ET)  BE_T_FTF
the revenues of the hospitality supplies business, OS&E business and Jr —A=+—BILFE BEHEMES -

health care and hygienic products business were approximately
HK$820.9 million, HK$112.9 million and HK$419.3 million (for the
year ended 31 December 2019: approximately HK$1,743.4 million,
HK$168.4 million and HK$131.2 million) respectively, which
represented 60.7%, 8.3% and 31.0% (for the year ended 31
December 2019: 85.3%, 8.3% and 6.4%) of the Group’s total
revenue respectively.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

The Group’s gross profit for the year ended 31 December 2020
decreased 26.8% to approximately HK$363.5 million, compared with
approximately HK$496.3 million for the year ended 31 December
2019. Gross profit margin increased 2.6 percentage points to 26.9%
from 24.3% as compared with the prior year, benefiting from the
change of product mix, adopting cost control policies and various
governmental cost reduction policies.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Profit attributable to owners of the Company

Profit attributable to owners of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2020 was approximately HK$79.0 million (for the year
ended 31 December 2019: approximately HK$97.9 million).

Other income and cost reduction

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group has received
various governmental subsidies in the following regions. They are
recognised either as other income or cost reduction as reflected in
relevant expenses.

EEERWR DN (&)

RATER ABGRF

HE-_Z-_ZFSF_A=+—-HIEFE" &K
RAEAANEBEENN79.08EET (BE
—E-NFE+ZRA=1T—HLEFE: 4979
BEET) °

A RA R A BZE
BE-F-FFT-ASt-ALEE A
S5 B 0 A T R 25 X S 6 5
BERRARMRARAARE - L BRI
LRSI

Year ended

Region 31 December 2020
th & BE-Z_ZHF
TZA=T—HLEE

HK$ million

BEEBRL

The PRC H 25.0
Hong Kong a5 5.4
Other regions H b it [ 1.1
Total =) 31.5

In addition, during the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
recorded an item of other income of approximately HK$8.2 million
on the resulting gain and realisation of exchange reserve upon
dissolution of a subsidiary.

N REEZZ-ZF+-_A=+—HL
FER ASEHSEBH —HARNBARZ
WHREFRELRENS2EEB L2 —HE
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BRI R
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
kk}i@‘j’ Hﬂ;ﬂ&/\j{ﬁ— (n,\)

Earnings per Share

Basic and diluted earnings per Share attributable to owners of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2020 were HK10.8 cents
and HK10.8 cents respectively (for the year ended 31 December
2019: HK13.5 cents and HK13.4 cents).

Final dividend

The Board has resolved to propose a final dividend of HK1.5 cents
per Share for the year ended 31 December 2020 (for the year ended
31 December 2019: HK3.0 cents per Share). A sum of the interim
and final dividends is expected to be HK2.5 cents per Share for the
year ended 31 December 2020 (for the year ended 31 December
2019: HK4.5 cents per Share). The proposed final dividend is subject
to approval at the annual general meeting to be held on 26 May
2021 ("AGM").

Liquidity and financial resources

The Group has always pursued a prudent treasury management
policy and actively manages its liquidity position with standby
banking facilities to cope with daily operation and potential capital
demands for future development.

Cash and cash equivalents

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents
amounted to approximately HK$393.0 million (as at 31 December
2019: approximately HK$348.8 million).

Net assets

The Group’s net assets as at 31 December 2020 were approximately
HK$1,192.3 million (as at 31 December 2019: approximately
HK$1,130.9 million).

Ming Fai International Holdings Limited e Annual Report 2020
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
EEEBwWR DT (E)

Borrowings =4
The Group’s borrowing structure and maturity profile as at 31 ZAKER_ZT_TF+_A=+—HKRK=
December 2020 and as at 31 December 2019 are as follows: E-NF+A=tT-BZEE&AEBERIH
R :
Borrowing structure: EEEE
2020 2019
—p-2F e
Effective Effective
interest rate  HK$ million interest rate HK$ million
BBRAR BEER BHA = BEAT
Secured bank borrowings Floating rate of 8.3 Floating rate of 14.0
with repayable on 1.7% per annum over 1.7% per annum over
demand clauses 1-month Hong Kong Inter-bank 1-month HIBOR
Offered Rate (“HIBOR")
BERREREBRIGEN —EAEBRITEXFER —EAEBRITRAERFEEX
ZEEMRITEE ((EBRTEAXKFEER]) INFFIEN.7% 2 )28 F) %
MERE1LI%ZZBFE
Floating rate of the higher of 10.6  Floating rate of the higher of 12.6
1.7% per annum over 1.7% per annum over
1-month HIBOR or 1-month HIBOR or
the cost to the bank of the cost to the bank of
funding the borrowing funding the borrowing
—EAEBRITEARKFEER —EAEBRITAERFEEX
I R #£1.7% INEFIE1.7%
RRTH/OBERL 2BEE RPTENBREKNRZBHE
ZFEBR = oY
Floating rate ranging from 63.5 Floating rate of 19.1
1.5%-1.7%per annum over 1.7% per annum over
1-month London Inter-bank 1-month LIBOR
Offered Rate (“LIBOR")
—ERmBRITREFEE —EAARBERITRERFEE
((RBRTEAXFEER]) INFFIEN.7% 2 2B F) %
mAFEFNE15%E1.7%
ZEEBRE
Floating rate of the higher of 34.1  Floating rate of the higher of 19.1
1.7% per annum over 1.7% per annum over
1-month LIBOR or 1-month LIBOR or
the cost to the bank of the cost to the bank of
funding the borrowing funding the borrowing
—EARBARTEXFEE —EARBERITREXFEE
o F %£1.7% IEFIET.7%
RJTHRARERF 2B E RPTENBEKNRZBEE
ZEBAE 2 EHHE
Secured bank borrowings Fixed rates ranging from 1.4 Fixed rates ranging from 0.7
without repayable on 1.4%-2.4% per annum 1.3%-1.4% per annum
demand clause
b B4R B SRR RN NFENE14%E2.4% NFENE13%E.4%
ZEEMRITEE ZEER & Z BT F| &
Secured other borrowings Fixed rates ranging from 3.2 Fixed rate of 1.16% 0.9
without repayable on 1.38% - 2.16% per annum per annum
demand clause
3 4% B SKAE R RN NFFERE1.38%F2.16% FFIE1.16% 2 B E Fi =
ZEEREMEE Z B EF =
121.1 66.4
IR IERBRAR o —T_TFFIR
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
EEEBw@wmE D (K)

Maturity profile: FIRGELR -

The repayment terms of the borrowings without taking into consideration  fEWWE RIZEREEKRKRINTE T  £EE
the effect of repayable on demand clauses are as followings: RERET ¢

2020 2019
—EB-E2H —TNEF
HK$ million HK$ million
BEABR BEETT
Within 1 year M1ER 55.3 17.5
Between 1 and 2 years 1229 7 M 25.4 15.8
Between 2 and 5 years 2ESF 7 38.8 31.2
Over 5 years S5F A E 1.6 1.9
121.1 66.4

Currency denomination: EEEE -
2020 2019
—E-E2H —TNEF
HK$ million HK$ million
BEABR BEETT
HK$ BT 18.9 26.6
us$ ETT 97.6 38.2
JPY 4.6 1.6
121.1 66.4

]_j#é

Details of the borrowings are set out in Note 21 to the consolidated &

financial statements.

BN A MWK E21
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Charges on Group assets

Except for bank and other borrowings of approximately HK$4.6
million as at 31 December 2020 (as at 31 December 2019:
approximately HK$1.6 million), which were secured by personal
guarantee of a non-controlling interest of the Group, other bank
borrowings were secured by certain property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets.

The carrying amounts of assets pledged as security for borrowings
are as follows:

EEENRmE DN (E)

EEEEHRHT

B —_E_EF+_A=+—H2Z2RTEE
HEENIeEEBT(RZE—NF+=A
—+t—H #e6BEEBIL) UNAEEIEEFR
B BABERERTIN - HMRITEED
NETUE BERSBARFTREEEE
A o

MEEZEEMEEZREENT

2020 2019
. —TNF
HK$ million HK$ million
BEEBRX BEABT
Property, plant and equipment Y ERN 24.6 27.7
Right-of-use assets FREEE 30.2 31.2
54.8 58.9
Gearing ratio BEEBEHE

The gearing ratio was calculated as net debt (borrowings less cash
and cash equivalents) divided by total equity. The gearing ratio was
not applicable to the Group as at 31 December 2020 and as at 31
December 2019.

Foreign currency exposure

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various
currency exposures, primarily with respect to Renminbi (“RMB"). The
Group currently does not deploy a foreign currency hedging policy.

The Group primarily sourced its raw materials in the PRC. The related
currency exposure with respect to RMB is managed through
increasing revenue denominated in the same currency.

Capital commitments and contingent liabilities

Details of the capital commitments is set out in Note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements. The Group has no material
contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2020.

BEAGBHENRFER (EEHNKRRES R
ReEEEE)BRUANBERAE R 2T =
ZF+-_A=F+—HBERRZ=ZZE—-NLF+=A
=+—H AEABLEINEARAES -

S EE [l B2

AEBEEHAARE ((ARE]) AENER
SN KR o AN SR8 B AU I ) TE S S I
5 o

AEEBFTZRFEREERMM - BEEAR
k2 EBRRYEBIEINAEREBHEZ
WAETTER -

EXREERIAREE

BERFAEFBHNEETERERM TS - R
—E-EF+_A=+—H AEEHEES
KK RAE -

RERRZERARAR o —FT -_TFFH
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
EEEBS@wmE DM (E)

BUSINESS REVIEW

2020 has been a year of extraordinary challenges because of the
COVID-19 pandemic, which has altered the lives of billions of people,
from social distancing measures and suspending travels to working
from home, the global economy was contracted. Affected by these
macroeconomic headwinds, the Group’s business recorded a result of
decline during the year ended 31 December 2020.

Hospitality Supplies Business

Travel and tourism is the most affected sector under the influence of
COVID-19 pandemic with travel restrictions, which caused the
international tourists’ arrivals fell greatly in 2020. Furthermore,
China-U.S. tensions, low consumer confidence and global struggle to
contain the COVID-19 pandemic, as well as the stringent laws and
regulations due to the increasing public environmental awareness,
the Group’s hospitality supplies business faced a challenging year.

The revenue of the Group’s hospitality supplies business for the year
ended 31 December 2020 decreased 52.9% to approximately
HK$820.9 million (for the year ended 31 December 2019:
approximately HK$1,743.4 million), which represented 60.7% (for
the year ended 31 December 2019: 85.3%) of the Group’s total
revenue. Gross profit from the hospitality supplies business decreased
57.2% to approximately HK$182.7 million for the year ended 31
December 2020 (for the year ended 31 December 2019:
approximately HK$426.9 million). The segment’s gross profit margin
decreased 2.2 percentage points to 22.3%, compared with 24.5%
for the year ended 31 December 2019.

Hospitality supplies business revenues from the PRC and Hong Kong
for the year ended 31 December 2020 were approximately HK$390.2
million and HK$126.8 million (for the year ended 31 December 2019:
approximately HK$614.1 million and HK$300.2 million) respectively,
representing 47.5% and 15.4% (for the year ended 31 December
2019: 35.2% and 17.2%) of the total hospitality supplies business
segment revenue respectively. Hospitality supplies business revenues
for the year ended 31 December 2020 from the North America,
Europe, other Asia Pacific regions and Australia were approximately
HK$104.6 million, HK$74.5 million, HK$110.2 million and HK$12.5
million (for the year ended 31 December 2019: approximately
HK$268.1 million, HK$232.3 million, HK$285.3 million and HK$39.6
million) respectively, accounted for 12.7%, 9.1%, 13.4% and 1.5%
(for the year ended 31 December 2019: 15.4%, 13.3%, 16.4% and
2.3%) of the total hospitality supplies business segment revenue
respectively.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Hospitality supplies business segment revenue by
geographical location

2020
k=== =3 3

® The PRC A

® Hong Kong #Hi&

©® North America 4t3
[

Europe BuM

Operating Supplies and Equipment Business

The revenue from the Group’s OS&E business was approximately
HK$112.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2020, indicated a
32.9% decrease as compare with approximately HK$168.4 million for
the year ended 31 December 2019, and contributing 8.3% (for the
year ended 31 December 2019: 8.3%) to the Group’s total revenue.
Gross profit from the OS&E business decreased 25.5% to
approximately HK$30.0 million for the year ended 31 December
2020 (for the year ended 31 December 2019: approximately HK$40.3
million). The segment’s gross profit margin increased 2.7 percentage
points to 26.6% for the year ended 31 December 2020 (for the year
ended 31 December 2019: 23.9%).

For the year ended 31 December 2020, OS&E business revenues from
the PRC and other markets were approximately HK$71.9 million and
HK$41.0 million (for the year ended 31 December 2019:
approximately HK$102.1 million and HK$66.3 million) respectively,
representing 63.6% and 36.4% (for the year ended 31 December
2019: 60.6% and 39.4%) of the total OS&E business segment
revenue respectively.

EEENRmE DN (E)

BHBES I 2 EEHRERER D E
A

0.2%

2019
=
Australia JBM
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
kk}i@‘j’ Hﬂ;ﬂ&r\$ﬁ (n,\)

OS&E business segment revenue by geographical
location

36.4%

63.6%

2020
—EZEF

® The PRC A

The re-order business from the new and long-term customers will
continue to be the key focus of the Group’s OS&E business. The
Group will attempt to expand its customer base while enhancing the
existing cooperative relationship with the long-term customers to
improve its OS&E business.

Health Care and Hygienic Products Business

The Group has been producing the disposable infection control
products and heath care products. Health care and hygienic products,
such as alcoholic instant hand sanitizers under the brands “Pasion”
and “everybody LABO"; as well as the 3-ply disposable face masks
under the brands “Pasion” and “MING FAI"” were produced since the
first quarter of 2020 due to the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic and
for the purpose of taking part the corporate social responsibilities.
Beyond that, the Group further developed various health care and
hygienic products under the brand “Pasion”, including all-purpose
disinfectant sprays, alcoholic disinfectant hand sprays, alcoholic
disinfectant wet wipes and anti-epidemic travel kits, to broaden its
product portfolio. All of these products passed the tests by SGS Hong
Kong Limited, and the 3-ply disposable face masks under brand
“Pasion” also obtained “Hong Kong Q-Mark” issued by Hong Kong
Q-Mark Council, which align with our high standard of products
quality.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

The revenue of the Group’s health care and hygienic products
business for the year ended 31 December 2020 recorded
approximately HK$419.3 million (for the year ended 31 December
2019: approximately HK$131.2 million), which contributed 31.0%
(for the year ended 31 December 2019: 6.4%) to the Group's total
revenue and partially compensated the losses from the other two
business segments of the Group during the year ended 31 December
2020. Gross profit from the health care and hygienic products
business was approximately HK$147.2 million for the year ended 31
December 2020 (for the year ended 31 December 2019:
approximately HK$25.6 million). The segment’s gross profit margin
was 35.1% for the year ended 31 December 2020 (for the year
ended 31 December 2019: 19.5%).

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the revenues of health care
and hygienic products business from the North America, Hong Kong
and other markets were approximately HK$147.4 million, HK$86.1
million and HK$185.8 million (for the year ended 31 December 2019:
approximately HK$124.9 million, HK$0.3 million and HK$6.0 million)
respectively, representing 35.2%, 20.5% and 44.3% (for the year
ended 31 December 2019: 95.2%, 0.2% and 4.6%) of the total
health care and hygienic products business segment revenue
respectively.

Health care and hygienic products business segment
revenue by geographical location

2020
—EEF
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
kk}iﬁ‘j’ HHH&/_\'T{).T— (n,\)

OUTLOOK

Uncertainties and concerns in the global markets

Although 2021 is hoped to be a year of recovery, uncertainties and
concerns were arisen in the global markets, including the unknown
timing of borders re-opening, period of travel restrictions, safety
and effectiveness of the COVID-19 vaccines, tensions between China
and U.S., the continuous depression among the travel and tourism
related industries and the potential economic recessions. All the
above-mentioned uncertainties will continue to bring negative effects
to the Group’s hospitality supplies business and OS&E business.

Moreover, the saturated supply and fierce competition of the
disinfectant products in the global markets in 2021 will lead to the
substantial drop of the Group’s health care and hygienic products
business revenue as compared with 2020.

It is unforeseeable that the subsidies and cost reduction policies
benefited by the Group in previous year will be continued by
governments in different regions. The Group will face a more
challenging year in 2021. The Group will closely monitor the possible
risks, including those brought by the COVID-19 pandemic, while
assessing the Group's financial performance and operations.

Tightening environmental protection laws and
regulations

The Group’s hospitality supplies business will continuously be
influenced by the tightening environmental protection laws and
regulations, specifically in Europe and the PRC. The PRC has replaced
the U.S. to become the largest carbon dioxide emitter in the world,
China has set a goal to see carbon dioxide emission peak by 2030
and realise carbon neutrality by 2060. More cities in the PRC have
been adjusting their regulations and practicing greener development.
Our hotel customers in the PRC will have to comply with those
environmental protection policies by restricting provision of
single-disposable items, such as toothbrushes and slippers.

Product research and development

Even though the introduction of COVID-19 vaccines will ease the
COVID-19 pandemic and the demand of the disinfectant products
will gradually decrease, the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic has
changed the public awareness of health care and personal hygiene,
and generated a market demand for health care and hygienic
products. The Group will continue to grasp the new business
opportunities brought by the COVID-19 pandemic and extend the
product portfolio under “Pasion” brand, such as shampoo bars,
portable paper hand soaps, portable facial oil blotting papers, lip
balms, hand creams, sunscreens, body wash and fragrance diffusers.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

On the other hand, the Group will continue to input resources and
efforts on research and development for environmental-friendly
hospitality supplies products, for example, dispensers, shampoo bars,
conditioner bars, body wash bars and lotion bars, to fit the respective
needs of hotels in different regions in order to respond the escalating
awareness of the worldwide environmental protection.

Competitiveness enhancement and margin
improvement

Developing our production base in Cambodia will continue to be our
strategy to minimise our production costs, ease the impacts brought
by the China-U.S. trade war, as well as increase manufacturing
efficiencies and wisely use our resources to enhance the Group's
competitiveness. Furthermore, the Group will strengthen the financial
position and improve the margins by applying a series of prudent and
flexible policies and strategies on working capital management,
business development and costs control.

New business opportunities exploration

The Group will continue to capitalise business opportunities within
and beyond our long-term customers and partners, and pay close
attention on potential new business trends and strategies to ensure
the Group’s business development. The Group will put more effort
on expanding the market shares and product portfolio of our
businesses in different regions to maintain a diversified business
operation.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The total number of employees of the Group, including short-term
contract workers, was approximately 4,300 as at 31 December 2020.
The employee benefit expenses including Directors’ emoluments were
approximately HK$341.2 million for the year ended 31 December
2020. The remuneration of employees (including the Directors) of the
Group are generally structured by reference to market terms and
individual merits, which is reviewed on a regular basis. The Group
also provides various other benefits to designated staff, including
discretionary bonus, social insurance or medical insurance, share
option scheme, share award scheme, continuing education and
training programmes. The Group also launched key performance
indicators assessment scheme and commendation annual award
scheme to boost individual performance and operational efficiency.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

SEENeGREBABZERFE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. CHING Chi Fai, aged 59, is an Executive Director and Chairman
of the Company since 2007. He is the chairman of the Nomination
Committee, the Executive Committee and the Investment Committee
of the Company, a member of the Remuneration Committee of the
Company and a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company.
Mr. CHING Chi Fai is also a founder of the Group. He has been
responsible for sales and marketing, production of the products and
the formulation of the overall corporate direction and business
strategies of the Group. Mr. CHING Chi Fai has over 30 years of
experience in the hospitality supplies industry. Mr. CHING Chi Keung
is a brother of Mr. CHING Chi Fai and Mr. CHING Tsun Wabh is the
son of Mr. CHING Chi Fai.

Mr. CHING Chi Keung, aged 56, is an Executive Director of the
Company since 2007. He is a member of the Executive Committee of
the Company and a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company.
Mr. CHING Chi Keung joined the Group with the founders. He has
been responsible for human resources and administrative matters of
the Group. Mr. CHING Chi Keung has over 30 years of experience in
the hospitality supplies industry. Mr. CHING Chi Fai is a brother of
Mr. CHING Chi Keung and Mr. CHING Tsun Wah is a nephew of
Mr. CHING Chi Keung.

Mr. LIU Zigang, aged 55, is an Executive Director of the Company
since 2007. He is a member of the Executive Committee of the
Company and a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company.
Mr. LIU has been responsible for sales and marketing since he joined
the Group in May 1995. He oversees direct sales in the Greater China
Region as well as the Southeast Asia markets. Mr. LIU has over 20
years of experience in the hospitality supplies industry. He obtained a
Master degree of Business Administration in Centenary College of
New Jersey, USA in 2011. Mr. LIU also holds a diploma from
Shenzhen University, the PRC and completed a course on
International Business Management of Tsinghua University organised
by Yangtze Delta Region Institute of Tsinghua University, the PRC.

Mr. CHING Tsun Wah, aged 39, is an Executive Director of the
Company since 2014. He is a member of the Executive Committee of
the Company, a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company and
the business development director of the Group. He joined the Group
since 2006 to assist in production and has been actively involved in
both the business and product development of the Group. Mr. CHING
Tsun Wah has extensive experience in the hospitality supplies
industry. He obtained the Young Industrialist Awards of Hong Kong
by the Federation of Hong Kong Industries in 2020. He graduated in
Seneca College Toronto of Canada in marketing administration in
2003. Mr. CHING Tsun Wabh is the son of Mr. CHING Chi Fai and a
nephew of Mr. CHING Chi Keung.

Mr. KEUNG Kwok Hung, aged 48, is an Executive Director of the
Company since 2014. He is the Chief Financial Officer, the Company
Secretary, a member of the Executive Committee and the Investment
Committee of the Company and a director of certain subsidiaries of
the Company. Mr. KEUNG joined the Group in July 2010 and he is
responsible for finance and accounting matters. He has over 20 years
of experience in accounting and financial management. He holds a
Bachelor degree in Accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University and is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants. Mr. KEUNG is an independent non-executive
director of Acme International Holdings Limited, the shares of which
are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Ms. CHAN Yim Ching, aged 53, is a Non-Executive Director of the
Company since 2015. She is a director of a subsidiary of the
Company. Ms. CHAN joined the Group in 1995 and was responsible
for sales and marketing and oversaw export sales to overseas
markets. She was an Executive Director of the Company from 2007
to 2015. Ms. CHAN has over 30 years of experience in the hospitality
supplies industry. Prior to joining the Group, she worked in several
companies engaged in hospitality supplies business.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. HUNG Kam Hung Allan, aged 66, is an Independent
Non-Executive Director of the Company since 2007. He is the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of the
Audit Committee of the Company. Mr. HUNG has over 30 years of
senior management experience in managing hotel operations and
hotel investments. He was a deputy managing director in 1992 and
an executive director from July 1997 to January 2001 of Top Glory
International Holdings Limited (“Top Glory”), a former Hong Kong
listed company which was privatised in August 2003. During the
period with Top Glory, Mr. HUNG assisted Top Glory to develop and
manage hotels/resorts. In 2005, Mr. HUNG started a hotel
development consultancy service to work with various hotel
developers and prestigious hotel chains on design and project
management.

Mr. MA Chun Fung Horace (former name: MA Ka Keung), aged 50,
is an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company since
2007. He is the chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of
the Nomination Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Investment Committee of the Company. Mr. MA is a seasoned
accountant with extensive experience in risk and internal control.
Mr. MA is a Certified Public Accountant (Practicing) registered with
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, a
Certified Internal Auditor registered with the Institute of Internal
Auditors and holder of Certification of Control Self-Assessment of
the Institute of Internal Auditors. Mr. MA also holds various degrees
including Master of Science and Bachelor of Business Administration
conferred by The Chinese University of Hong Kong and Bachelor of
Laws conferred by the University of London.

Mr. NG Bo Kwong, aged 64, is an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company since 13 June 2013. He was a
Non-Executive Director of the Company from 9 July 2007 to 31
December 2012. He is a member of the Audit Committee and the
Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr. NG has over 30 years
of management experience in different industries (including the
hospitality supplies industry). He is the chairman of the International
Quality Service Management Promotion Association and a full
member of the Hong Kong Management Association. He had assisted
a number of medium to large sized enterprises in formulating
company development strategies and establishing management
systems in the areas of sales and marketing, human resources and
production management. Mr. NG is also a guest lecturer of Master of
Business Administration programs and senior executive development
programs of several universities. He had been a director of a number
of non-listed companies and is currently a director of Advance
Management Consultants Limited and Guangzhou Advance Cultural
Events Limited. He received a Master degree of Business
Administration from the University of East Asia and a Doctor degree
of Philosophy in Business Administration from Tarlac State University.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
EERSREBAEBZEEFE(

Mr. SUN Eric Yung Tson, aged 44, is an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company since 2016. He is a member of the Audit
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee of the Company. He graduated with Bachelor degree of
Commerce in the University of New South Wales, Australia in July
2000. Mr. SUN has been the managing director of Kin Hip Metal &
Plastic Factory, Limited and KINOX Trading Limited since 2006. He
has been dedicated to explore and position the products of KINOX,
an international quality manufacturer of fashionable cookware,
houseware and electrical appliances in household and catering
industries, in emerging and global markets. Mr. SUN is also the
honorary and founding president of Youth Executive Council of
Federation of Hong Kong Industries (“FHKI"), the chairman of The
Hong Kong Plastics Manufacturers Association Limited, the founding
vice chairman and secretary general of Hong Kong 020 E-Commerce
Federation, the vice chairman of Hong Kong Q-Mark Council, the
vice chairman of The Hong Kong Exporters’ Association and a
committee member of FHKI Pearl River Delta Council. Mr
dedicates his effort on social responsibilities and practices active roles

in different public services in both Hong Kong and China.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. CHAN Yick Ning, aged 58, is the research and development
director of the Group and a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company. Ms. CHAN is responsible for overseeing various aspects of
our chemical production such as chemical production quality control,
research and development of product formulations, the operations of
the chemical and microbiological laboratory, the performance of the
senior chemists and technicians, quality control and research and
development. Ms. CHAN is also the vice chairman of Compliance
Committee of the Group to provide the technical expertise in vary
aspects to ensure the regulatory compliance and product safety.
Ms. CHAN joined the Group in 2005 and has over 30 years of
experience in cosmetics production and laboratory operation.
Ms. CHAN was awarded a Master of Science degree from University
of Warwick in 2013 and a Diploma in Management Studies jointly by
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and Hong Kong Management
Association in 1992. Ms. CHAN is also a founder member and the
President of Hong Kong Society of Cosmetic Chemists, which is an
affiliate member of The International Federation of Societies of

Cosmetic Chemists.
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The Directors of Ming Fai International Holdings Limited are pleased
to present their annual report together with the audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in manufacturing and trading of hospitality
supplies products, trading of operating supplies and equipment and
manufacturing and trading of health care and hygienic products.
Details of the principal activities of the principal subsidiaries of the
Group are set out in Note 29 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

Results

The Group's results for the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out
in the consolidated financial statements on pages 62 to 148 of this
annual report.

Dividend policy

The Board intend to strike a balance between maintaining sufficient
capital to grow the business of the Group and rewarding the
Shareholders. The declaration and payment of any dividends by the
Company would be subject to the Board’s decision and any final
dividend for a financial year of the Company would be subject to the
Shareholders’ approval. The decision to declare or to pay any
dividend, and the amount of any dividends, will depend on the
Group's earnings, financial condition, cash requirements and
availability, and any other factors the Board may consider relevant.
These factors and the payment of dividends is at the discretion of the
Board and the Board reserves the right to change its plan on any
future payment of dividends. The payment of dividend is also subject
to any restrictions under the laws of Hong Kong and the Cayman
Islands and the Articles of Association of the Company.

Dividend

An interim dividend of HK1.0 cent per Share for the six months
ended 30 June 2020, amounting to a total dividend of approximately
HK$7,343,000 was paid on 5 October 2020, including dividend paid
to Shares held for the share award scheme (the “Share Award
Scheme”).

The Board recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK1.5
cents per Share for the year ended 31 December 2020. Subject to the
approval by the Shareholders at the AGM, the final dividend will be
paid on or around Friday, 11 June 2021 to the Shareholders whose
names appear on the register of members of the Company on
Thursday, 3 June 2021.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
EExE28HS (&)

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For ascertaining the eligibility of the Shareholders to attend and vote
at the AGM, the register of members of the Company will be closed
from Friday, 21 May 2021 to Wednesday, 26 May 2021 (both dates
inclusive), during which period no transfer of Shares will be effected.
In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the AGM, all documents
in respect of transfers of Shares accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch share
registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration no later
than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 20 May 2021.

For ascertaining the entitlement of the Shareholders to the proposed
final dividend, the register of members of the Company will be closed
from Tuesday, 1 June 2021 to Thursday, 3 June 2021 (both dates
inclusive), during which period no transfer of Shares will be effected.
In order to qualify for the proposed final dividend, all documents in
respect of transfers of Shares accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch share
registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration no later
than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 31 May 2021.

CHANGE OF ADDRESS OF PRINCIPAL SHARE
REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE IN THE
CAYMAN ISLANDS

The address of Suntera (Cayman) Limited, the principal share registrar
and transfer office of the Company in the Cayman Islands, has been
changed from “Royal Bank House — 3rd Floor, 24 Shedden Road, P.O.
Box 1586, Grand Cayman, KY1-1110, Cayman Islands” to “Suite
3204, Unit 2A, Block 3, Building D, P.O. Box 1586, Gardenia Court,
Camana Bay, Grand Cayman, KY1-1100, Cayman Islands” with effect
from 1 March 2021.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2020 is set out in “Chairman’s Statement” on pages 07 to 09 and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 10 to 21 of this
annual report.
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Analysis of financial key performance indicators

The financial key performance indicators and analysis of the Group's
business are set out in “Five Years Financial Summary” on page 05
and “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 10 to 21 of
this annual report.

Principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group

Risks pertaining to the reliance on direct sales customers
and distributors for the sale of products

Our hospitality supplies products, operating supplies and equipment
and health care and hygienic products are sold either by direct sales
to our customers, such as hotels and airline operators, or to
distributors, or to other end-users. There is no assurance that such
customers will continue to purchase or maintain their purchase
volumes of our products in the future. In addition, there is no
assurance that we will be able to maintain business relationship with
our customers. In the event that any of our customers ceases to
purchase from us or reduces the purchase volume of orders placed
with us and we are unable to obtain replacement orders, our
businesses and profitability may be adversely affected.

Risks pertaining to price fluctuations of raw materials

The principal raw materials used in our production may be subject to
substantial price volatility and periodic shortages caused by external
conditions, such as fluctuations in commodity prices and foreign
exchange rates. There is no guarantee that the costs of raw materials
will be stable in the future. To the extent that we are unable to cover
any increased costs of raw materials by either reduction in other
production costs or increase of our product prices, our profits will be
adversely affected.

Operation risks

The operation of the Group is subject to a number of risk factors
distinctive to the respective markets. Default on the part of the
Group'’s customers, distributors, suppliers and business partners, and
inadequacies or failures of internal processes, people and systems or
other external factors may have various levels of negative impact on
the results of operations. Additionally, accidents may happen despite
systems and policies set up for their prevention, which may lead to
finance loss, litigation or damage in reputation.

Market risks

The Group is also subject to market risks such as currency fluctuations,
volatility of interest rates, credit risks and liquidity risks in the normal
course of the Group’s businesses. Particulars of financial risk
management of the Group are set out in Note 3 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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Risks relating to compliance with laws and requlations

We are required to comply with all relevant laws and regulations
promulgated by the governments of the respective jurisdictions.
There is no assurance that the existing laws and regulations will not
be changed or additional or more stringent requirement will not be
imposed, compliance with which may cause us to incur significant
expenditure. Moreover, if we fail to comply with the present or
future laws and regulations, we may be required to pay substantial
fines, suspend production or cease operations. Consequently, our
financial condition, business and reputation may be adversely
affected.

Compliance with laws and regulations

The Group strives to enhance governance, promote employee
benefits and development, protect the environment and fulfill social
responsibilities in order to achieve sustainable growth. The Group has
complied with the relevant laws and regulations that have significant
impact on the Group.

Environmental policies and performance

The Group is committed to the principle of sustainable development
and fulfill corporate social responsibilities (“CSR"”) by applying
“commercial morality, the kindness towards people and protecting
environment”. We comply with the laws and respect commercial
morality. We manage our operation based on the legal, compliant
and reasonable basics. We respect human rights, care for public
welfare. We value integrity and achieve win-win situation by
cooperation. We follow our philosophy of respecting morality and
giving back to society. We value resources and promote environmental
protection. Relying on scientific improvements to reduce impacts on
the environment, while we are seeking for environmental
technologies to maintain sustainable development.

The Group believes that CSR is not just about philanthropy, but also
a responsibility towards the community and being able to provide a
platform to contribute in any way that is meaningful, fulfilling and
sustainable. CSR will remain a prominent matter in the Group's
agenda, and environmental management is always an integral part of
the Group’s business planning and daily operations.

Details of environmental policies and performance of the Group in
2020 are set out in the “Environmental, Social and Governance
Report 2020”, which is being prepared in accordance with
“Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide” contained
in Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
(the “Listing Rules”) and will be published on the HKEXnews website
of the Stock Exchange and the Company’s website.
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Key relationships with employees, customers and
suppliers

The Group recognises the accomplishment of the employees by
providing comprehensive benefit packages, career development
opportunities and internal trainings appropriate to individual needs.
The Group provides healthy and safe workplaces for all employees.

The Group maintains working relationships with suppliers to meet
our customers’ needs in an effective and efficient manner. Our
departments work closely to make sure the tendering and
procurement process is conducted in an open, fair and just manner.
The Group's requirements and standards are also well-communicated
to suppliers.

The Group values the views and opinions of all customers through
various means and channels to understand customers’ trends and
needs and regularly analyses on customers’ feedback. The Group also
conducts comprehensive tests and checks to ensure that only quality
products and services are offered to the customers.

THE GROUP’S FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the consolidated results and of the consolidated
assets, equity and liabilities of the Group for the last five years is set
out in “Five Years Financial Summary” on page 05 of this annual
report.

SHARES AND DEBENTURES ISSUED

The Group did not issue any Shares and debentures during the year
ended 31 December 2020.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 65 and
Notes 18 and 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2020, distributable reserves of the Company
amounted to approximately HK$1,019,262,000.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

No pre-emptive rights exist under the Company’s Articles of
Association, or the laws of the Cayman Islands, in which the
Company incorporated.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year ended 31 December 2020, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any listed
securities of the Company.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2020 and up to
the date of this report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. CHING Chi Fai (Chairman)
Mr. CHING Chi Keung

Mr. LIU Zigang

Mr. CHING Tsun Wah

Mr. KEUNG Kwok Hung

Non-Executive Director

Ms. CHAN Yim Ching

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. HUNG Kam Hung Allan
Mr. MA Chun Fung Horace
Mr. NG Bo Kwong

Mr. SUN Eric Yung Tson

In accordance with article 130 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Messrs. CHING Chi Fai, KEUNG Kwok Hung, MA Chun
Fung Horace and SUN Eric Yung Tson will retire from office at the
AGM and being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the
AGM.

Confirmation of independence of Independent
Non-Executive Directors

The Company has received from each Independent Non-Executive
Director an annual written confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
that Messrs. HUNG Kam Hung Allan, MA Chun Fung Horace, NG Bo
Kwong and SUN Eric Yung Tson are independent. Details are set out
in the section headed “Board responsibilities and delegation” in the
“Corporate Governance Report” on pages 43 to 45.
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Disclosure of information of Directors under Rule
13.51(B)(1) of the Listing Rules

With effect from 28 December 2020, Mr. KEUNG Kwok Hung
resigned as an independent non-executive director of Milestone
Builder Holdings Limited, the shares of which are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming AGM has a service contract which is not determinable
by the employer within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

For the year ended 31 December 2020, none of the Directors has any
interest in any business apart from the Group’s business, which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
business of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in which a
Director or an entity connected with a Director had a material
interest, either directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year
or at any time during the year ended 31 December 2020.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Other than Directors’ service contracts and employment contracts
with the Group's senior management in full-time employment, no
contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group were
entered into or in existence during the year ended 31 December
2020.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision was in force during the year ended
31 December 2020 and up to the date of this report.

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association, every Director
shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company
against all losses or liabilities incurred or sustained by him/her as a
Director in defending any proceedings, whether civil or criminal, in
which judgement is given in his/her favour, or in which he/she is
acquitted. There is appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance coverage for the directors and officers of the Group.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The significant related party transactions entered into by the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in Note 35 to
the consolidated financial statements. None of them constituted
discloseable non-exempted connected transactions or non-exempted
continuing connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
EEEHRE (H)

INg

FHREAIEI1351B(NEESE
BE

E

¥R

“ETFEF_A-+\BEE EZEHEE
%HEEB HREEER A (B O KB
RATERLET) ZBIIFRITES °

H—T—H]}

ESNRBSL

EERNEERRBEAS LEENESHE
IVEEFAAR-—FANIEECEERE
BRoN) MR L RIBEE A

EERNEFREB2ER

BE-T-TFE+-A=+—ALFE #&
BEENIMEAEEEBAINZ £ (B
%??&%m S o Al MK T A
(i 2 o

EEREEXRZ ZHHEHNLZ
B

D

RERKBE_FT_FTF+_A=+—HIt
FEATMERE BREGFEREENRES
EHECERERAHEREEARANE
BR5 - RHHAH -

BEEAEHN
BREBENRGAORAEETREEAS
MEBEEBLSHN BE_FT_FTF+
=AU B T o Rk
EB2BREMEASDD ERNEERTH
A

BAEFZREKRX

iZIKa&Eﬁ‘:EIH;ﬁ Z%/E#ZS‘ LﬂmXEixﬁZ

RIBEARR ZEBERMA  BUEFHE
BB RESTEANAHERF EBHRNETE
BREIREIMBLIEFAMEERRI Z

—PBERABEERARREETESHE -
AEBEENSABECHFHEENESLS

RBEETRRIERRE -

ﬁ@&%

ﬁEQT_LZEKEEH Hk%ﬁm%?éﬁﬁﬁiﬁ
FRMIFE3S5 o J:Lﬁ&%*ﬁ%ﬂﬁﬁffﬁﬁétm%ﬁﬂ”

FIUAB T ZATHRETEREAFAERFH K
TERRFBEBERS o

31



32

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
EExE28HS (&)

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS

IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND

DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

EERARAREABEER
HEROREERE 2 EERKXA

mp

2

As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions of the W—-—ZT-—FTF+-—A=+—H E=ZREN
Directors in shares, underlying shares and debentures of the FgHTMEE EZE (TERELLHEKR
Company or any of its associated corporation (within the meaning of {5 ([ &4 & A& &7 |) EXVIR) 2 I& % ~ 48
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance ("SFO”)) as recorded  BER% 1 N (G4 d - AL ABIEE A L H
in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO oras & &H|E352KBFEF 2 Efh kiR
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant 4 F B BIKI 8+ ¢ F 31T AE T 175
to the "Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed 475 2 @2 <7 AI|) ([1Z%E<F B |) @ Zn A 2
Issuers” (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing & R 2R ARNT ¢
Rules were as follows:
Long positions in Shares and underlying Shares RROREBRGOZER
Number of
underlying
Shares held
under equity
derivatives
Number of Shares held (Note 1)
UREATE
IAKAYZ
HEROHE
BEROHE (Hrit1)
Approximate
percentage of
Corporate issued Shares
Personal Family Interests Personal (734,262,697
Interests Interests (interests of Interests Shares)
(beneficial (interests of controlled (beneficial as at
Name of Directors owner) spouse) corporation) owner) Total 31 December 2020
R-E-2%
+=BA=+-H
ERTRHG
BA RS Rk B =R {6 A # 4 (734,262,6971)
EEpns #EEAN) (RER:) (ZEiERE) (BEERA) st ZBREDLE
Mr CHING Chi Fai 17,444,000 - 197,666,200 - 215,110,200 29.30%
Eoy B (Note 2 & 3)
(Hit2k3)
Mr. CHING Chi Keung 4,000,000 = 32,499,600 = 36,499,600 4.97%
BERELE (Note 3)
(Hit3)
Mr. LIU Zigang 4,000,000 - 20,057,200 - 24,057,200 3.28%
2IFmEE (Note 4)
(Hit4)
Mr. CHING Tsun Wah 3,734,000 775,000 - 4,509,000 0.61%
REELLE (Note 5)
(#1its5)
Mr. KEUNG Kwok Hung - - - 1,158,000 1,158,000 0.16%
ZEEEE
Ms. CHAN Yim Ching - - 32,499,600 - 32,499,600 4.43%
PBREE 2 L (Note 3)
(HiE3)
Mr. HUNG Kam Hung Allan 600,000 - - - 600,000 0.08%
AmsEsE
Mr. MA Chun Fung Horace 600,000 - - - 600,000 0.08%
SiRELE
Mr. Ng Bo Kwong 600,000 - - - 600,000 0.08%
REEAFLE
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Notes:

These underlying Shares held under equity derivatives represented the
share options granted by the Company (being regarded as unlisted
physically settled equity derivatives). Details of the share options granted
to the Directors are set out in the section headed “Share Option Scheme”
of this report.

165,166,600 Shares were held by Prosper Well International Limited,
which was wholly-owned by Mr. CHING Chi Fai.

32,499,600 Shares were held by Targetwise Trading Limited, which was
owned as to 50%, 19.23% and 30.77% by Mr. CHING Chi Keung,
Ms. CHAN Yim Ching and Mr. CHING Chi Fai respectively.

20,057,200 Shares were held by Favour Power Limited, which was
wholly-owned by Mr. LIU Zigang.

775,000 Shares were held by Ms. SO Wai Yin Tracy, the spouse of
Mr. CHING Tsun Wah.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, none of the
Directors had any interest or short positions in shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded
in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' AND OTHER KBREREMALIRERRTRE
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS REEROZEERAR

IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF

THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2020, so far as it was known by or otherwise R-ZT-_FTF+_A=+—H pEMANES
notified to any Director, the interests and short positions of the  FTAIZR K FAH b 75 R - KRR K&
substantial shareholders and other persons (other than a Director), in ~ Eftb A &= (F =R 5N 7 A9 5 48 B A% 19 =
Shares and underlying Shares as recorded in the register required to AL ARIEZ H KBS K P £33614E T

be kept under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows: BENELRMP 2 E=RABEWT
Long positions in Shares RN 2HAE
Number of Shares held
KERAEE
Approximate
percentage of
Corporate issued Shares
Personal Family Corporate Corporate Interests (734,262,697
Interests Interests Interests Interests (interests of Shares)
(beneficial (interests of (beneficial (investment controlled asat
Name owner) spouse) owner) manager) corporation) Total 31 December 2020
g3
tZh=t-A
BERA
BAES RkER EERR EEER rEER (734,262,697
tB/ 14 (RHERA) (BEER) (BRERA) (RELE) (ZRiEER) st ZBAEA
Prosper Well International Limited (Note 1) - - 165,166,600 - - 165,166,600 22.49%
Prosper Well International Limited (471
Ms. LO Kit Ling (Note 1) - 215,110,200 - - - 215,110,200 29.30%
EZRRT (i)
Mr. David Michael WEBB (Note 2) 38,119,173 - - - 64,864,827 102,984,000 14.02%
David Michael WEBBE & (#/722)
Preferable Situation Assets Limited (Note 2) - - 64,864,827 - - 64,864,827 8.83%
Preferable Situation Assets Limited(4/:22)
Wykeham Capital Asia Value Fund (Note 3) - - 44,570,000 - - 44,570,000 6.07%
Wykeham Capital Asla Value Fund (#73)
Wykeham Capital Limited (Note 3) - - - 44,570,000 - 44,570,000 6.07%
Wykeham Capital Limited (4733
Mr. Howel Gruffudd Rhys THOMAS (Note 3) - - - - 44,570,000 44,570,000 6.07%

Howel Gruffudd Rhys THOMAS % £ (4/223)
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Notes:

1.

165,166,600 Shares were held by Prosper Well International Limited,
which was wholly-owned by Mr. CHING Chi Fai (an Executive Director and
the Chairman of the Company). 32,499,600 Shares were held by
Targetwise Trading Limited, which was owned as to 30.77% by Mr. CHING
Chi Fai. Mr. CHING Chi Fai also beneficially held 17,444,000 Shares.
Ms. LO Kit Ling, being the spouse of Mr. CHING Chi Fai, was deemed to
be interested in the 215,110,200 Shares in which Mr. CHING Chi Fai
interested.

Based on the disclosure of interests notice of Preferable Situation Assets
Limited with the date of relevant event on 10 July 2017 received by the
Company, 58,035,665 Shares were held by Preferable Situation Assets
Limited, which was wholly-owned by Mr. David Michael WEBB,
representing 8.00% of the issued Shares as at that day. Based on the
disclosure of interests notice of Mr. David Michael WEBB with the date of
relevant event on 10 January 2020 received by the Company, 64,864,827
Shares were held by Preferable Situation Assets Limited, which was
wholly-owned by Mr. David Michael WEBB, who also beneficially held
38,119,173 Shares. Save as disclosed above, no further respective
disclosure of interests notices of Mr. David Michael WEBB and Preferable
Situation Assets Limited with the date of relevant event on or before 31
December 2020 were received by the Company.

Based on the disclosure of interests notices with the date of relevant event
on 17 May 2017 received by the Company, Mr. Howel Gruffudd Rhys
THOMAS was deemed to be interested in the 44,570,000 Shares owned by
Wykeham Capital Asia Value Fund by virtue of his 100% shareholding
interest in Wykeham Capital Limited (which was the investment manager
of Wykeham Capital Asia Value Fund). Save as disclosed above, no further
respective disclosure of interests notices of Wykeham Capital Asia Value
Fund, Wykeham Capital Limited and Mr. Howel Gruffudd Rhys THOMAS
with the date of relevant event on or before 31 December 2020 were
received by the Company.

Save as disclosed above and in the section headed “Directors’
interests and short positions in shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations” of this
report, as at 31 December 2020, so far as it was known by or

otherwise notified to any Director,

none of the substantial

shareholders and other persons (other than a Director), had any
interest or short positions in Shares and underlying Shares as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the

SFO.

mat
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME B ERTE

The Company has conditionally adopted a share option scheme (the ZARBR_ZTZE+F+ARBEKRERNE
“Share Option Scheme”) on 5 October 2007. Particulars of AT EI ([FERESE]) - HE_T_TF
movements in the share options during the year ended 31 December T Z-A=+—HIFFE  BRIEZZHFIF

2020 were as follows: W
Number of share options
ERE%A
Outstanding Outstanding
asat Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed asat
Exercise 1 January during during during during 31 December
Grantee Date of grant Exercise period Price 2020 the year the year the year the year 2020
RZ8-%% RZZ-%F
-A-B tZB=t-H
ERA RiLBH fit:d: Tk HATE ERRi; Enfif R EREN HATE
HKS
BT
Director
Bz
Mr. KEUNG Kwok Hung 04-09-2012 09-09-2012 to 08-09-2021 0.62 579,000 - - - - 579,000
ZEERE “5-ZFNANA “5-ZENANEE
7;:@1)% MR
04-09-2012 09-09-2013 to 08-09-2021 0.62 579,000 - - - - 579,000
“2-—EhABA “E-ZENANEER
ZEZ-ENANA
Employees
#5
In aggregate 04-09-2012 09 09 2012 to 08-09-2021 0.62 844,000 - - - - 844,000
At “2-Z£NARA “T-CEAANRE
Z2Z-EAANE
04-09-2012 09-09-2013 to 08-09-2021 0.62 844,000 - - - - 844,000
“3-ZENAMA ‘T—-inﬂnﬁﬁ
ZFZ-FAANA
04 09 2012 04-09-2013 t0 03-09-2022 0.62 225,000 - - - - 225,000
“3-ZFNARA “Z-Z£NAmAZ
S [ =
04-09-2012 04-09-2014 to 03-09-2022 0.62 337,000 - - - - 337,000
“3-ZENAMA “Z-RENARAZ
S 2
Total 3,408,000 - - - - 3,408,000
it
The weighted average closing price of the Shares immediately before REBZE=_ZT—-hF+_A=T—HILFE -

the dates on which the share options were exercised for the year HX@E%&E%HQ%?‘I@E HY 2 A &Y hn e 15
ended 31 December 2019 was HK$1.12 per Share. No share options WA ERERI12BT -REBEE-_Z_T4F
were exercised during the year ended 31 December 2020. TZA=T—HIEFERETERRE -
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The following is a summary of the principal terms of the rules of the
Share Option Scheme:

(1)

(2)

(3)

Purpose of the Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme was to enable the
Board to grant options to selected employees (whether full
time or part time, including the Directors) of any member of
the Group (the “Eligible Persons”) as incentives or rewards for
their contribution or potential contribution to the Group.

The terms of the Share Option Scheme provided that in
granting options under the Share Option Scheme, the Board
was entitled to determine whether there is any minimum
holding period, and whether there is any performance target
which must be achieved, before an option granted under the
Share Option Scheme is exercised. The Board was also entitled
to determine the option price per Share payable on the
exercise of an option (the “Exercise Price”) according to the
terms of the Share Option Scheme. Such terms, together with
the incentives that the option would bring about, the Board
believed, would serve the purpose of the Share Option
Scheme.

Period of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme was effective during the period of
ten years commencing on 2 November 2007 (the date on
which the Share Option Scheme become unconditional) and
the Share Option Scheme was expired on 1 November 2017.
On expiry of the Share Option Scheme, no further option shall
be granted but in all other respects the provisions of the Share
Options Scheme shall remain in force. All options granted and
accepted prior to such expiry shall continue to be valid and
exercisable in accordance with their terms and terms of the
Share Option Scheme.

Basis of eligibility

The Board at its absolute discretion and on such terms as it
might think fit, granted options to any Eligible Person to
subscribe at the Exercise Price for such number of Shares as
determined in accordance with the terms of the Share Option
Scheme.

The basis of eligibility of any of the Eligible Persons to the
grant of options were determined by the Board on the basis of
his contribution or potential contribution to the development
and growth of the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)

Exg

(4)

(5)

(6)

wi (&)

Price for subscription of Shares

The Exercise Price was determined by the Board at the higher
of:

(a) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheet issued by the Stock Exchange on the
date of grant of the options which must be a business
day; and

(b) the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the
daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange
for the five business days immediately preceding the
date of grant,

provided that the Exercise Price shall in no event be less than
the nominal amount of one Share.

Acceptance of offers

The amount payable to the Company as acceptance of the
offer for the grant of an option was HK$1.

Maximum number of Shares

The maximum number of Shares which might be issued upon
the exercise of all options to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company (excluding, for this purpose, options which have
lapsed in accordance with the terms of the Share Option
Scheme or any other share option schemes of the Company)
must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the Shares in issue on
the listing date (i.e. 2 November 2007) (the “Scheme Limit").

The Scheme Limit could be refreshed at any time subject to
Shareholders’ approval provided that such limit as refreshed
should not exceed 10% of the Shares in issue as at the date
of approval of the renewed limit. Share options previously
granted under the Share Option Scheme (including those
outstanding, cancelled, lapsed or exercised) would not be
counted for the purpose of calculating the Scheme Limit as
refreshed. On 23 May 2013, the refreshment of the Scheme
Limit was approved by the Shareholders at the annual general
meeting. As at the date of this annual report, the number of
Shares available for issue under the Share Option Scheme is
3,408,000 Shares which represents approximately 0.46% of
the total number of issued Shares.
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(7) Maximum entitlement of each Eligible Person

The maximum number of Shares issued and to be issued upon
the exercise of options granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company
to any Eligible Person (including cancelled, exercised and
outstanding options), in any 12-month period should not
exceed 1% of the Shares in issue from time to time.

SHARE AWARD SCHEME

On 23 September 2016, the Company adopted the Share Award
Scheme in which the Group’s employees, directors, consultants or
advisers will be entitled to participate. During the year ended 31
December 2020, no Shares were acquired from the market by the
independent trustee (Bank of Communications Trustee Limited),
which is independent and not connected with the Company. No
Shares have been granted to eligible persons under the Share Award
Scheme up to the date of this report.

The objectives of the Share Award Scheme are (i) to recognise the
contributions by certain eligible persons; and (ii) to offer suitable
incentives to attract and retain targeted talents and personnel for the
continuance of operations and future development of the Group.

The Share Award Scheme shall be subject to the administration of
the Board and the independent trustee in accordance with the
scheme rules and the trust deed of the Share Award Scheme. Subject
to any early termination as may be determined by the Board, the
Share Award Scheme shall be valid and effective for a term of ten
years commencing on its adoption date (i.e. 23 September 2016).

The Board shall not make any further award of awarded Shares
which will result in the nominal value of the Shares awarded by the
Board under the Share Award Scheme exceeding 5% of the issued
share capital of the Company from time to time. The maximum
number of Shares which may be awarded to a selected person under
the Share Award Scheme shall not exceed 1% of the issued share
capital of the Company from time to time.

Details of the Share Award Scheme were set out in the announcement
of the Company dated 23 September 2016.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
EExE28HS (&)

ARRANGEMENTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Share Option Scheme” and
“Share Award Scheme” of this report, neither the Company nor any
of its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable the
Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in,
or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate at the
end of the year or at any time during the year ended 31 December
2020.

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in Note 35 to the consolidated financial statements,
no contract of significance between the Company or any of its
subsidiaries and a controlling Shareholder or any of its subsidiaries;
nor for the provision of services to the Company or any of its
subsidiaries by a controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries
were entered into or subsisted during the year ended 31 December
2020.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Share Option Scheme” and
“Share Award Scheme” of this report, no equity-linked agreement
was entered into or subsisted during the year ended 31 December
2020.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest
suppliers accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s total purchases
for the year ended 31 December 2020.

The aggregate revenue attributable to the Group’s five largest

customers accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s total revenue
for the year ended 31 December 2020.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s total number of issued Shares was held by the public as
at the date of this report.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group made
charitable donations amounting to approximately HK$147,000.

AUDITOR

The Company’s auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers who shall retire
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the AGM.

On behalf of the Board

CHING Chi Fai
Chairman
Hong Kong, 25 March 2021
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TEEREE

The Company is dedicated to maintaining and ensuring high
standards of corporate governance practices. The corporate
governance principles of the Company emphasise accountability and
transparency and are adopted in the best interest of the Company
and the Shareholders. The Board reviews its corporate governance
practices from time to time in order to meet the rising expectations
of the Shareholders and to fulfill its commitment to excellence in
corporate governance.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Board has reviewed
its policies and practices on corporate governance, and policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group has complied
with all the code provisions in the “Corporate Governance Code”
("CG Code"”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules, except
the deviation of the followings:

o Code provision A.2.1: the Board has not appointed an
individual to the post of chief executive officer up to the date
of this report and the role of the chief executive officer has
been performed collectively by all the Executive Directors,
including the Chairman of the Company. The Board considers
that this arrangement allows contributions from all Executive
Directors with different expertise and is beneficial to the
continuity of the Company’s policies and strategies.

o Code provision E.1.2: with the COVID-19 pandemic and the
travel restrictions in place in the PRC and Hong Kong
respectively, the Chairman of the Board did not attend the
annual general meeting of the Company held on 27 May
2020.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

During the year and up to the date of this report, the Board
comprises the following Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. CHING Chi Fai (Chairman)
Mr. CHING Chi Keung

Mr. LIU Zigang

Mr. CHING Tsun Wah

Mr. KEUNG Kwok Hung

Non-Executive Director

Ms. CHAN Yim Ching

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. HUNG Kam Hung Allan
Mr. MA Chun Fung Horace
Mr. NG Bo Kwong

Mr. SUN Eric Yung Tson

Board responsibilities and delegation

The Board collectively determines the overall strategies of the
Company and monitors performance and risks in pursuit of the
strategic objectives of the Company. Day-to-day management of the
Company is delegated to the Executive Directors or the senior
management in charge of each division. All Directors (including
Non-Executive Director and Independent Non-Executive Directors)
have been consulted on all major and material matters of the Group.

The Board has delegated some of its function to the Board
committees, details of which are set out below. Matters specifically
reserved for the Board, including convening Shareholders’ meetings,
implementing the Shareholders’ resolutions, determining the Group's
business plans and strategies, formulating the Group’s annual budget
and final accounts, formulating proposals for dividend and bonus
distributions and for increase or reduction of share capital,
determining the Group's corporate structure, formulating investment
plans as well as exercising other powers, functions and duties as
conferred by the Articles of Association of the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
EXRERRE (&)

The attendance of the Directors at Board meetings, committee
meetings and annual general meeting of the Company during the
year ended 31 December 2020 were as follows:

BE_T_TF+_A=+—HIFE &
ERALFEFTEEH ZECERNER
BAFEAGOHFERMT

Number of meetings attended/held
HE/ETEEAY
Audit  Nomination Remuneration Executive  Investment Annual
Board  Committee = Committee =~ Committee =~ Committee ~ Committee General
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
g ENZEE [R4%ZEE HMZEE H{TEEE REZEE el
EE EE R EE EE S BEXE
Executive Directors BTES
Mr. CHING Chi Fai BEELE 4/4 - n 212 4/4 1" 0/1
Mr. CHING Chi Keung o St 3/4 - - - 4/4 - 0/1
Mr. LIU Zigang IR i 4/4 - - - 4/4 - 0/1
Mr. CHING Tsun Wah BEERE 4/4 - - - 4/ - 11
Mr. KEUNG Kwok Hung ZE LS 4/4 - - - 4/4 171 171
Non-Executive Director FHUTEE
Ms. CHAN Yim Ching BRenE Tt 4/4 - - - _ _ 1”7
Independent Non-Executive BUEHTES
Directors
Mr. HUNG Kam Hung Allan 788t 54 4/4 22 - 2 - - 0
Mr. MA Chun Fung Horace SiRgLE 4/4 212 n 212 . 1" n
Mr. NG Bo Kwong RRAEE 4/4 2 - 2 - - 171
Mr. SUN Eric Yung Tson BemLE 4/4 22 171 22 - - 1

Each Executive Director has entered into a service contract with the
Company for a term of three years while each Non-Executive Director
and Independent Non-Executive Director has entered into a letter of
appointment with the Company for a term of one year. All the
aforesaid service contracts or letters of appointment may be
terminated by either party giving written notice in accordance with
the terms of respective service contracts or letters of appointment.
All the Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
at the annual general meetings of the Company in accordance with
the Articles of Association of the Company.
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The Company has appointed sufficient number of Independent
Non-Executive Directors in accordance to the requirements of the
Listing Rules and Mr. MA Chun Fung Horace has appropriate
accounting professional qualifications. The Company has received
from each Independent Non-Executive Director, namely Messrs.
HUNG Kam Hung Allan, MA Chun Fung Horace, NG Bo Kwong and
SUN Eric Yung Tson, an annual written confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Directors are of the view that all Independent Non-Executive Directors
meet the independence requirements as set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules.

Mr. CHING Chi Fai (the Chairman of the Company and an Executive
Director) and Mr. CHING Chi Keung (Executive Director) are brothers.
Mr. CHING Tsun Wah (Executive Director) is the son of Mr. CHING
Chi Fai and a nephew of Mr. CHING Chi Keung.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, four Board meetings were
held. Minutes of the Board meetings are being kept by the Company

Secretary of the Company and are available for inspection by the
Directors.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the following committees:

Audit Committee;

o Nomination Committee;
° Remuneration Committee;
o Executive Committee; and
° Investment Committee.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
EXRERRS (B)

ARBIERELTRAUNRERERHKE
MBYFATEELSRELLERBEEDN
S EEER - AR AR WBI BB IR
TESE (ALt EE FRELE  REX
TEAERFZRRBEL) RE LW ARAF313K
RIXHEFEFHVHEEDERAL EFRAE
MBUIFRITEEHNE LHRAE3 13K
FREUA B IE AR TE

BEBEELE (RARRIERATES) IIE
TREE(RITER) HRBZHIE - 2EE
EEMTES) RETEREZRFRE
TREEZET -

HE-_TZ_TF+_A=+—HILFE &
EEERTHAERE EFSTNHACTHB
ARBZABWEFE LA HERER -
EEZET

EEEEKRUTIZEZES:

. BREZEg:

. HHEZEeg
. WITZE® I
. RELRBE -

RERRZERARAR o —FT -_TFFH

45



46

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
EXRERRE (&)

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises Mr. MA Chun Fung Horace
(Chairman of the Audit Committee), who has appropriate accounting
professional qualifications and relevant expertise, and Messrs. HUNG
Kam Hung Allan, NG Bo Kwong and SUN Eric Yung Tson, all are
Independent Non-Executive Directors. The Audit Committee held two
meetings during the year ended 31 December 2020.

The Audit Committee is responsible for assisting the Board in
fulfilling its audit duties through the review and supervision of the
Group's financial reporting system, risk management system and
internal control procedures, details of responsibilities are set out in
the terms of reference of the Audit Committee, which are published
on the HKEXnews website of the Stock Exchange and the website of
the Company.

The work performed by the Audit Committee during the year ended
31 December 2020 are summarised below:

. reviewed the interim and annual results, the relevant
statements and reports of the Group, the significant financial
reporting judgements, in order to monitor the integrity and
whether in accordance with the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group and the applicable accounting

standard;

o reviewed the external auditor’s audit plan and terms of
engagement;

o reviewed management letter and any materials queries raised

by the external auditor to the management in relation to the
accounting records, financial accounts or systems of control
and management'’s responses;

o reviewed the key audit matters and discussed with external
auditor and the management;

o reviewed the independency and objectivity of the external
auditor, the effectiveness of audit process and the non-audit
service fee payable to the external auditor;

o recommended to the Board the re-appointment of the external
auditor and the audit fee payable to the external auditor for
Shareholders’ approval at the annual general meeting;

. reviewed the effectiveness of financial control, risk
management and internal control systems of the Group
involving financial, operational and compliance control;
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o reviewed the internal audit report prepared by the internal
auditor and the management’s responses to the findings by
the internal audit function;

o considered and reviewed the proposals of internal audit plan;
and
o reviewed the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and

experience, budget of the Group’s financial reporting and
internal audit functions.

Auditor’s remuneration

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the fees payable by the Company
to the external auditor of the Company, PricewaterhouseCoopers are
HK$2,680,000 for audit services and HK$300,000 for non-audit
services.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises Mr. CHING Chi Fai (Chairman
of the Nomination Committee), Executive Director and Messrs. MA
Chun Fung Horace and SUN Eric Yung Tson, both are Independent
Non-Executive Directors. The Nomination Committee held a meeting
during the year ended 31 December 2020.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for the identification and
recommendation to the Board of possible appointees as Directors,
making recommendations to the Board on matters relating to
appointment or re-appointment of Directors, succession planning of
Directors and assessing the independence of the Independent
Non-Executive Directors, details of responsibilities are set out in the
terms of reference of the Nomination Committee, which are
published on the HKEXnews website of the Stock Exchange and the
website of the Company.

The work performed by the Nomination Committee during the year
ended 31 December 2020 are summarised below:

° reviewed the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge, experience and diversity) of the Board;

o recommended to the Board regarding the re-election of
Directors for Shareholders’ approval at the annual general
meeting; and

o assessed the independence of the Independent Non-Executive
Directors.
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Nomination policy

Selection criteria

The Nomination Committee would assess the suitability of a proposed
candidate based on a number of factors, including but not limited to:

character and integrity;

professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and experience
that are relevant to the Group’s business and corporate
strategy;

potential time commitment to discharge duties as a Director
and/or committee member and other directorships and
significant commitments;

Board diversity policy and any measurable objectives adopted
for achieving the Board’s diversity;

relevant requirements as stipulated under the Listing Rules,
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, other applicable laws
and regulations in Hong Kong and the Cayman Islands and
the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company;
and

independence requirements for the Independent Non-Executive
Directors.

Nomination procedures

Appointment of Director(s)

The Nomination Committee shall upon receipt of the
biographical details of the proposed candidate(s), evaluate the
candidate(s) based on the selection criteria of the nomination
policy to determine his/her qualification as a Director and
make recommendation for the Board’s consideration. The
selected individual(s) will be subject to re-election by
Shareholders at the next general meeting of the Company
after his/her initial appointment as Director(s) in accordance
with the Company’s Articles of Association.

For any person as nominated by a Shareholder for election as
a Director at a general meeting of the Company, the
qualification of the candidate(s) shall be evaluated first by the
Nomination Committee and then by the Board based on the
selection criteria of the nomination policy. The Board shall
make recommendation to the Shareholders in respect of such
proposed election as Director(s) at the general meeting of the
Company.

Re-election of Director(s)

The Nomination Committee shall review and determine
whether the retiring Director(s) continue to meet the selection
criteria of the nomination policy and make recommendation
for the Board’s consideration. The Board shall then make
recommendation to the Shareholders in respect of the
proposed re-election of Director(s) at the general meeting.
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Summary of the Board diversity policy

The Board diversity policy of the Company setting out the approach
to diversity on the Board. The Company continuously seeks to
enhance its effectiveness and to maintain the highest standards of
corporate governance and recognise diversity at Board level as an
essential element in maintaining a competitive advantage, Board
diversity has been considered from a number of aspects, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service. The Nomination Committee and the Board will also take into
account factors based on the Group’s business model and specific
needs from time to time. The ultimate decision will be based on merit
and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises Mr. CHING Chi Fai,
Executive Director, and Messrs. HUNG Kam Hung Allan (Chairman of
the Remuneration Committee), MA Chun Fung Horace, NG Bo
Kwong and SUN Eric Yung Tson, all are Independent Non-Executive
Directors. The Remuneration Committee held two meetings during
the year ended 31 December 2020.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making recommendations
to the Board on the Group’s remuneration policy and structure, the
remuneration packages of the Executive Directors and senior
management, and the remuneration of Non-Executive Director and
Independent Non-Executive Directors, details of responsibilities are
set out in the terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee,
which are published on the HKEXnews website of the Stock Exchange
and the website of the Company.

The work performed by the Remuneration Committee during the year
ended 31 December 2020 are summarised below:

. considered and reviewed the remuneration packages,
including the discretionary bonus, performance, time
commitment and responsibilities of each Executive Director
and the senior management, with reference to the prevailing
market conditions, and recommended for the Board’s approval
on the adjustments of remuneration of each Executive Director
and the senior management;

o considered and reviewed the Group's remuneration policy;
and
o reviewed the respective letter of appointment and director’s

fee of each Non-Executive Director and Independent
Non-Executive Director and recommended for the Board'’s
approval.
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The remuneration of senior management by band for the year ended
31 December 2020 is as follows:

HE T TF+_A=1+—BULFERD
BB D ERERABFHHMEIWAT

Number of Individuals

AR
2020

—s-%%

Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ %1,000,000%5 7T -
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7C% 1,500,000/ 7T 1

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000

1,500,0018 7% 2,000,000/ 7T -

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee comprises Messrs. CHING Chi Fai (Chairman
of the Executive Committee), CHING Chi Keung, LIU Zigang, CHING
Tsun Wah and KEUNG Kwok Hung, all are Executive Directors. The
Executive Committee held four meetings during the year ended 31
December 2020.

The Executive Committee has been delegated with the general
powers to deal with the daily operations and management of the
Company, including but not limited to, setting up new companies,
opening bank accounts, arranging banking facilities, affixing the
Common Seal, issue of Shares upon exercise of any subscription or
conversion rights under any share option schemes of the Company,
warrants or convertible notes.

Investment Committee

The Investment Committee comprises Messrs. CHING Chi Fai
(Chairman of the Investment Committee) and KEUNG Kwok Hung,
both are Executive Directors and Mr. MA Chun Fung Horace,
Independent Non-Executive Director. The Investment Committee held
a meeting during the year ended 31 December 2020.

The Investment Committee has been delegated by the Board to
assess, consider and approve/recommend any potential investments
and/or divestments of the Group, which are less than US$20 million,
or 5% of the total market capitalisation of the Company, in
aggregate in each financial year, whichever is lower, and approve
each investment/divestment reaching/exceeding HK$3 million but not
exceeding 10% of the aforesaid aggregate amount.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions as set out in
the code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code. During the year ended 31
December 2020, the Board reviewed the Company’s corporate
governance policies and practices, continuous professional
development of the Directors and the senior management, the
Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, the compliance of the Listing Rules and its
updates, the compliance of the Model Code by the Directors and
employees and the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

Directors’ continuous professional development

Pursuant to code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all Directors should
participate in continuous professional development to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to
the Board remains informed and relevant. All the Directors
understand the importance of continuous professional development
and are committed to participating any suitable training or reading
relevant materials in order to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills. The Company has received from each Director his/her
training record of participation in continuous professional development
for the year ended 31 December 2020:

webinar(s)/seminar(s)

2P LHNE WHE
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BEMLEN BEER

Executive Directors HITES
Mr. CHING Chi Fai AL - v
Mr. CHING Chi Keung BEEEE - 4
Mr. LIU Zigang 275 E - v
Mr. CHING Tsun Wah TR A - v
Mr. KEUNG Kwok Hung ZE ML E v v
Non-Executive Director FHITES
Ms. CHAN Yim Ching bR 5 20+ - v
Independent Non-Executive Directors B FHTESE
Mr. HUNG Kam Hung Allan iR A - v
Mr. MA Chun Fung Horace BRI 5 A4 v v
Mr. NG Bo Kwong RRMEAE = v
Mr. SUN Eric Yung Tson R LA = 4
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MODEL CODE FOR DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company adopted the Model Code set out in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions on 5 October 2007. Having made specific
enquiries to all Directors, all Directors confirmed that they have
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code for
the year ended 31 December 2020.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for overseeing the
preparation of the financial statements for each financial period
which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group,
and of results and cash flow for the financial period. In preparing the
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Directors have selected suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently; adopted appropriate Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and Hong Kong Accounting Standards; made prudent and
reasonable judgements and estimates and have prepared the financial
statements on a going concern basis. The Directors also warrant that
the Group’s financial statements will be published in a timely
manner.

The statement of the reporting responsibilities on the financial
statements of the Group of the auditor of the Company is set out in
the “Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 56 to 61 of this annual
report.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining a sound and
effective risk management and internal control systems of the Group
and reviewing their effectiveness annually. The Group’s internal
control system includes a well-defined management structure with
limits of authority which is designed for the achievement of business
objectives, safeguarding assets against unauthorised use or
disposition, ensuring proper maintenance of books and records for
the provision of reliable financial information for internal use or
publication, and ensuring compliance with relevant legislations and
regulations. In addition, the Group has established risk management
procedures to identify and prioritise risks for the business to be
addressed by management. At least on an annual basis, management
identifies risks that would adversely affect the achievement of the
Group’s objectives, and assesses and prioritises the identified risks
according to a set of standard criteria. Risk mitigation plans and risk
owners are then established for those risks considered to be
significant.

The risk management and internal control systems are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.
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During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Board appointed a
professional consulting firm with the responsibility to conduct
internal audit function and assess risks of the Company and perform
the agreed-upon procedures in relation to the internal controls of the
business of the Group. The Audit Committee and the management
will follow up the suggestions from the aforesaid professional
consulting firm to further improve the risk management and internal
control systems. The Group is committed to the identification,
monitoring and management of risks associated with its business
activities.

The Board conducts a review of the effectiveness of risk management
and internal control systems of the Group annually. The review of the
systems for the year ended 31 December 2020 included but not
limited to the Group’s ability to cope with its business transformation
and changing external environment; the scope and quality of
management’s review on risk management and internal control
systems; result of internal audit work; the extent and frequency of
communication with the Board in relation to result of risks and
internal control review; significant failures or weaknesses identified
and their related implications; and status of compliance with the
Listing Rules. The Board satisfies with the scope of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group and considers
that the systems are effective and adequate.

Procedures and internal controls for handling and
dissemination of inside information

The Group complies with requirements of the SFO and the Listing
Rules. The Group discloses inside information to the public as soon as
reasonably practicable unless the information falls within any of the
safe harbours as provided in the SFO. Before the information is fully
disclosed to the public, the Group ensures the information is kept
strictly confidential. If the Group believes that the necessary degree
of confidentiality cannot be maintained or that confidentiality may
have been breached, the Group will immediately disclose the
information to the public. The Group is committed to ensuring that
information contained in published documents are not false or
misleading as to a material fact, or false or misleading through the
omission of a material fact in view of presenting information in a
clear and balanced way, which requires equal disclosure of both
positive and negative facts.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

Communication with Shareholders is given high priority by the
Group. A Shareholder communication policy has been adopted for
the purpose of ensuring that the Shareholders are provided with
ready, equal and timely access to the balanced and understandable
information about the Group.
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Extensive information about the Group’s activities has been provided
in the annual reports and the interim reports which are sent to the
Shareholders and are available on the HKEXnews website of the
Stock Exchange and the Company’s website. Shareholders may
communicate with the Directors and senior management in the
general meetings of the Company. External auditor is also invited to
attend the AGM to answer questions about the conduct of the audit,
the preparation and content of the independent auditor’s report, the
accounting policies adopted by the Company in relation to the
preparation of the financial statements and independence of the
auditor in relation to the conduct of the audit.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening an extraordinary general meeting by the
Shareholders

The procedures of convening an extraordinary general meeting by
the Shareholders are as follows:

Pursuant to article 79 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
general meetings may be convened on the written requisition of any
two or more members of the Company deposited at the principal
office of the Company in Hong Kong or, in the event the Company
ceases to have such a principal office, the registered office, specifying
the objects of the meeting and signed by the requisitionists, provided
that such requisitionists held as at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company which carries the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company. General meetings may also be convened on the written
requisition of any one member of the Company which is a recognised
clearing house (or its nominee(s)) deposited at the principal office of
the Company in Hong Kong or, in the event the Company ceases to
have such a principal office, the registered office, specifying the
objects of the meeting and signed by the requisitionist, provided that
such requisitionist held as at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company which
carries the right of voting at general meetings of the Company. If the
Board does not within 21 days from the date of deposit of the
requisition proceed duly to convene the meeting to be held within a
further 21 days, the requisitionist(s) themselves or any of them
representing more than one-half of the total voting rights of all of
them, may convene the general meeting in the same manner, as
nearly as possible, as that in which meetings may be convened by the
Board, provided that any meeting so convened shall not be held after
the expiration of three months from the date of deposit of the
requisition, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to them by the Company.
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Putting forward proposals at Shareholders’ meetings

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to move new
resolution at general meetings under the Articles of Association of
the Company. Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may
request the Company to convene a general meeting by following the
procedures set out in the preceding paragraph.

Making enquires to the Board

Shareholders may make enquires to the Board in writing to the
principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong at Unit D3,
8/F, TML Tower, No. 3 Hoi Shing Road, Tsuen Wan, New Territories,
Hong Kong.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There is no change in the Company’s constitutional documents
during the year ended 31 December 2020.

On behalf of the Board

CHING Chi Fai
Chairman
Hong Kong, 25 March 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
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e
pwec

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
MING FAI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Ming Fai International Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on
pages 62 to 148, which comprise:

° the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2020;

o the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year
then ended;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then
ended;

o the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,;
and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a
summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs"”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Key Audit Matter

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)
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Provision for impairment of trade receivables

Refer to Notes 3(a)(iv), 4 and 12 to the consolidated financial
statements for the related disclosures.

As at 31 December 2020, the provision for impairment of trade
receivables amounted to HK$40.3 million, of which HK$27.9 million
was attributable to customers located in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC"). Provision is made for lifetime expected credit losses on
trade receivables.

Customers located in the PRC generally have a slower settlement
pattern and may settle after the contractual credit period. Management
applied judgement in assessing the expected credit losses. Receivables
relating to customers with known financial difficulties or significant
doubt on collection of receivables are assessed individually for provision
for impairment allowance. Expected credit losses are also estimated
by grouping the remaining receivables based on the shared credit risk
characteristics and collectively assessed for the likelihood of recovery,
taking into account the nature of the customer, its geographical
location and its ageing category, and applying expected credit loss
rates to the respective gross carrying amounts of the receivables.
The expected credit loss rates are determined based on the historical
credit losses experienced and are adjusted to reflect current and
forward-looking information such as macroeconomic factors affecting
the ability of the customers to settle the receivables.

We focused on auditing the provision for impairment of trade
receivables because the estimation of recoverable amount is subject to
high degree of estimation uncertainty. The inherent risk in relation to
the determining of the expected credit losses allowance of the trade
receivables is considered significant due to subjectivity of significant
assumptions used, and significant judgements involved in selecting
data.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)
BYRAMBRSE (&)

Key Audit Matters (Continued)

BEEtEE (E)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

We obtained an understanding of the management'’s internal control
and assessment process of estimating the provision for impairment
of trade receivables and assessed the inherent risk of material
misstatement by considering the degree of estimation uncertainty and
level of other inherent risk factors.

We evaluated the outcome of prior period assessment of provision
for impairment of trade receivables to assess the effectiveness of
management'’s estimation process.

We evaluated and test the key controls over the provision for
impairment of trade receivables. We understood and validated the
credit control procedures performed by management, including
its procedures on periodic review on aged trade receivables and
assessment on the expected credit losses allowance of trade
receivables. We tested on a sample basis, the accuracy of ageing profile
of trade receivables by checking to the underlying sales invoices. We
tested on sample basis, the subsequent settlement of trade receivables
against bank receipts. We obtained and challenged management'’s
assessment on the expected credit losses allowance of receivables. We
corroborated and validated management’s assessment based on the
historical settlement pattern, correspondence with the customers and
market research regarding the relevant forward-looking information
such as macroeconomic factors used in management’s assessment.

We also considered whether the judgements made in selecting the
methods, significant assumptions and data would give rise to indicators
of possible management bias.

Based upon the above, we considered that management’s judgements
and assumptions applied in the assessment of expected credit losses
allowance for the provision for impairment of trade receivables were
supportable by the evidence obtained and procedures performed.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all of the information included in the
annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)
BYRAMBRSE (&)

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Ming Fai International Holdings Limited e Annual Report 2020
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. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about
the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the
public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Wong Ka Keung, Johnny.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 25 March 2021
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
SEEEEER

As at 31 December W+ =-A=+—H

2020 2019
—E-EF —T-NEF
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
i3 THExT AT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets IRBEE
Goodwill S 9(a) 10,633 10,354
Property, plant and equipment ME - BENMERE 6 450,971 400,631
Right-of-use assets B RAEEE 7(a) 111,707 108,692
Investment property wEYE 8 15,451 13,707
Intangible assets mILEE 9(b) 773 1,512
Deferred income tax assets RIEFTISTHEE 10 2,703 3,850
Other non-current assets HMIEmRBEE 15 11,991 24,146
Investment in an associated company R—HEBEAANEE 5,831 5,869
Investments in joint ventures RELELENKRE 387 363
Other financial assets REESHRK AT AR 2
at amortised cost EemERE 14 308 425
Total non-current assets kRBEELTE 610,755 569,549
Current assets REEE
Inventories =7E 11 241,670 271,064
Other current assets HMnshEE 15 41,130 39,801
Tax recoverable AT 4 [E1 7% 18 469 194
Other financial assets R AR BR 2
at amortised cost HismiEE 14 12,390 12,363
Amounts due from joint ventures S & ERIE 35 581 35
Amount due from an associated company  f& U — & B & A B 5K 18 13 2,969 5,046
Trade and bills receivables EWE SGRANERE 12 499,531 591,749
Short-term bank deposits RHEIIRT TR 16 986 295
Cash and cash equivalents HeNIRSEEIER 17 392,954 348,849
Total current assets REBEEARE 1,192,680 1,269,396
Total assets EEAR 1,803,435 1,838,945
EQUITY i
Equity attributable to owners of AATEEA
the Company Bl
Share capital B& K 20 7.343 7,343
Reserves G 1,216,023 1,139,045
Final dividend proposed BERARE 32 11,014 22,028
1,234,380 1,168,416
Non-controlling interests eV RE = (42,046) (37,510)
Total equity RS 1,192,334 1,130,906

Ming Fai International Holdings Limited

e Annual Report 2020



CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED)
REEEBEBR(E)
As at 31 December R+=—A=+—H

2020 2019
—E-EHF —F-hF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Kt FET FABTT
LIABILITIES afE
Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Deferred income tax liabilities RIEFTSTHAE 10 5,412 7,361
Other non-current payables H4b3E B E T 3R 23 10,363 6,495
Borrowings =Y 21 3,380 1,120
Lease liabilities HEaE 7(a) 4,998 2,929
Total non-current liabilities ERBEEHEEE 24,153 17,905
Current liabilities REEE
Trade payables BE SRR 22 137,954 226,430
Accruals and other payables fExtE R R E M EN RIE 23 284,514 332,166
Current income tax liabilities BNEAFr R A E 24,031 43,395
Borrowings EN=Y 21 117,721 65,303
Lease liabilities HEBaE 7(a) 5,035 5,208
Loans from non-controlling interests ®H 3H SHEZE B 24 17,518 17,446
Dividends payable ERIR B 175 186
_Total current liabilites ~~~~~~~~~ #B&f#A® 000000000 586,948 690,134
Total liabilities BEHAHE 611,101 708,039
Total equity and liabilities BERREE 1,803,435 1,838,945
The consolidated financial statements on page 62 to 148 were approved $62E148HMGAMBHREAN T - —F=

by the Board of Directors on 25 March 2021 and were signed on its A -+ AAKEFeHETHUTEETKER

behalf. #=E o
CHING Chi Fai CHING Tsun Wah
BEE BRE
Director Director
EZE EZE

BEREEEN M E— 6

The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in conjunction with ~ F 4R & & &
the accompanying notes. B o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
e EE WS R

For the year ended 31 December HE+-—A=+—HLFE

2020 2019
—B-EF —T-NEF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
k=3 FERT T
Revenue WA 5 1,353,099 2,043,095
Cost of sales & A A 25 (989,613) (1,546,839)
Gross profit EF 363,486 496,256
Other income HAw U A 26 35,731 11,114
Distribution costs 2 EHR A 25 (172,309) (243,468)
Administrative expenses TR 25 (110,139) (127,813)
Net impairment losses on financial assets 4 i & B3 (B 5 18)F 58 25 (14,554) (9,701)
Operating profit Fed—pi=p 102,215 126,388
Finance income B 7 WA 28 1,042 1,515
Finance costs B 7% B AN 28 (2,912) (1,754)
Share of profit of an associated company — F&1f — s B & 2 =13 £ 381 897
Share of profit of a joint venture B —RHa&rERN 24 56
Fair value gain on an investment property —IBREWZE 2 AFEWRZ=E 8 787 -
Profit before income tax Rat B SB AR T 101,537 127,102
Income tax expenses FTiS i X2 30 (26,937) (35,022)
Profit for the year FERA 74,600 92,080
Other comprehensive income/(loss) HazmEmks (BiE)
Items that may be subsequently HEGEES A EE
reclassified to profit or loss Ba 2 HE
Currency translation differences BEEHREES 22,443 (6,894)
Realisation of exchange reserve upon BREUHT B A A B
dissolution of subsidiaries IR PE 3 A (6,490) (1,280)
Total comprehensive income FEZE
for the year W58 90,553 83,906
Profit/(loss) attributable to: FEAER (B18) :
Owners of the Company KANBEA A 79,046 97,936
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR RE S (4,446) (5,856)
74,600 92,080
Total comprehensive income/(loss) EiE2ERE S (BER)
attributable to: # :
Owners of the Company FiN/NETE ¥ =N 95,089 89,469
Non-controlling interests FEIE R (4,536) (5,563)
90,553 83,906
Earnings per share attributable to ARREEA
owners of the Company EEERAER
(expressed in HK cents) (AL 5 R)
Basic BN 31(a) 10.8 13.5
Diluted e 31(b) 10.8 13.4

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should be il 43 & & 1 U 25 & /& B2 BB BY 2 MY 5% — 6f
read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. FE o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGEShI[\l/ EQUITY
GEREREER

For the year ended 31 December #HE+Z—A=+—HLFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARARRARE
Shares held
for the
share award Non-
Share  scheme (the Share Other controlling Total
capital  "Scheme”) premium reserves Sub-total interests equity
RROZE
it ([5r81))
Rx  &EZRf ktiag Rt fite Nt FERER Y

HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn TR TiEn TiEn

Balance at 1 January 2019 RZB-NE-B-A2&H 728 (6,051) 609,548 511778 1,122,557 (32027 1,090,530
Comprehensive income/(loss) 2ENE/ (F8)
Profit{oss) fo the year AEEET/ (B58) - - - 97,936 97,936 (5,856) 92,080
Other comprehensive (loss)/income £t 2 (B18) /&
Currency translation differences ERBEER - - - (7.187) (7.187) 93 (6,804)
Realisation of exchange reseve upon BB R ARES

dissolution of subsidiaries =1 - - - (1,280) (1,280) - (1,280)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) ~ 2E W%/ (B8 % - - - 89,469 89,469 (5,563) 83,906
Exercise of share options (Note 19(3) 77 BERRIE (7:2194) 61 - 3713 - 3,774 - 3,774
Final dividend relating o 2018 “T-\EEZRERE - - - (36,442) (36,442) - (36,44)
Interim dividend relating to 2019 “E-NEEzRERE - - - (10942) (10,942) - (10,942)
Non-controlling interest arising on WE-AHBRAREL,

acquisition of a subsidiary FERiER - - - - - 80 80
Balance at R-B-AE+ZA=1-A

31 December 2019 28 7343 (6,051) 613,261 553,863 1,168,416 (37510) 1,130,906
Balance at 1 January 2020 RZBZRE-F-EER 1383 (6,051) 613,261 553863 1,168,416 (375100 1,130,906
Comprehensive income/(loss) 2ENE/ (B8
Profit/loss) for the year RNEEEHN/ (B8) - - - 79,046 79,046 (4,446) 74,600
Other comprehensive income/(loss) £t 2E MR/ (F8)
Currency translation differences EHBEET - - - 2533 22,533 (90) 2,443
Realisation of exchange reserve upon — EH—RIKEAABER

dissolution of a subsidiary EHfHE - - - (6,490) (6,490) - (6,490)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) ~ 2E W% / (B % - - - 95,089 95,089 (4,536) 90,553
Final dividend relating to 2019 “E-NEECRERE

(Note 32) Witz2) - - - (21,865) (21,865) - (21,865)
Interim dividend relating to 2020 “SCSEEPHRE

(Note 32) (W2 - - - (7,260) (7,260) - (7,260)
Balance at R-B_RE+ZA=1-H

31 December 2020 i3 7343 (6,051) 613,261 619,827 1,234,380 (42,046) 1,192,334

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be read in kit 47 & #E 25 & B 5% J& B2 5 [ff =2 Bt 5% — f
conjunction with the accompanying notes. B -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

n‘l-_r\ EE%/)“:E%

For the year ended 31 December HE+-—A=+—HLFE

2020 2019
—B-EF —T—hF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt &t FTHET FAT
Cash flows from operating activities RETHHRERE
Cash generated from operations IR KK e 2 B 1D T A 33(a) 151,295 252,663
Interests paid B A (2,912) (1,754)
Income tax paid BTSN (48,266) (15,811)
Net cash generated from operating RETHRE
activities RE&FEHE 100,117 235,098
Cash flows from investing activities RETHNESRE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BAME - BERH (90,516) (136,082)
Purchase of right-of-use assets BAGHEEE - (6,840)
Purchase of intangible assets BAEREE (515) (1,064)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME  BERRE
plant and equipment Fri8 A 33(b) 628 4,805
Payment for business combination, EBAMONENR - Mk
net of cash acquired BWENER® - (956)
Interests received L&) 1,042 1,515
Short-term bank deposits with maturity FIHIBERIE = A A S E
over 3 months RITIF K (655) 226
Dividends received from an associated Bl —H s QA
company % 8 397 472
Net cash used in investing activities RETBFTAREEHE (89,619) (137,924)
Cash flows from financing activities RETBNRERE
Proceeds from borrowings BEEmEHE 33(c) 79,603 46,968
Repayments of borrowings BEEE 33(c) (24,880) (16,878)
Principal elements of lease payments HEN TR LI 33(c) (5.645) (5,420)
Dividends paid to Company’s shareholders ERATARR R R B (29,136) (47,374)
Proceeds from loans from KB 3H Hﬂ% mERH
non-controlling interests FT{8 33(c) - 500
Proceeds from exercise of share options 11 ﬁ%ﬂx%ﬁﬂ% A 19(a) - 3,774
Net cash generated from/(used in) METEHME
financing activities (FTA)BEEFE 19,942 (18,430)
Net increase in RekEELEEER
cash and cash equivalents B HNFEE 30,440 78,744
Cash and cash equivalents FYRe LB
at the beginning of the year £EEH 348,849 272,478
Exchange gain/(loss) on cash and RekREFEEAN
cash equivalents BE 5 e, (E518) 13,665 (2,373)
Cash and cash equivalents FRNBEERESE
at the end of the year ZE®EA 17 392,954 348,849
The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in 42 & IR 4 % & & FE B2 BE O 2 Bt 5= — OF
conjunction with the accompanying notes. FE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL INFORMATION

Ming Fai International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is an
investment holding company. Its subsidiaries are principally engaged
in manufacturing and trading of hospitality supplies products,
trading of operating supplies and equipment and manufacturing
and trading of health care and hygienic products.

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 29
May 2007 as an exempted company with limited liability under
the Companies Law (2007 Revision) of the Cayman lIslands. Its
registered address is at the offices of M&C Corporate Services
Limited, P.O. Box 309GT, Ugland House, South Church Street,
George Town, Grand Cayman, Cayman Islands.

The Company has its primary listing on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands
of units of Hong Kong dollars (“HK$'000"), unless otherwise stated.
These consolidated financial statements have been approved for
issue by the board of directors (the “Board”) on 25 March 2021.

Significant changes in the current reporting period

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the outbreak of the
novel coronavirus (“COVID-19") had posed unprecedent challenges
to the Group’s business and impacted the Group’s Hospitality
Supplies Business and Operating Supplies and Equipment (“OS&E")
Business. In response, the Group has expanded the production of
its health care and hygienic products, such as disinfectant spray
products, alcoholic instant hand sanitizers and 3-ply disposable face
masks (Note 5).

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies
adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the
years presented, unless otherwise stated. The financial statements
are for the Group consisting of the Company and its subsidiaries.

(a) Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"”) and the applicable
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by
the revaluation of an investment property, which is carried at
fair value.

e IR ERR MR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MBHEEME (R)

PEDN

Fiy

2

(=)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(b) New and amended standards adopted by the
Group

The Group has applied the following standards and
amendments for the first time for their annual reporting
period commencing 1 January 2020:

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 — Definition of
Material;

Amendments to HKFRS 3 — Definition of a Business;

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 —
Interest Rate Benchmark Reform; and

Revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting.

The Group also elected to adopt the following amendment

early:

Amendments to HKFRS 16 — Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions

The impacts of early adoption of Amendments to HKFRS
16 are disclosed below. The other new standards and
amendments did not have any material impact on the Group's
accounting policies and did not require any adjustment.

(1)

New standard early adopted by the Group

The Group has early adopted Amendments to HKFRS
16 - Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions retrospectively
from 1 January 2020. The amendments provide an
optional practical expedient allowing lessees to elect
not to assess whether a rent concession related to
COVID-19 is a lease modification. Lessees adopting this
election may account for qualifying rent concessions
in the same way as they would if they were not lease
modifications. The practical expedient only applies to
rent concessions occurring as a direct consequence of
the COVID-19 pandemic and only if all of the following
conditions are met:

- the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the
same as, or less than, the consideration for the
lease immediately preceding the change;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(b) New and amended standards adopted by the
Group (Continued)

(1)

New standard early adopted by the Group
(Continued)

- any reduction in lease payments affects only
payments due on or before 30 June 2021; and

- there is no substantive change to other terms and
conditions of the lease.

The Group has applied the practical expedient to the
qualifying COVID-19-related rent concessions. Rent
concessions of approximately HK$128,000 have been
accounted for as negative variable lease payments and
recognised in other lease expenses in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income for the year ended
31 December 2020, with corresponding adjustment to
the lease liabilities. There is no impact on the Group’s
retained earnings as at 1 January 2020.

(c) New standards and interpretations not yet
adopted

(d)

Certain new accounting standards and interpretations have
been published that are not mandatory for the reporting
period during the year ended 31 December 2020 and have
not been early adopted by the Group. These standards are
not expected to have a material impact on the Group in the
current or future reporting periods and on foreseeable future
transactions.

Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting

(1)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities)
over which the Group has control. The Group controls
an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights
to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power to direct the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries
are fully consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from
the date that control ceases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBRRME (E)

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(d) Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (Continued)

(1)

(ii)

(i)

Subsidiaries (Continued)
The acquisition method of accounting is used to

account for business combinations by the Group (refer
to Note 2(e)).

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of
the transferred asset. Accounting policies of subsidiaries
have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of
subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated
balance sheet respectively.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has
significant influence but not control or joint control. This
is generally the case where the Group holds between
20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in
associates are accounted for using the equity method of
accounting (refer to Note 2(d)(iv) below), after initially
being recognised at cost.

Joint arrangements

Under HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements, investments
in joint arrangements are classified as either joint
operations or joint ventures. The classification depends
on the contractual rights and obligations of each
investor, rather than the legal structure of the joint
arrangement. The Group has investments in joint
ventures.

Joint ventures

Investments in joint ventures are accounted for using
the equity method (refer to Note 2(d)(iv) below), after
initially being recognised at cost in the consolidated
balance sheet.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBERME (E)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(d) Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (Continued)

(iv) Equity accounting

v)

Under the equity method of accounting, the
investments are initially recognised at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the
post-acquisition profits or losses of the investee in
profit or loss, and the Group’s share of movements in
other comprehensive income of the investee in other
comprehensive income. Dividends received or receivable
from associates and joint ventures are recognised as a
reduction in the carrying amount of the investment.

When the Group’s share of losses in an equity-accounted
investment equals or exceeds its interest in the entity,
including any other unsecured long-term receivables,
the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it
has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of
the other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its associates and joint ventures are eliminated
to the extent of the Group's interest in these entities.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of
the asset transferred. Accounting policies of equity
accounted investees have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted investments
is tested for impairment in accordance with the policy
described in Note 2(m).

Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling
interests that do not result in a loss of control as
transactions with equity owners of the Group. A
change in ownership interest results in an adjustment
between the carrying amounts of the controlling and
non-controlling interests to reflect their relative interests
in the subsidiary. Any difference between the amount
of the adjustment to non-controlling interests and
any consideration paid or received is recognised in a
separate reserve within equity attributable to owners of
the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBRRME (E)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(d) Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (Continued)

(v)  Changes in ownership interests (Continued)

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity
account for an investment because of a loss of control,
joint control or significant influence, any retained
interest in the entity is re-measured to its fair value
with the change in carrying amount recognised in
profit or loss. This fair value becomes the initial carrying
amount for the purposes of subsequently accounting
for the retained interest as an associate, joint venture
or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in respect
of that entity are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This
may mean that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss
or transferred to another category of equity as specified/
permitted by applicable HKFRSs.

If the ownership interest in a joint venture or an
associate is reduced but joint control or significant
influence is retained, only a proportionate share of the
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss where
appropriate.

(e) Business combinations
The acquisition method of accounting is used to account
for all business combinations, regardless of whether equity
instruments or other assets are acquired. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the:

o fair values of the assets transferred;

o liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquired
business;

o equity interests issued by the Group;

o fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement; and

o fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the
subsidiary.

Ming Fai International Holdings Limited e Annual Report 2020

2

BEASTHERE @

(d) E&REZRSTER @

(e)

) HEEERZE )

i 75 52 1) () 3R Sk 4 b 4 -
RIEFIEREAZE M
BREERE AR B ED
FARR ERZERMOEMA
REBERRE NP EEN
B MEEEEFINER
MR © BLEE 18 A BR 51 (F B
BN RELEAERE
ENREEDEMS AFE
L EREE - BN - BA
A EL Ath 22 T U PO RR B R
ERABEN T REEL
AEBEERHERREE
FABENHTAAR - EA B
ERZAMAEEMBEEA
NERNSEENE D B
MNEER ABBEERE
B BREERPTEE N
ARV — BB A o

HREERELHE RN
mERERR D EHRFE
PRAEATENERE
A1 55 AT A E Al 2 1 U A P B
RNEREE TS
B /AENHER (N
HEA) e

EBast
FREXBEHAERREEA
SEFARKR M2 D KR A
TAXHEMBEE - WHEHNEB QA
MRERR

s HBREEMNAFME:

o WEBXBAEAAMELD
afE:

o AKEIFEITHORE

o HAKREBLRBAELNEIM
BEXRERTFE: &

o ZMBARRMEMEMFE
BV HE AT E -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBERME (E)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EASHBEHMEm@m
POLICIES (Continued)

(e) ¥BE/t@

(e) Business combinations (Continued)

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are, with limited
exceptions, measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. The Group recognises any non-controlling
interest in the acquired entity on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquired entity’s net identifiable
assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
The excess of the:
° consideration transferred;

o amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquired
entity; and

o acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest
in the acquired entity

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are less than the fair
value of the net identifiable assets of the business acquired,
the difference is recognised directly in profit or loss as a
bargain purchase.

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is
deferred, the amounts payable in the future are discounted to
their present value as at the date of exchange. The discount
rate used is the entity’s incremental borrowing rate, being
the rate at which a similar borrowing could be obtained
from an independent financier under comparable terms and
conditions. Contingent consideration is classified either as
equity or a financial liability. Amounts classified as a financial
liability are subsequently re-measured to fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured to fair
value at the acquisition date. Any gains or losses arising from
such re-measurement are recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBRRME (E)

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

()

(9)

(h)

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of
the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker,
who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been identified
as the Board that makes strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation

(i)  Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in HK$, which is the
Company’s functional and the Group’s presentation
currency.

(i)  Transactions and balances
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions or valuation where
items are re-measured.

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBERME (E)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EASTHBEBME@®
POLICIES (Continued)
(h) Foreign currency translation (Continued) (h) HEBRE @
(iii)  Group companies (i) FE 2 A]
The results and financial position of all the group entities N BB A RN 25K
(none of which has the currency of a hyper-inflationary AESEER (EhIEE
economy) that have a functional currency different M EEHEBRREENLE
from the presentation currency are translated into the BENE®) WEELRRB
presentation currency as follows: MR HIRAT AR BRER
25| E¥
e assets and liabilities for each balance sheet e RNBEBEEBBXRZEIN
presented are translated at the closing rate at the BENBEDNREWRE
date of that balance sheet; SRR TERRE
e income and expenses for each statement of e  EEXEKEEHMZT
comprehensive income are translated at average REHEXRBE (BRI
exchange rates (unless this average is not a ZFHEWIES I AL
reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect MRS AMITERN R
of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in BB EZBERAT
which case income and expenses are translated at WERNERR S BEHE
the dates of the transactions); and RE) &
e all resulting currency translation differences are e MMEEMELAMNEX
recognised in other comprehensive income. fEHEZRENEAMEE
Wa P HERR ©
Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the WHE/BINE B PTE £ Y P &
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and RAFEARSEREINER
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the MEENRBBRE  WIZK
closing rate. Currency translation differences arising are MEXHBE - EANEEKR
recognised in other comprehensive income. %%%ﬁﬁ@ﬁ@%@”ﬁlﬁ?ﬂﬂ tE
(iv) Disposal of foreign operation and partial (v) HEFIIRFELRLE
disposal F8 7 1 m
On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a M EENER (BN &R
disposal of the Group's entire interest in a foreign SRR -HBINEBH I
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control over a G e N S =
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, a disposal XA B A w3 H R
involving loss of joint control over a joint venture that B P RKREBE—EHE
includes a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss INETH —Ha & REHRRA
of significant influence over an associate that includes EHIEREES  sr RK L
a foreign operation), all of the currency translation HESEINEBS — M E
differences accumulated in equity in respect of that NAEATENNHE) R
operation attributable to the owners of the Company RNAORER ARG AME
are reclassified to profit or loss. B ER R E B #R
HERSEHHEEER -

MF K S e i S T B B EE iR DD D 3 4 -

In the case of a partial disposal that does not result Mk E RS ST g E R
in the Group losing control over a subsidiary that SEREHBEBIEBTH
includes a foreign operation, the proportionate share DN EzS I o n
of accumulated currency translation difference is DM EFERREZES
re-attributed to non-controlling interests and is not MBEEERER  BETE
recognised in profit or loss. For all other partial disposals 18 % TR o Bt AT A H fh &T
(that is, reductions in the Group’s ownership interest D& (B & B R B
in associates or joint ventures that do not result in the ENRNEEDENERE
Group losing significant influence or joint control), R M EEFARE
the proportionate share of the accumulated exchange EBEARE KRR
difference is reclassified to profit or loss. HlHE) RLEBIFDHAR

FHEN ZREEFROREER

RERRZERARAR o —FT -_TFFH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBRRME (E)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(i)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component
accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when
replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income during
the financial year in which they are incurred.

Depreciation for buildings is calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate cost over its estimated useful lives of 20
years.

Depreciation for other property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost
over their estimated useful lives, at the following rates per
annum:

Leasehold improvements  Shorter of 10 years or lease period

Plant and machinery 10% - 33%

Motor vehicles 20%
Furniture and fixtures 33%
Computer equipment 33%

The assets’ residual value and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
proceeds with carrying amount and are recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Construction in progress represents property, plant and
equipment under construction or pending installation, and is
stated at cost less impairment losses. Cost comprises direct
costs of construction including borrowing costs attributable
to the construction during the period of construction. No
provision for depreciation is made on construction in progress
until such time as the relevant assets are completed and ready
for intended use.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

()

(k)

Investment property

Investment property that is held for long-term rental yields
or for capital appreciation or both and is not occupied by the
Group.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including
related transaction costs. Subsequently, it is carried at fair
value, representing open market value determined annually
by external valuer. Fair value is based on active market prices,
adjusted, if necessary, for any difference in the nature,
location or condition of the specific asset. If this information
is not available, the Group uses alternative valuation methods
such as recent prices from less active markets or discounted
cash flow projections. These valuations are reviewed annually
by external valuer with changes in fair values recorded in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an
investment property because its use has changed, any
difference resulting between the carrying amount and the
fair value of this item at the date of transfer is recognised
in equity as a revaluation of property, plant and equipment.
However, if a fair value gain reverses a previous impairment
loss, the gain is recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Goodwill

Goodwill is measured as described in Note 2(e). Goodwill
is not amortised but it is tested for impairment annually,
or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that it might be impaired, and is carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. Gains and losses on the
disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwill
relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units (“CGUs") for
the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is made to
those CGUs or groups of CGUs that are expected to benefit
from the business combination in which the goodwill arose.
The units or groups of units are identified at the lowest level
at which goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes, being the operating segments (Note 5).
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REMBRRME (E)

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

)

Intangible assets

(i) Trademarks, investment in club debentures and
software licences
Separately acquired trademarks, investment in club
debentures and software licences are shown at historical
cost. They have a finite useful life and are subsequently
carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses.

Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate the cost of trademarks, investment in club
debentures and software licences over their estimated
useful lives of 5 to 10 years.

(i)  Operating licence
Operating licence acquired in a business combination is
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. It has a
finite useful life and is subsequently carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.

Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line
method over the expected life of the operating licence
of 2 years.

(m) Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to
amortisation and are tested annually for impairment, or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that they might be impaired. Other assets are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which
the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows
which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other
assets or groups of assets (CGUs). Non-financial assets other
than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at each balance sheet
date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(m) Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

(n)

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries, an
associated company or joint ventures is required upon
receiving dividends from these investments if the dividend
exceeds the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary,
associated company or joint venture in the period the dividend
is declared or if the carrying amount of the investment in the
separate financial statements exceeds the carrying amount
in the consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net
assets including goodwill.

Financial assets

(i)

Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

o those to be measured subsequently at fair value
(either through other comprehensive income, or
through profit or loss); and

o those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the Group’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses
will either be recorded in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income. For investments in equity
instruments that are not held for trading, this will
depend on whether the Group has made an irrevocable
election at the time of initial recognition to account
for the equity investment at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVOCI").

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only
when its business model for managing those assets
changes.

FEMBHRRME (F)

2 EBEASTHHEHBE@

(m) FERE EBE@®

(n)

RAEERZERERAR o

HIREMBAR BEQAFLAE
BEWIRNA S BBHEBATE -
BERAHAEEENBREEIK
H P 49 22 T WA 28 48 RR K fis 98 2 Bt
BHRETFNRENEEEBBR
EHREERE (BREBE) XK
EMBHRRTOREE  ARK
HEREWT R EREAHKERQ
Al BEARHEELENRE

EITREAIE o

TREE

(/) /\#E
REEBESREERIAT
STEEMNSE

.« BREAFMESECF
3T A K A 2 2
A AR | K

o IHEHKAFE -
DBEDBURRASHER S

MEEZEHBEARBER
BEZANMGK-

@

BREATEAEZAEM
- W s &JEHE#HEATE 53
H b 2= H Wz o B I
HT’FEEZHxﬁIE&xé{ﬁﬁ
5 EARSEORARAEH
RN FEREE S A HE
IR B AR AP EF A A
2mEilsE ((EAFEFAR
2 mEU R ]) 2 77 A AR A
BREANK -

un\

\|

3

DH

EREEAKSEERATR
BZEBRAEHE - K&
BASREEESEH DM -

—E_TFFR

79



80

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBRRME (E)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(n) Financial assets (Continued)

(ii)

(i)

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets
are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows
from the financial assets have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership.

Measurement

The Group measures a financial asset at its fair value
plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVPL"), transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset. Transaction costs of financial asset
carried at FVPL are expensed in profit or loss.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends
on the Group'’s business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There
are three measurement categories to classify the debt
instruments:

(1) Amortised cost
Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest are
measured at amortised cost. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in finance
income using the effective interest rate method.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is
recognised directly in profit or loss. Impairment
losses are presented as separate line item in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Ming Fai International Holdings Limited e Annual Report 2020

2

BEASTHERE @

(n) THMEE @)

(ir)

(i)

58 R AR UL TE AR

EHUBREENSREE
KRR EHR ZEAEE
BAHWBERHEEEER -
ERKERMEERSREL
RANEEmREEMAEE
EEEZRCREEREGR
ZBA B BB K B R
FRTMEESPURMER

i E
AEEZEAFEM (B
BT EFARS (KA
Bet AR 2 & BAEM
SEECREEERELS
ZRERAFTECTREE -
BERFEFABRSCSHE
ERZKANBREASH °

EFTA
B TEZBERAETIEOR
RAEEEREEZEKRE
ANEEZRERERFE-
BEHTEZ2BED R={E5
E85 -

(1) HERAK
REBMEHNRERE
(MZEFREREMAK
RARE BB m
FAZEETREIHEK
AErE-WEFEMEE
Z R B WAL ERF
FORFT AR BN - &
PR E L 2 AR
BRIV E RN Ea e
R BEBEREAER
HRERBLZ2S S
(ERERER



2

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(n) Financial assets (Continued)

(iif)  Measurement (Continued)
Debt instruments (Continued)

(iv)

)

FVOCI

Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows and for selling the financial assets,
where the assets’ cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest, are measured
at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount
are taken through other comprehensive income,
except for the recognition of impairment gains
or losses, interest income and foreign exchange
gains and losses which are recognised in profit or
loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in
other comprehensive income is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in finance income using
the effective interest rate method. Impairment
expenses are presented as separate line item in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

FVPL

Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised
cost or FVOCI are measured at FVPL. A gain or
loss on a debt investment that is subsequently
measured at FVPL is recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which it arises.

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis
the expected credit losses associated with its debt
instruments carried at amortised cost. The impairment
methodology applied depends on whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade and bills receivables, amount due from an
associated company and amounts due from joint
ventures, the Group applies the simplified approach
permitted by HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (“HKFRS
9"), which requires expected lifetime losses to be
recognised from initial recognition of the receivables.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBRRME (E)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(o)

(p)

(a)

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the consolidated balance sheet when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events
and must be enforceable in the normal course of business
and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
Company or the counterparty.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is assigned to individual items of inventory on the
basis of weighted average method. The cost of finished goods
and work in progress comprises raw materials, direct labour,
other direct costs and related production overheads based on
normal operating capacity.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling
and distribution costs necessary to make the sale.

Trade, bills and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary course
of business. If collection of trade, bills and other receivables is
expected in one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle
of the business if longer), they are classified as current assets.
If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount
of consideration that is unconditional unless they contain
significant financing components, when they are recognised
at fair value. The Group holds the trade receivables with the
objective to collect the contractual cash flows and therefore
measures them subsequently at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less provision for impairment.

When a trade receivable is uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account for trade receivables.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(r)

(s)

(t)

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with
banks with original maturities of three months or less.

Trade and other payables

Trade payables represent liabilities for goods or services
provided to the Group prior to the end of financial year which
are unpaid. Trade and other payable are classified as current
liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they
are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are unsecured, recognised initially
at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair values, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value
is recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that
it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw-down
occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee
is capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity services and
amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the consolidated balance sheet
when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged,
cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying
amount of a financial liability that has been extinguished
or transferred to another party and the consideration
paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities
assumed, is recognised in profit or loss as other income or
finance costs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

GERBHERRME (F)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

(t)

(u)

(v)

Borrowings (Continued)

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability
for at least twelve months after the balance sheet date.

Borrowing cost

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a
qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of time that
is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended
use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred.

Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax
payable on the current period’s taxable income based on the
applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by
changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to
temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of
the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date in the countries where the Company and its
subsidiaries, associated company and joint ventures operate
and generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate
on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(v) Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is recognized in full, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the consolidated financial statements. However, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from initial
recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the balance sheet date and are
expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset
is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available to
utilize those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred income tax liabilities and assets are not recognised
for temporary differences between the carrying amount
and tax bases of investments in subsidiaries, an associated
company and joint ventures, where the company is able to
control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that the differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
and liabilities and when the deferred income taxes balances
relate to the same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except
to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the
tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBRRME (E)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(w) Employee benefits

(i)  Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service
leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision, where appropriate, is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long-service leave as a
result of services rendered by employees up to the
balance sheet date.

(i)  Bonus entitlements
The expected cost of bonus payments is recognised
as a liability when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of services rendered
by employees and a reliable estimate of the obligation
can be made.

Liabilities for bonus are expected to be settled within
twelve months and are measured at the amounts
expected to be paid when they are settled.

(iii)  Pension obligations

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under
which the Group pays fixed contributions into a
separate entity. The Group has no legal or constructive
obligations to pay further contributions if the fund
does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the
benefits relating to employee service in the current and
prior periods. A defined benefit plan is a pension plan
that is not a defined contribution plan.

Typically defined benefit plans define an amount
of pension benefit that an employee will receive on
retirement, usually dependent on one or more factors
such as age, years of service and compensation.

The Group companies in the People’s Republic of
China (the "PRC") participate in defined contribution
retirement benefit plans organised by relevant
government authorities for its employees in the PRC and
contribute to these plans based on certain percentage
of the salaries of the employees on a monthly basis, up
to a maximum fixed monetary amount, as stipulated by
the relevant government authorities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(w) Employee benefits (Continued)

(iif)

(iv)

v)

Pension obligations (Continued)

The government authorities undertake to assume the
retirement benefit obligations payable to all existing and
future retired employees under these plans.

The group companies in Hong Kong participate in a
mandatory provident fund scheme (“MPF Scheme”) for
its employees in Hong Kong. MPF Scheme is a defined
contribution scheme in accordance with the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance. Under the rules
of MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are
required to contribute 5% of the employees’ salaries,
up to a maximum of HK$1,500 per employee per
month. The assets of MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the group companies in an independently
administered fund.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is
terminated by the Group before the normal retirement
date, or whenever an employee accepts voluntary
redundancy in exchange for these benefits. The Group
recognises termination benefits when it is demonstrably
committed to a termination when the entity has a
detailed formal plan to terminate the employment of
current employee without possibility of withdrawal.
In the case of an offer made to encourage voluntary
redundancy, the termination benefits are measured
based on the number of employees expected to accept
the offer. Benefits falling due more than 12 months
after balance sheet date are discounted to their present
value.

Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan, under which the entity receives
services from employees as consideration for equity
instruments (shares or options) of the Company. The
fair value of the employee services received in exchange
for the grant of the shares or options is recognised
as an expense. The total amount to be expensed is
determined by reference to the fair value of the shares
or options granted:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

GERBHERRME (F)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

(w) Employee benefits (Continued)
(v) Share-based compensation (Continued)

o including any market performance conditions (for
example, an entity’s share price);

o excluding the impact of any service and
non-market performance vesting conditions
(for example, profitability, sales growth targets
and remaining an employee of the entity over a
specified time period); and

o including the impact of any non-vesting conditions
(for example, the requirement for employees to
save).

Non-market vesting conditions are included in
assumptions about the number of options that are
expected to vest. The total expense is recognised over
the vesting period, which is the period over which all
of the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied.
At the end of each reporting period, the entity revises
its estimates of the number of options that are
expected to vest based on the non-marketing vesting
conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision to
original estimates, if any, in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, with a corresponding
adjustment to equity.

When the options are exercised, the Company issues
new shares. The proceeds received net of any directly
attributable transaction costs are credited to share
capital (nominal value) and share premium.

When the options are cancelled during vesting periods,
the Group recognises immediately the amount that
otherwise would have been recognised for services
received over the remainder of the vesting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(w) Employee benefits (Continued)

v)

Share-based compensation (Continued)

When the options are modified, the Group will include
the incremental fair value granted in the measurement
of the amount recognised for services received as
consideration for the equity instruments granted. The
incremental fair value granted is the difference between
the fair value of the modified equity instrument and that
of the original equity instrument, both estimated as at
the date of the modification. If the modification occurs
during the vesting period, the incremental fair value
granted is included in the measurement of the amount
recognised for services received over the period from
the modification date until the date when the modified
equity instruments vest, in addition to the amount
based on the grant date fair value of the original equity
instruments, which is recognised over the remainder of
the original vesting period. If the modification occurs
after vesting date, the incremental fair value granted is
recognised immediately.

The grant by the Company of options over its equity
instruments to the employees of subsidiary undertakings
in the Group is treated as a capital contribution. The
fair value of employee services received, measured by
reference to the grant date fair value, is recognised
over the vesting period as an increase to investment in
subsidiary undertakings, with a corresponding credit to
equity in the parent entity accounts.

(x) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events;
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating
losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole.
A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow
with respect to any one item included in the same class of
obligations may be small.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBRRME (E)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(x)

(y)

Provisions (Continued)

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
management’s best estimates of the expenditures required
to settle the present obligation of the end of the reporting
period. The discount rate used to determine the present value
is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability.
The increase in the provision due to passage of time is
recognised as interest expense.

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable for the sale of goods and services in the ordinary
course of the Group's activities. Revenue is shown net of
value-added tax, returns, rebates and discounts and after
eliminated sales within the Group.

(i)  Sales of goods
Sales are recognised when control of the products has
transferred, being when the products are delivered to
the customers, the customer has accepted the products,
the collection of the related consideration is probable
and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect
the customer’s acceptance of the products.

A receivable is recognised when the goods are delivered
as this is the point in time that the consideration is
unconditional because only the passage of time is
required before the payment is due.

A contract liability is recognised when a customer
pays consideration, or is contractually required to pay
consideration and the amount is already due, before
the Group recognises the related revenue. The Group
recognised its contract liabilities under accruals and
other payables as receipt in advance from customers in
the consolidated balance sheet.

(i) Rental income
Rental income from investment property is recognised
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease
term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(y) Revenue recognition (Continued)

(il) Interest income
Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method.

(z) Government grant

Grant from the government is recognised at its fair value
where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will
be received and the Group will comply with all attached
conditions.

Government grant relating to costs is deferred and recognised
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
over the period necessary to match it with the costs that it is
intended to compensate.

Government grant relating to property, plant and equipment
is included in accruals and other payables and is credited to
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on a
straight-line basis over the expected lives of the related assets.

(aa) Leases

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset is
available for use by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components.
The Group allocates the consideration in the contract to
the lease and non-lease components based on their relative
stand-alone prices. However, for leases of real estate for
which the Group is a lessee, it has elected not to separate
lease and non-lease components and instead accounts for
these as a single lease component.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBRRME (E)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(aa) Leases (Continued)

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured
on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net
present value of the following lease payments:

o fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments),
less any lease incentives receivable;

o variable lease payment that are based on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

o amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees;

o the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

o payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain
extension options are also included in the measurement of
the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined,
which is generally the case for leases in the Group, the
lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate
that the individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the
funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the
right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment with
similar terms, security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group uses
recent third-party financing received by the individual lessee
as a starting point, adjusted to reflect changes in financing
conditions since third party financing was received, nature of
the lease assets and the terms and conditions of the leases,
such as the lease periods and geographical locations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBERME (E)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EASHBEHMEm@m
POLICIES (Continued)

(aa) HE @)

(aa) Leases (Continued)

The Group is exposed to potential future increases in variable
lease payments based on an index or rate, which are not
included in the lease liability until they take effect. When
adjustments to lease payments based on an index or rate take
effect, the lease liability is reassessed and adjusted against the
right-of-use asset.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance
cost. The finance cost is charged to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income over the lease period
so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
following:

° the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability;
o prepayment;

° any initial direct costs; and

o restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter
of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line
basis. If the Group is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase
option, the right-of-use asset is depreciated over the
underlying asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as
an expense in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12
months or less.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group is a
lessor is recognised in income on a straight-line basis over
the lease term. Initial direct costs incurred in obtaining an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
underlying asset and recognised as expense over the lease
term on the same basis as lease income. The respective
leased assets are included in the consolidated balance sheet
based on their nature. The Group did not need to make any
adjustments to the accounting for assets held as lessor as a
result of adopting the new leasing standard.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBRRME (E)

2

3

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(ab) Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in
equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Where the Company’s shares are acquired from the market
by the Scheme (Note 19(b)), the total consideration of shares
acquired from the market (including any directly attributable
incremental costs) is presented as shares held for the Scheme
and deducted from total equity.

(ac) Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the Company’s
financial statements in the period in which the dividends are
approved by the Company’s shareholders or directors, where
appropriate.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(a) Financial risk factors

The Group'’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (including foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk
and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall
risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability
of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse
effects on the Group's financial performance.

(i)  Foreign exchange risk

The Group’s foreign currency transactions are mainly
denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”), HK$ and United
States dollars ("US$"). The majority of assets and
liabilities are denominated in RMB, HK$ and USS$,
and there are no significant assets and liabilities
denominated in other currencies. The Group is subject
to foreign exchange rate risk arising from future
commercial transactions and recognised assets and
liabilities which are denominated in a currency other
than HK$ or RMB, which are the functional currencies
of the major operating companies within the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

As HK$ is pegged to US$, management believes that
the exchange rate risk for translations between HK$ and
US$ does not have a material impact to the Group. The
exchange rate of RMB to HK$ is subject to the rules and
regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by
the PRC government.

This currency exposure is managed primarily through
sourcing raw materials denominated in the same
currency. The Group has not considered it appropriate
to substantially hedge against currency risks through
forward exchange contracts upon consideration of the
currency risk involved and the cost of obtaining such
cover.

At 31 December 2020, if HK$ had strengthened/
weakened by 5% against the RMB, with all other
variables held constant, post-tax profit for the year
would have been approximately HK$3,781,000,
higher or lower (for the year ended 31 December
2019: post-tax profit for the year would have been
approximately HK$3,267,000, higher or lower),
mainly as a result of foreign exchange differences on
translation of RMB denominated net payables.

At 31 December 2020, if RMB had strengthened/
weakened by 5% against the US$, with all other
variables held constant, post-tax profit for the year
would have been approximately HK$3,363,000,
lower or higher (for the year ended 31 December
2019: post-tax profit for the year would have been
approximately HK$6,747,000, lower or higher),
mainly as a result of foreign exchange differences on
translation of US$ denominated net receivables.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBRRME (E)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(ii)

(i)

(iv)

Ming Fai International Holdings Limited

Interest rate risk

The Group has cash balances placed with reputable
banks and financial institutions, which generate interest
income for the Group.

Borrowings at variable rates expose the Group to
cash flow interest-rate risk. Borrowings at fixed rates
and lease liabilities expose the Group to fair value
interest-rate risk. Details of the Group’s borrowings
have been disclosed in Note 21 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The Group has not used any interest rate swaps to
hedge its exposure to interest rate risk.

The Group analyses its interest rate exposure on a
dynamic basis. Various scenarios are simulated taking
into consideration of refinancing, renewal of existing
positions, and alternative financing. Based on these
scenarios, the Group calculates the impact on profit of
a defined interest rate shift. For each simulation, the
same interest rate shift is used. The scenarios are run
only for assets and liabilities that represent the major
interest-bearing positions.

Based on the simulations performed, the impact
on post-tax profit of a 100 basis-point shift would
be a maximum increase/decrease of approximately
HK$287,000 for the year ended 31 December 2020
(for the year ended 31 December 2019: approximately
HK$93,000) mainly as a result of change in interest
rates on short-term bank deposits and borrowings.

Price risk

The Group is not exposed to equity securities price risk
and commodity price risk.

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents,
short-term bank deposits, amount due from an
associated company, amounts due from joint ventures,
as well as credit exposures to trade and bills receivables
and other financial assets at amortised cost.

e Annual Report 2020
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(iv) Credit risk (Continued)
(1)  Risk management

)

Credit risk is managed on a group basis.
Management has policies in place to monitor the
exposures to these credit risks on an ongoing
basis.

The Group has put in place policies to ensure that
sales of products are made to customers with an
appropriate credit history and the Group performs
periodic credit evaluations of its customers based
on their past repayment patterns, latest business
developments and other factors. The Group’s
historical experience in collection of trade and bills
receivables falls within the recorded allowances.

The table below shows the credit limit and
balance of the five major debtors at 31 December
2020 and 31 December 2019.

W

FEMBHRRME (F)

3 H¥EARERE@m

Bt 7% JEL B (Rl & ()
(v) 1EEREE &)

(a)

As at 31 December

(1)

B B FE

EERRNDEZAESE
BEEE - BEECDHIE
BE  HEZEUER

B R e K

AEE S FlE B R
REMBE THEESR
BRIFZEP  MAK
BREBETEFEETMHE
FER - R EBER
REMEAZEMHELR
F#E1TE REAFHE -
A B WELE W E
HEANZBEIEZ
BELBRYEBLD
RSB HE -

TREINAKEHAD
AR —F—FF+ =
A=t—HARZ=F—A
F+ZA=+—-HZ
EERE LR

R+t=A=+—H
2020 2019
—E-%F —F-NF

Counterparty Credit limit Utilised Credit limit Utilised

HES FERE A EERE [SRESE

HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

THET FHET FHET FHET

A 39,000 38,547 37,000 36,844

B 38,000 37,516 36,000 32,035

C 29,000 28,436 29,000 5,376

D 40,000 25,803 40,000 39,226

E 21,000 20,305 38,000 28,884

F 26,000 18,960 26,000 22,950

Impairment of financial assets 2) =HEERE

Trade and bills receivables, amount due from NEBEES L ZJE

an associated company and amounts due from
joint ventures for sales of goods of the Group
are subject to the expected credit loss model.
While cash and cash equivalents, short-term
bank deposits and other financial assets at
amortised cost are also subject to the impairment
requirements of HKFRS 9, the identified
impairment loss was immaterial.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBRRME (E)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)
(iv) Credit risk (Continued)

2)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Trade and bills receivables, amount due from an
associated company and amounts due from joint
ventures

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measure expected credit losses
which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for
trade and bills receivables, amount due from an
associated company and amounts due from joint
ventures. The Group measures the expected credit
losses on a combination of both individual and
collective basis.

Measurement of expected credit losses on
individual basis

The receivables relating to customers with known
financial difficulties or with significant doubt on
collection of receivables are assessed individually
for provision for impairment allowance. As at 31
December 2020, the balance of loss allowance in
respect of individually assessed receivables was
approximately HK$26,618,000 (31 December
2019: approximately HK$25,128,000).

The following table presents the gross carrying
amount and the loss allowance in respect of

3
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2) wHEERE(E)

JEWE 550 KRR
FEH— /S? BERRIHE
REKE EIEFEHER
AEBEEREBYR
HHERESRAEFAH
EEEBR BT
HEKE SRR RE
% B E AR
FIA R B A LB ER
B RRAREFEHZ
BEHIEREME - A5 H
12 Bl Jo &= B8 2 % —
HErERREEREE -

1z 6 Bl & £ 5 2 78 B
1=EEE

B BN 3R B IR s
Uz 2] & W R IR B BR AF 1R
EARRM RS HBEN
FEUGRIE - ThghR (B B
HBEBFE  RZZT=
ZF+_A=+—H

A 57 3 {8 Bl 5T 1 B U R
IHE v BEREES
#926,618,000/% 7T (=
Z-NEF+=ZA=+—
H : #4925,128,000/%
JL) °

TREJINR-_Z_TF
tTZA=+—RBEkZ

the individually assessed receivables as at 31 E-NF+ZA=+—
December 2020 and 31 December 2019: B & Bl 5T & FE W R TE 2
SR AR E R B R A

2020 2019

— ? — EF :EE_TLE'E

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET T

Gross carrying amount RHEeE 26,618 25,128
Loss allowance EEEE (26,618) (25,128)
Net carrying amount REEE - -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

VAP

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(iv) Credit risk (Continued)

2)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Measurement of expected credit losses on
collective basis

Expected credit losses are also estimated by
grouping the remaining receivables based on
shared credit risk characteristics and collectively
assessed for the likelihood of recovery, taking
into account the nature of the customer, its
geographical location and its ageing category,
and applying expected credit loss rates to
the respective gross carrying amounts of the
receivables.

The expected credit loss rates are determined
based on the historical credit losses and are
adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking
information such as macroeconomic factors
affecting the ability of the customers to settle the
receivables.

As at 31 December 2020, the balance of loss
allowance in respect of these collectively assessed
receivables was approximately HK$13,802,000 (31
December 2019: approximately HK$1,402,000)
based on expected credit loss rates up to 5.00%
(31 December 2019: up to 17.63%) applied on
different groupings.

Impairment and reversal of impairment losses
on receivables are presented as “net impairment
losses on financial assets” in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income. When a
receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account for receivables. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off
are credited in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBRRME (E)

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(iv) Credit risk (Continued)

v)

(2) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Cash and cash equivalents, short-term bank
deposits and other financial assets at amortised
cost

There is no loss allowance for cash and cash
equivalents, short-term bank deposits and
other financial assets at amortised cost as at 31
December 2020 (31 December 2019: same).

Liquidity risk
Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining
sufficient cash, the availability of funding through an
adequate amount of committed credit facilities. The
Group aims to maintain flexibility in funding by keeping
sufficient cash.

As at 31 December 2020, the cash and cash equivalents
of the Group approximated HK$392,954,000 (31
December 2019: approximately HK$348,849,000).

The following tables analyse the Group’s financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on
the remaining period at the balance sheet date to the
contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in
the tables are the contractual undiscounted cash flows
and the earliest date the Group can be required to pay.
Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying
values, as the impact of discounting is not significant.

Specifically, as at 31 December 2020, for borrowings
which contained repayment on demand clauses which
could be exercised at the banks’ sole discretion, the
balances had been reclassified as current liabilities. The
analysis shows the cash outflow based on earliest period
in which the Group can be required to pay, that is if the
lenders were to invoke their unconditional rights to call
the loans with immediate effect (31 December 2019:
same).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ReMBERME (F)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 BBERRERE@
(a) Financial risk factors (Continued) (a) BiEREZE@
(v)  Liquidity risk (Continued) V) HEEZERE#)

Between  Between
On  Lessthan 1and 2and Over
Demand 1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
1225 235%
REREE 15/ 28 2B 5ENE @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAEL TAT TAT TAT TR TR

At 31 December 2020 R-2-%%
t=A=+-H

Bank borrowings RITEE

— principal portion -K&8B5 116,528 1,117 291 12 - 117,948
Other borrowings EtiEE

— principal portion ) - 76 312 1,195 1,570 3,153
Lease liabilities BERR - 5,446 3,187 2,118 - 10,751
Trade payables RECL S - 137,954 - - - 137,954
Accruals and EFERK

other payables Hih M8 - 145,703 - - - 145,703
Loans from non-controlling 38 & JE1E Rk 25

interests ZEH 17,518 - - - - 17,518
Dividends payable FERRE - 175 - - - 175
At 31 December 2019 R=B-hf

+ZA=t+-H

Bank borrowings RITEE

— principal portion XA ) 64,778 293 205 200 - 65,476
Other borrowings EtiEE

— principal portion XA ) - 232 215 500 - 947
Lease liabilities BERE - 5,354 2,522 846 - 8,722
Trade payables ENEHEX - 226430 - - - 226,430
Accruals and EFERR

other payables HiEMZE - 187,678 - - - 187,678
Loans from non-controlling 38 B FEHR Rk 2%

interests 2B 17,446 - - - - 17,446
Dividends payable ERTARE - 186 - - - 186
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

GERBHERRME (F)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(v)  Liquidity risk (Continued)

The table below analyses the borrowings of the Group
into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining
period at the balance sheet date to the contractual
maturity date without taking into consideration the
effect of repayment on demand clauses, while interest
payments are computed using contractual rates.

3

B 7% L B B BB ()

(a) M#EExREZE @
V) TEEZEE &)

TREZR

Raxg

A F

HEAXZ

HENSK THEI T ARE
DEERBE AR A E
& ERITESRRENRE

EAIRFE

=24,
e

IEIESSNE

REAMERETH -

Between Between

Within 1and 2 and Over
1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
1225 2855
15/ 2B 28 5FLE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT THT THT THT
As at 31 December 2020 R-ZB-%%
t=A=1-H
Borrowings: f£g:
— principal portion N ) 55,370 25,383 38,778 1,570 121,101
~ interest portion - B 1,503 990 829 62 3,384
56,873 26,373 39,607 1,632 124,485
As at 31 December 2019 R-ZZ-NF
+ZA=+-H
Borrowings: BE:
— principal portion -KeHn 17,511 15,819 31,181 1,912 66,423
— interest portion —F 8D 2,049 1,480 1,467 34 5,030
19,560 17,299 32,648 1,946 71,453

(b) Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits
for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets

to reduce debt.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

FEMBHRRME (F)

3 H¥EARERE@m

(b) Capital risk management (Continued) (b) E£EEE 2 (@)
The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. AEBNBEEABLRERAE
This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total equity. BR W RIZIRFEER LA
Net debt is calculated as borrowings less cash and cash BmEFE MFEEZR {i“b
equivalents. Management considers a gearing ratio of not RIRE RIBEEMEEBE
more than 30% as reasonable. BEREAENEEAGLL -’AT—J?’E
REH30% o
As at 31 December
R+=—HA=+—H
2020 2019
—E-%F —NE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
Borrowings BE 121,101 66,423
Less: Cash and cash equivalents o Re MR EFEER (392,954) (348,849)
Net cash H 4 HEE (271,853) (282,426)
Total equity B 1,192,334 1,130,906
Gearing ratio BEERAMBELE N/ATEF N/AZT 3 A
Surplus cash held by the operating entities over the KEERPBEREEESE
requirement for working capital management are transferred BB e R Eﬁ%ﬁé‘)\ﬂ/\
to interest-bearing current accounts and time deposits, with MEEIR 25 B A REERE K E 5
appropriate maturities to manage its overall liquidity position. 7(57* LA E. EEE BEREE SR
As at 31 December 2020, the Group maintains cash and cash CTRIZEZEF+ A=+ —
equivalents of approximately HK$392,954,000 (31 December El rEBEReRBEEEE
2019: approximately HK$348,849,000) that are expected to B #9392,954,0008 L (= — hF
be readily available to meet the cash outflows of its financial + = A =-+—H : 4348,849,000
liabilities. BL) cEEEAREHEESRBE
ZIREME o
(c) Fair value estimation () AFEME
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and Z'S;EKZ@EQEE&E%ZEE@
BERERekReEEERE 8

liabilities including cash and cash equivalents, short-term bank
deposits, trade and bills receivables, other financial assets at
amortised cost, amount due from an associated company,
amounts due from joint ventures, borrowings, trade
payables, dividends payable, accruals and other payables,
lease liabilities, and loans from non-controlling interests,
approximate their fair values.

See Note 8 for disclosures of investment property that is
measured at fair value at 31 December 2020.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future.
The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal
the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
addressed below.

Impairment of trade and bills receivables

The Group makes provision for impairment of trade and bills
receivables based on assumption about risk of default and expected
credit loss rate (Note 3(a)(iv)). The Group uses judgement in making
these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment
calculations based on the Group’s past history, existing market
conditions as well as forward-looking estimates at the balance sheet
date.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as the
Board. The Board reviews the Group’s internal reports in order
to assess performance and allocate resources. The Board has
determined the operating segments based on these reports.

The Group is principally engaged in manufacturing and trading
of hospitality supplies products (“Hospitality Supplies Business”),
trading of operating supplies and equipment (“OS&E Business”),
and manufacturing and trading of health care and hygienic
products (“Health Care and Hygienic Products Business”). From
a geographical perspective, the Board assesses the performance
based on the Group’s revenue by geographical location in which
the customer is located.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group switched
some of its production lines to produce alcoholic instant hand
sanitizers and commenced the production of 3-ply disposable face
masks in response to the outbreak of COVID-19. The Group has
also expanded its production of other health care and hygienic
products. Because of this new business, management has reviewed
its internal organisational structure to align more closely with the
Group's strategic decision. In particular, Health Care and Hygienic
Products Business has been separately disclosed in the management
reporting. The Group has adopted a new reporting format effective
for the year ended 31 December 2020, which includes (i) Hospitality
Supplies Business; (i) OS&E Business; and (iii) Health Care and
Hygienic Products Business. The comparative segment information
has been restated to reflect the new reporting format.

The Board assesses the performance of the operating segments
based on a measure of profit before income tax, share of profit of
an associated company, share of profit of a joint venture and fair
value gain on an investment property.

Information provided to the Board is measured in a manner
consistent with that of the consolidated financial statements.

Sales between segments are carried out at normal commercial
terms. Depreciation and amortisation charges are apportioned with
reference to respective segment revenue from external customers.
Assets and liabilities of the Group are allocated by reference to the
principal markets in which the Group operates.

PAERERZERERA

FEMBHRRME (F)

DEER @

HE-_Z-_ZF+-_A=1+—HILFE"
$%lam%ﬁﬁ“$§@$é@1%
FREABEE=E— /DS UE
HCOVID-197 JE 2 - $%iﬁﬁkﬁﬂ
EEEEREERMNLEE - BRI
ES aﬁﬁhﬁﬁmﬂﬁ% B LA
B AEENERERTE - HRZ &
REERBEAREGEREEERS
NBYHE - AEEERBHARES
XN REBEE_ZT_ZEF+_A=+—8H
IEFEAR - BIEG)E/EH-EMRZERS : (i)
LB m MR EER i RERE R
BERMER -HBESEEHNBEENI
REEFTRIHRER -

E=ZQURAEHRANEN - B —FE
BEQREN  BE—HEELRET
R—BREPEZ ATFEREABEEE

EAFAEREENTBORE -

MEEE2HRNERRA LR M BR
i—ﬁmﬁiﬁ§°

DERAHER - RAREET - 3
ELBHEBERD2ERANIBEFNE
DREBATUNE -AEBENEENA
BEN2RARBEMEEXBNEIEMS
ETOR -

s ZT_THERH

105



)

=

V=]

=

i

B 5 R MY A (

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
(=]

= AN

W

009'7L WEE Jeaftau) 1o} 1joig
(zg6'92) XHNYY $35UaCX Xe) LoD
8L (BEL) S (3 a10n) Aadoud
Bl £ ZEGESH—  JUaUnsanu Ue uo Uie anjen Jied
: MEETESH-H9  anmuaniuole jo o jo s
18€ NEBE7EH fuedwod pajeposse
-4 Ue Jo joid Jo aleyg
SPE'00L  S8T'TL  9E8'S9  9SL'SE  SBELT  S6T6 697"y SSL'LL (961'1) 889 5689 096 091 196'L (1442 Xe) aUIodul
e 3l0jaq 1joid 1UaLGeS
@6 (@ - - - - - (v06'7) (65) (€) (8es)  (voe) - - U §1500 3dueuly
wo'L - 4 4 - - 8 0€0') 9 - S 668 - - Y ¥ aWodUI Hueul
(14 I} (Lzy) (LLy) (Lor) (6t1) - (trg) (L1) (€1) (tzy) (€6€) (st) (901) B Uoiesiowy
(9L'ss) - (sLu'el)  (6ec's)  (e6r'e)  (v86'9)  (SbL) (9068¢) (szz's)  (c69) (600'9)  (6t'st) (zes's)  (956'%) 1 uoepaidaq
90779,  v6TTL  bLE'S® 899’y 8LT'ST  sTH'9L  9LL'S 29665 £8L'y 661’1 pep'sL  6vT6L  L9L'S £00'€) % fysadoud
(BIEBWE L2 USWISIUI Ue uo ureb anjen Jie}
R s pUB UoesiLiowe ‘Uonenaidap
VB HY Ry 53X} 1SRRI 210430 SBUIUJe3
660'€S€'L - LLT6lY  €6L'S8L 67198 SSE'LhL  0z6'TL) 206'028 9ET'0LL  8vS'TL €8L'97L  6G1'06€  SES'ML 8570} Y ERGEN  SIBW0ISN) [PURRIKS WOL 3NUINSY
(ov8'01) - (6€) (6€) - - - (108°01) - - (cov'y)  (86€9) - - YEY anuaNal JuewBas-1a1|
6E6'E9E"L - 9lE'6ly  7€8'58L 67’98 SSE'Ll  0T6'TLL €0L'1€8 9ET'0LL  SvS'TL  98L'LEL  [9S'96E  SESPL  8LS'WOL YHEY aNUANB JUaWIBa
FHTE-4=
HolHET&TFR  0707/90Wa0aQ | Papus Jeay
Ug:  Ugr  Yg:  YgE  YgE  Ygr Yy Ut Ygy  Yg: Yy YEr  Ygr YRy
000.S¥H  000.SMH  000.S¥H  000.SMH  000.$H  000.$XH  000.SMH 000.$)H 000.$XH  000.5MH  000.SXH  000.SMH  000.$H  000.$MH
L8 £ (NBY) #& £ £ £ (12f) W& (=53] [} EX
HE AMYE LS
HE HEE
[e3oL [j0-gns (a/sjoy) Buoy  eduswy  [elol-gng [e303-qns (laon)  elensny  (fuoy  DydeyL edong  eauswy
sisyy9  fuoy yuMoN suoifal fuo,) Jud yuMoN
JIjed a4 jo oy
RISy 43130 angeaupY
[enads fuoy
Buopayy
AETH T EREY HEL Tl eSS bR
SIBYIQ  ssauisng spnpoid dIUdIBAH pue aie) yyesH ssauisng saljddng Ayeydsoy
|esiydesboan
(B kBB O (penunuod) NOILVINYO4NI LNJINDIS S

e Annual Report 2020

imited

Ming Fai International Holdings L

106



)

=
=

B 5 R MY A (

= A
=

W

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(L0V'LL9)  Lv0'biT  (biv'89)  (LOW'HS) - (Lov'ee) (v6T'sl)  (6vE'ws) - (086's9)  (69€'s)  (vZ6'v89) (886'98)  (e€s'zl)  (LbS) (z0€'s6l)  (vSS'v8E) EHEE Sa1ge!| feloL
566 - - s - MVT us'e €@ - - €388 6638 €06 9059 6 090’ 18112 (V6% (s1asse
FEWYWTE)  Xeyawodul paLjap uey) o)
ENEET 1S SJ3SSE JUBLIND-UOU 0} SUOIPPY
18€ - - - - - - - - - - 18¢ - - - 18€ - BUEETE O SAINJUAN JUIO[ Ul SYUBLLASAY|
168G _ _ - _ - - - - - - 1€8' - - - 1€8'S - EY Aueduod pajenosse
BlEvEHE - Ue Ul JU3LISaAU|
DG Bpnpul
SEV'E08'L (Lv0'LLT) S€8'€L  TOVLL  LEL'G 680'8y 956l S66'LLL  TSLY PSE'9E  688'0L  0ST'SS8'L 160'S9  LTEWBT  €9L'T 60E'EYS  09€'096 BHEZ SJa5%e [ej0]
H—4+=H=+
FETETY 0207 4aquidaq L€ Je sy
Ygy  Ugd UK UE Yy Uy U Uy  URF YRy Ygy Uy  UsE URF Uy Y4 Uy
000SXH  000.$XH  000.SMH  000.$MH  000.SMH  000.SMH  000SXH  000.$MH  000.SMH  000.$MH  000.SMH  000.SXH  000SXH  000.$MH  000.$MH  000.SMH  000.$)H
8 s A MEH) #& Bth H (MEl) %& B A (MEf) (%)) W& %8 i
HEC IHHE IHHE ARHYE ETEHX
[e30] uopeulw [e303-qns (i 8jop)  buoy J4d3yL  [eogns (1sjo)  buoy J4d3YL  [e0kans (Asjo)  (epoque),) elensny  Buoy J4ddyL
Juawibas suoijeso|  fuoy suojjeso|  fiuoy SUoIEI0|  eIpoquie) Jo Buoy
-13)U| 1BYo 1By 1By wopfury
WE SxUHTHAEELY S EL RS B ESLE TR
SIBYIQ  SsauIsng spNpoid dluaIbAH pue ale) yyjesH ssauisng 3850 ssauisng sajddng Ayjendso
(%) =) 3¢ (penunuod) jed1ydelboan
BHBEHYE O (penunuod) NOILVINHO4NI INJINDIS S

107

=

—E—E

BRERE R R AR AR



)

=

==

4

i

(

T

x
A

R & MY

E-
¥

U

3

g

A
(=)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

=)
fx

n

0806 1eak 3y} 1o} 1j0iq
(cz0'se) 535U30Xa Xe) aUI0U|
95 3Inju3A uiol e o Jjoid Jo aJeys
168 Auedwod pajeposse
ue Jo Jjoid Jo dieys
679zl 0LEY 669 244 (rLL) 681 €698 L19°€ 910G L6l'El 0L 8Ly'9l  ¥81'9C  ESOT  #0S'9C X} auooul
31030 J1j0.d Juawibag
s ) - - - - - - - (8¢) ) (oze) (e - - 1500 3dueuly
Glg') - 14 [4 - - - - - 69 - 1901 8L¢ - - aWodUI Kueul
(#1810  (c6) (981) - (09) (9€1) - - - (€€ (€v) (8z¢) (129 (¥52) (€60) uonesiowy
(6L95)  (aL) (99 ® (lz9e) (el (79) (€8) (69z'9) @'l (0oL (B6LLl)  (1EL9) (0L uoenaidag
IS8l 18 6IS8 6UC (959) 968 OLLS 19 660’ WU ee8's  S9LST  ES9WP 6IS'LT L9GE UOlsTLIOLL PLe U0Renaidap
U EY Y 'S3Xe} ‘153131 2104 SBUILIE]
S60'EH0'T 8T 607'IEL 8009 192 0v6y7l 60789l 80€99  10L'T0L 0€'987  L656€  6SL'00E  EEL'MI9  0STTEC  1L0'89T YL EEGEN  SIoU0ISN) [eUISHE LIOJ anuansy
(Ser'el) - (86) (86) - - (o) (wL'D  (1676) - - (peze) (907 - - ANUINBI JUBWBS-13Au|
0750907 8¢ L0€'1EL 9019 192 0ve'vzl  or'08l  pS0'69  T6E'LIL 0€'87  [65'6€  €6E'E0E 681919 0ST'TEC  1L0'89T ANUINB) JU3WIB3S
(pore188M)
Ho+#U-2=3%  610749quadsQ L€ papus Jesy
Yt Yy Yy Yy Yy Uy Ugy  Ugy  UgS Y  Ygg  Ygy Yy LYy LIy
000.$H  000$XH  000.$MH  000.8¥H  000.$MH  000.$XH  000$XH  000.$MH  000.$%H 000.$H  000.$¥H  000.$MH  000.$XH  000.$MH  000.$XH
{8 £ (EW) %2 £ Fifr (IE) B () & b B (1 E18
WE WE THYE
BE
[e10] [l0}-0ns  (Majoy)  buoy BuoH EdUBWY  [eI0MGNS  (IWeloN)  D¥d3uL (o) elensny  buoyfuoy  Jydayl  adom3  edswy
SENN) oy SENN) suoibal (o
Jljioeq
Bisy Jaylo
HE HESEEA R EE S AEYE(THES AET I
SIY0 $S3UISNg SPNPoJg dIUBIBAH pue 3Je) UljeaH ssuisng 950 ssauisng saijdang Ayjexdso
)@ (penunuo)) jedjydelboan
EBEHEL S (penunuod) NOILVINHOANI LNJINDIS  §

e Annual Report 2020

Ming Fai International Holdings Limited

108



MEmERME (F)

N

%

=
)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

 (BHWHS
SHMUT BEHEUEDLTIAY SR LN
¥ FEBHY EUEYHREYIVEYE ¥
HTNH—+ ==+ —&— W) FEEUEH

FUAW YRALH Kl FERHHEUHGE
YPHEYH HLTEH—F=H— 52— &-S8
o WHWIMHEHEE T B MY E A

K BN LR T EBTEWHE i

WU N Y H - W EhHEBEEHE N

o MW EN e  HEHCCEETWE il
o W NI HHE EikF T XKMNHYETEEWH 1l

o BRI - ﬂ.ﬁ%w EFE - 1B 5 S ) T
~ ¥ H - (TR ]) BHL FPFL%@&E EFEMYHE !

“(UOIIRUIQUIOD SSBUISNQ O} SNP SUOIPPE BuIpN|DUI S}9SSE JUSLIND-UOU JSY10 pue
s1asse 9|qibuelul Juswdinbs pue jueid ‘Alsdoud ‘syesse ssn-jo-1ybul ‘|Impoob O3 suonippe
9SdwO0D S)19SSE 1UaJIND-UOU 0} SUOILIPPE (6|07 19qwadad | € papus Jeak syi buunp) siasse
1U9.INJ-UOU J3Y10 pue s}asse a|qibueiul ‘Juawdinbs pue jueld ‘Alisdoud ‘syasse asn-jo-1ybl 0}
suolIppe asiduwod $39SSe JUa4INd-Uou 0} SUOIIPPE ‘0Z0Z J2qWiadaQ | € papus Jesh syl buung

‘uede[ pue el|es1sny spNjpuUl Ajulew suoedo| 1y IN
‘ai0debuls pue nedej\ apn[pul Ajulew suoiedo| JByi0 A
‘a1odebuls pue ueder ‘eljenisny ‘Jyd ay1 apnpul Ajulew s1syrQ Al

‘BIPOQUUBYD) pUB BOLIBWY YMON ‘nedej ‘buoy buoH spnjpul Ajulew sisyio I
‘el1ab|y pue 033040\ ‘0bu0D) By} Jo dljgnday diesdowsg Spn|pul Ajulew sIBYI0 1l

‘elpu| pue aiodebuls ‘eishejely ‘sauiddijiyd oy ‘puejiey] ‘seiediwl gely pauun ‘ueder
‘(,NeJBIAL,,) D¥d B JO UOIBRY dAIRASIUILPY [eRadS nedey syl apnpul Ajulew suoibal Jijded eisy Jayl0

=77 S910N

(6€0'800) 140’507 (zi6'80L) (16819 - (6369€)  (a8'wl) (eL6By) - (899%€)  (soe'sl)  (v9€0s) (LL90S)  (00T'lE)  (6LL) (956'607) ~ (8SE0LY) Ey8Y [E10L
we0sl - - - - - - 9l - - 96l 9LL0sL  S¥8T  68TO0L ¢ 91Tl p09'SE (V64 (asse
FEULWRT)  ¥e)aL0DUI paajap Uy} Jaylo)

EUIEEUE 5155 UaLnd-uou 0} Suollppy

€9 - - - - - = = - - = £9¢ - - - £9¢ - EXWETE Y SBINURA JUIO] Ul SIUBWASIAU|
608 _ _ _ _ _ - - - - = 6986 = - - 698' - By Aueduwiod pajenosse
HEvEsE— U Ul JUBWISaAU

g/ 3pnpuj

SE'8E8’l (Ip0'S00) w9 88Sw - T8 LpE'8 blvblL  L6E 9066 7S6'6L  80S'1S8'L 8880  GIE'EET  8LET  66TSI9 87066 B9340 SJasSe [£10L
(BH) B-+= (porersal)

Bt -&=H 6107 J2qua33q L€ Je Y

Lgd  Ygg  Ygy  Lgy  Ygy  Ygy  Lgy LUy

Tgd  Ygd  Ygd  Ygd  Ygd  Ygd Vg3 YEY Uy

000.$H ~ 000$XH  000.MH  000.8¥H  000.$MH  000.$¥H  000SXH  000.MH  000.8¥H  000$XH  000.MH  000$XH  000.$MH  000.SYH  000$XH  000.$MH  000.$H
£ B A (nZl) %2 B 4 ("2l %2 B i (Bl EH¥ WE g B
Y L HHHE T
[e10] uoneuwi [l0}-0ns  (Aajoy)  buoyBuoH JYdayl  [eorgns  (raloy)  BuoybuoH Jydayl  [eIokGns  (Aloy)  eipoquie) eipAsny  bBuoy BuoH Jydayl
EITES suoneo)| suoneo| suoneo|
-] JEITG) BYIQ BYIO
W FETHF PN EEE FEYRYTHES HETH Y
SIBYO SS3UISNg SPNPOI JIU3IBAH pue 31e?) YyjeaH $s3uisng 850 ssauisng sa)ddng Ayijendson
B) @ (penunuod) jed1ydelboan
BIHBEHE S (penunuod) NOILVINHOANI LNIND3IS S

109

TEFEHR

— = —
e p—

BEREERERER AR



110

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

GERBHERRME (F)

6 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 6 ME- -HBERRKE
Leasefold Motor  Furniture and Computer Plantand  Construction
Land Buildings  improvements vehicles fitures~ equipment machinery ~ in progress Total
1 g7 HRENRRE A8 FHREE  EERE EERME BRI it
HK$'000 HK$'000 Hks$'000 HK§'000 HKS$'000 Hks$'000 HK§ 000 HK$'000 Hks$'000
T THETL TAL TR TR Tin TEn TR Tin
At1 January RZ5-1E
2019 -A-8
Cost K& 17538 24,401 101,945 25,044 19,687 19,855 230530 27,051 666,291
Acumulated 2itfE
depreciation and RAE
impairment - (87,770) (74,772) (17,664) (16,469) (183%3) (131,050) - (346,118)
Net book amount BEFE 17538 136,671 2173 7,380 318 1462 99,480 21251 320,173
Year ended 31 BEZB-NE
December 2019 TZR=1-H
e
Openingnetbook — EA)ER
amount 2B 17538 136,671 VIRVE] 7380 38 1462 99,480 27,51 320,173
Additions RE - 26,309 7,663 1,263 620 663 4,04 57512 136,082
Additions due REkak
to business MAE
combination - - 2 305 16 - - - 341
Transfer & - 23 - - - - - 2230 -
Disposals HE
(Note 33(b) (W) - - 4 (18) 5) - (4958) - (4985)
Depreciation e
(Note 29) (W) - (12,077) (6413) (2,963) (997) (1262) (22,203) - 45,915)
Bichange differences B 2% (99) 2012 (511) (48) ) (18) 1,990) (34) (5,065)
Closingnethook ~ EXEME
amount e 17,443 m22 21928 5919 2,805 850 112,376 62,09 400,631
At31December  WZF-AE
2019 t28
=t-A
Cost AR 17,443 269,178 107,546 26,320 19,689 19,923 253,171 62,098 775,368
Accumulated 2ithE
depreciation and R
impairment - (97 966) (79,618) (20401) (16,884) (19,073) (140,795) - (374.737)
Netbookamount ~ BEFE R 5919 2405 B0 236 60% 400631

Ming Fai International Holdings Limited e Annual Report 2020



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Re MK ERME (&)

6 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 6 #13 * KB R & (20
Leasehold Motor Furnitureand ~ Computer Plantand  Construction
Land Buildings  improvements vehicles fixtures  equipment  machinery in progress Total
1 B RENREL RE GRREE  EMRE  HERES  fRIR &3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn TEn Thx TiEn TEn Thx TiEn TEx Thn
Year ended 31 BEoRCEE
December 2020 tZR=1-H
LHFE
Openingnetbook  E7)ER
amount 5B 17443 m 27,928 5919 2,805 850 112,376 62,098 400,631
Additions hE - 29,268 24,013 106 860 47 35,285 557 90,516
Transfer 7] - 53,28 4420 - - - - (57,698) -
Disposals (ote 33(b)) & (#2233)) - - (17) )] (136) - (651) - (807)
Depreciation (Note 25) 37 (#1225 - (15,899) (7,645) (2,645) (179) (881) (22,184) - (50,033)
Bichange differences R ZEE 116 3,655 2,001 80 137 13 4,898 (256) 10,664
Closingnethook  EXEM
amount B 17,559 21,514 50,730 3,457 2,887 399 129724 4,701 450,97
At31December ~ RWZEZFE
200 +28
=t-H
Cost i 17,559 361,757 142,036 26,682 20,001 18,867 299,515 4,701 891,118
Accumulated ZiffE
depreciation and R
impairment - (120283) (91,306) (23,29 (17.114) (18,468) (169,791) - (440,147)
Net book amount RS 17,559 21,514 50,730 3457 2,887 399 129,724 4,101 450,971

AEEHYE  BEERBHTEDR

Depreciation of the Group’s property, plant and equipment has

been charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive FEZEWERNEG  FEAT
income as follows:
2020 2019
S i —FT-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T T
Cost of sales $H 5 R AR 36,267 32,012
Distribution costs AR 2,915 3,474
Administrative expenses THRX 10,851 10,429
50,033 45,915
HIBREERERAR o« —E_TFFH



112

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBRRME (E)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
As at 31 December 2020, certain property, plant and equipment
with aggregate net carrying value of approximately HK$24,635,000

(as at 31 December 2019: HK$27,678,000) were pledged as
securities for banking facilities of the Group (Note 21).

RIGHT-OF USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES

(@) Amounts recognised in the consolidated

balance sheet

The consolidated balance sheet shows the following amounts
related to leases:

6

M- BERRE@®

R-_ZE-_TFE+_A=+—8  #Fn
SF B #924,635,0008 L (R=—Z— NLF
+—H—+ B : 27,678,000/ 7T) 2
ETHE BEREETUIRE A
AEERTEE ZER(HIFE21) ©

EREEERHAERE

(@ REEEERERBEIAN
=8

REEERABRBTRTIEEE
BRANTHE

31 December 31 December

2020 2019
—EEHF —E—hF
+=—A=+—-H +=-A=+—8H
HK$'000 HK$'000
T T FAT

Right-of-use assets EREEE
Office premises WNEYE 93,204 93,744
Factory buildings WEET 18,203 13,897
Warehouse BE 300 1,051
111,707 108,692

Lease liabilities HEEE

Current Vi) 5,035 5,208
Non-current JER B 4,998 2,929
10,033 8,137

During the year ended 31 December 2020, additions to the
right-of-use assets amounted to approximately HK$7,308,000
(during the year ended 31 December 2019: approximately
HK$15,117,000) were recognised by the Group in the
consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2020, certain right-of-use assets with an
aggregate carrying value of approximately HK$30,204,000
were pledged as securities for banking facilities of the Group
(as at 31 December 2019: approximately HK$31,233,000)
(Note 21).
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8

RIGHT-OF USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES 7

(Continued)

(b) Amounts recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

The consolidated statement of comprehensive income shows

the following amounts relating to leases:

FEMBHRRME (F)

FRAEEEREEEE@®
b REE
()Eé‘gg- HKRERBEZN

RerERERBERTNIEEE
HEANSHE

2020 2019
—EEF —ZT-hEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FHELERTE
Office premises I NEX Y ES 4,376 4141
Factory buildings WMEET 3,173 3,196
Warehouse BE 1,154 1,427
8,703 8,764
Interest expenses on lease liabilities HERBMNERY
(Note 28) (W1328) 341 496
Other lease expenses (Note 25) Hib B ERZ (#7725) 7,579 9,779
During the year ended 31 December 2020, the total cash HE_Z-_ZTF+-_A=+—H
outflows for leases of the Group amounted to approximately WtEE  KERG fﬂ‘; HWIRE R
HK$13,565,000 (2019: approximately HK$15,681,000). tH 48 %8 #913,565,0008 T (= F
— A © #915,681,0007T) °
The Group’s leasing activities and how these are AEE2HEETHRZEETH
accounted for &
The Group leases various land, offices premises, factory AEEHEZELM HAEYD
buildings, warehouses and retail stores. Rental contracts are ¥ BEEF -2EK s
typically made for fixed periods of 1 to 3 years, which do not WA K —RRIE3F 8 E T H
contain any extension options. R W BIE AR o
Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain HE 5 %’\1’7 EBET UBER
a wide range of different terms and conditions. TET R A IR R AR o
INVESTMENT PROPERTY 8 REW=
2020 2019
—E-2F —ZT-NEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
At 1 January w—HA—H 13,707 14,005
Revaluation gain EXRY e 787 -
Exchange differences ME W R 957 (298)
At 31 December Rt+=—A=+—H 15,451 13,707
The following amounts have been recognised in the consolidated INTRRIBERGE 2EKERER
statement of comprehensive income:
2020 2019
—E_2F —ZE-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET T
Rental income (Note 26) Hel A (Bit26) 310 313
Direct operating expenses arising from an REELME KA —IE
investment property that generates rental KEWMEZERLERY
income (Note 25) (Btat25) 21 49
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBRRME (E)

8

INVESTMENT PROPERTY (Continued)

(a)

Independent valuation of the Group’s investment property
was performed by the valuer, Asset Appraisal Limited, to
determine the fair value of the investment property as at 31
December 2020 and 31 December 2019 respectively. The
following table analyses the investment property carried at
fair value.

Fair value hierarchy

8 KBEWHEw

(a)

REBEREYED B HELF H
EEEFEBHABRARETE
VEE ANBEREWED IR
—EEF+_A=+—BKk=
E—h&E+=-_A=+—Bz2A¥F
B TRIIHIEAFETERZIX
BYMEREDT

DFEER

Fair value measurements at
31 December 2020 using

R=-FB-_BF+=-A=+—H
AFEFE (GRUATRIEELY)
Quoted price Significant
in active other Significant
markets for observable unobservable
identical assets inputs inputs
Description (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
& 8A HEEE®E HMWEEH BEEWNAT
ERMGHNMRE TEEGAYE HEHAZSE
(88— (B=4&) (B=&)
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET THET
Recurring fair value LEEQTE
measurements: ETE
Investment property "EME - 15,451 -
Fair value measurements at
31 December 2019 using
A\ _E-NF+-_A=+—H
A EFE RATEEEDR)
Quoted price Significant
in active other Significant
markets for observable unobservable
identical assets inputs inputs
Description (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
= A HREEE HMEZER BEEHAA
mEMSHWME AIBREARE BRAARE
(F—H) (F=H) (FE=M)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHET FHET
Recurring fair value LEENTE
measurements: iTE
Investment property KEYE - 13,707 -

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers
out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date of the event or
change in circumstances that caused the transfer. There were
no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3 during the year.

Level 2 fair values of completed investment properties have
been generally derived using the sales comparison approach.
Sales prices of comparable properties in close proximity are
adjusted for differences in key attributes such as property
size. The most significant input into this valuation approach is
price per square foot.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

INVESTMENT PROPERTY (Continued)

(b)

Details of the investment property:

The investment property of the Group is leased to the tenant
under operating lease with fixed monthly rental payable and
the Group closely monitors the risk associated with its right

retains in the underlying asset.

Address of investment property

R&EYFMI

Existing use

BRIAZ

FEMBHRRME (F)

8 REWMHEwumm

(b)

BREMRZFHE

AEBZRENEEBABEE
NG EHERBERPEL
AEEZIEREREEMRE
EANERERR -

Tenure

b

Room 101, Chuntian Garden, No. 6,

Lane 999, Loushanguan Road, Changning

District, Shanghai City, the PRC
PR EETRERE LEKIOE
6RAEREEI01E

31 December 2020: Rental

—E-FF+-A=+—H:AE

(31 December 2019: Rental)

(cE-nEt=A

=+t—H:#88)

At 31 December 2020, the future aggregate minimum
lease receipts under non-cancellable operating lease of the
investment property not recognised in the consolidated

The property is held under
long term lease

WEDRERAEERS

R-E-_ZEF+-_A=+—H"
REBRBEIAFHETEEMES
EHEZEBARRSEHRAERA

financial statements, which are receivable by the Group as BE (ARG BRERER) W0
follows: ™

2020 2019

—B-FF —FTAF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET AT

Within one year —FRN 181 179

Later than one year but no later BR—F

than five years BENERAF - -

181 179

GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS BENEREE
(a) Goodwill (a) BE

2020 2019

-t —E-hF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET T

At 1 January n—H—H 10,354 5,413

Addition due to business combination E % 4& MR E - 4,974
Exchange differences M H =58 279 (33)

At 31 December R+—_A=+—H 10,633 10,354
HIBREERERAR o« —E_TFFH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

GERBHERRME (F)

9 GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 9

(a) Goodwill (Continued)

BEREEEE@®

(a) BEE @)

Goodwill is allocated to the respective groups of CGUs,
which represent the lowest level within the Group at which
the relevant goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes, and not larger than an operating segment.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s goodwill of
approximately HK$5,358,000 (2019: approximately
HK$5,430,000) and approximately HK$5,275,000 (2019:
approximately HK$4,924,000) are attributable to the
operations in Cambodia and Japan respectively.

The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined based on
a value in use calculation. The calculation uses pre-tax cash
flow projection based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a five-year period. Thereafter, the cash
flows are extrapolated using the terminal growth rate not
exceeding the long-term average growth rate of the countries
in which the CGU operates.

Impairment test of goodwill arising from the business
combinations in Cambodia and Japan

The key assumptions are as follows:

Operation in Cambodia

ﬁgﬁ S EEEMRBEAR CBHEESE
B IAEEAGAIEEM
S EREE 7 HEKF (R

EDHEE) ©

]S nn

R=ZFE=ZFF+=-A=+—8"
N &£ E 495,358,000 T (=&
— L5 #95,430,00058 7T) & %)
5,275,000 L (ZE — " F : 4
4,924,000/ 7C) 2 EE 7 AR E
RRBERBAZ EEBE -

ReEAEMZAIREOESBEIR
EREEFENEERE - WAE
FEERBARERBBERE
EERRERAFHANMBEEM
AE-AFHENRERERT
BHREELBULEMERR
EHFHERRNGRIEREMH

st
H o
A

RFFERARREEGITE
4B AR E R 5
B E S N

Operation in Japan

RRERZEE REXRZEE
2020 2019 2020 2019
o e s —NE ZB=8F _"_T-NF
Pre-tax discount rate Tt AT IR & 20.0% 20.2% 22.1% 22.4%
Compound annual Ba
growth rate ERE 12.9% 20.2% 15.5% 17.2%
Terminal growth rate g R R 2.0% 3.0% 1.0% 1.0%

The recoverable amount calculated based on value in use
exceeded carrying value as at 31 December 2020. A decrease
in compound annual growth rate by 3.2% (2019: 3.3%) and
3.3% (2019: 4.4%) would remove the remaining headroom
for the operations in Cambodia and Japan respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ReMBERME (F)

9 GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 9 HBEEREFEE @

(b) Intangible assets (b) BEEE

Investment
in club Software Operating
Trademarks debenture licences licence Total
BE SFERRE BUEGTE Telr @t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

T T THr THL THL

At 1 January 2019 R=Z-A%-A-R
Cost S 1,651 98 9,222 1,728 13,569
Accumulated amortisation and impairment ZHBHEIE (1,326) (968) (8,098) (579) (10,971)
Net book amount BEFE 325 - 1,124 1,149 2,59
Year ended BE-Z-NE+2R

31 December 2019 =t+-ALEE
Opening net book amount ENEEFE 325 - 1,124 1,149 2,59
Additions NE 84 - 980 - 1,064
Addition due to business combination REXRAHMAE 37 - - - 37
Amortisation (Note 25) B (his) (176) - (1,146) (862) (2,184)
Exchange differences ERER - - (1) 2) (3)
Closing net book amount ERREFE 270 - 957 285 1512
At 31 December RZE-hE+ZR

2019 =+-H
Cost KA 1,172 968 10,203 1,728 14,671
Accumulated amortisation and impairment ZHEELEE (1,502) (968) (9,246) (1,443) (13,159)
Net book amount REFE 270 - 957 285 1512
Year ended BZ-3-2%1C§

31 December 2020 S+-HLEEE
Opening net book amount ENRETE 20 - 957 285 1512
Additions AE - - 515 - 515
Amortisation (Note 25) B2 (121) - (849) (285) (1,255)
Exchange differences EXER - - 1 - 1
Closing net book amount EXRERE 149 - 624 - m
At 31 December R-B-%5+-f

2020 =t-A
Cost KA 1,112 968 10,719 1,728 15,187
Accumulated amortisation and impairment  E:t& i RiE (1,623) (968) (10,095) (1,728) (14,414)
Net book amount REFE 149 - 624 - m

PEEEERERAR o —TE-_TFEFRH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ReMBERRME (K)

9 GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

(b) Intangible assets (Continued)

Amortisation of the Group’s intangible assets have been
charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income as follows:

9 BEREFEE®

(b) EFEE @
AEBEREENBEERES
2EERING - SBEOT

2020 2019

—EEH —E-NF

HK$°000 HK$'000

THET FABTT

Cost of sales HEK A 284 863
Distribution costs D EHA AN 463 533
Administrative expenses THAX 508 788
1,255 2,184

10 DEFERRED INCOME TAX

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes related to the
same fiscal authority. The offsetting amounts are as follows:

10 JEFEFRISH

EAAE AR BITRENAG IR E
EEMMB AR EEE  METHEN
W F— R - A BEEMSHR
BEHEBEIREN BHESBENOT

2020 2019

S i —T-NF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHExT FET

Deferred income tax assets RIEFTIS B E 2,703 3,850
Deferred income tax liabilities RIEFTISHRAE (5,412) (7,361)
Deferred income tax liabilities, net EEFSHABEREE (2,709) (3,511)

The net movement on the deferred income tax account is as

EEFBHRRE ZZEFHMT

follows:

2020 2019

—EBEF —T-hEF

HK$’000 HK$'000

THExT FET

At 1 January m—H—H (3.511) (3,850)

Recognised in the consolidated statement of 4R 4& 2 HE IR AFER

comprehensive income (Note 30) Ht&t30) 697 345
Exchange differences ME W 105 (6)
At 31 December Rt+—_A=+—H (2,709) (3,511)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ReMBERME (F)

10 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

The movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities during
the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of
balances within the same tax jurisdiction, are as follows:

10 EEFRBH @

PERIRF — B BARE R E LM ERER

EREHENER  FRREMFHEE

RABEZEEHMT
EEFEHREAR

Deferred income tax liabilities

Revaluation of ~ Additions due  Capitalisation

Accelerated tax ~ aninvestment  to business of right-of-use
depreciation property  combination assets Total
-ERE REH  HREEE
MEHERE NEERE  GfiMAE X4 @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TATL TAT TATL TET TATL
At 1 January 2019 RZE-hE-A-H (856) (1,743) (4,861) - (7,460)
Impact of adoption of REsasmEEn
HKFRS 16 EAEvae 4 - - - (1,193) (1,193)
Recognised in the consolidated statement 434 2
of comprehensive income WS RAER 90 - 1416 (290) 1,216
Exchange differences ERESE - 37 18 21 76
At 31 December 2019 R-E-hE+-B=1-H (766) (1,706) (3.427) (1,462) (7.361)
Recognised in the consolidated statement RNz A2HE
of comprehensive income WHRRAED 513 (196) 1,458 198 1,973
Exchange differences EREE - (46) 67 (45) (24)
At 31 December 2020 R-ZB-BE+ZA=+-H (253) (1,948) (1,902) (1309) (5412)
Deferred income tax assets FIEFIESHEE
Capitalisation
Decelerated tax of lease
depreciation liabilities Total
RERERE HEEBEERL #st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET TFHET FHET
At 1 January RZZB—-h&F
2019 —HA—H 3,610 - 3,610
Impact of adoption of RNE B ﬁﬁ%#ﬁi
HKFRS 16 ;EE'JEE%EJT 2 - 1,193 1,193
Recognised in the consolidated REEEHE
statement of comprehensive W&
income NHERR (1,221) 350 871)
Exchange differences fE % ZE (52) (30) (82)
At 31 December R-ZZE-h&F
2019 +=ZA=+—H 2,337 1,513 3,850
Recognised in the consolidated REEE2E
statement of comprehensive Wz
income NHER (1,043) (233) (1.276)
Exchange differences & 5 =5 84 45 129
At 31 December R-ZE_2fF
2020 +=A=+—8 1,378 1,325 2,703
HEERERERAR o« —T_TFFRK 119



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4 A

N

(=)

MEmEAME (F)

10 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

Deferred income tax liabilities of approximately HK$12,838,000
as at 31 December 2020 (as at 31 December 2019: approximately
HK$13,022,000) have not been recognised for the withholding tax
that would be payable on the remittance of earnings of the PRC
subsidiaries. The related unremitted earnings totaled approximately

10 EEREH @

N-_ZE-_TF+—_F=+—H A&£H
I K B P BB B A B RO BE & A /9 FE A+
TEM R EREEFT 1S4 B f§4912,838,000
BLT(HR_T—hLhF+_A= +—E|
#913,022 oooﬁéyz) A T F
+=A=+-8" ﬁriaﬂilﬁﬁ%ﬂ%%

>i
e

HK$256,754,000 at 31 December 2020 (as at 31 December 2019: 5
approximately HK$260,438,000), and the Group does not intend #9256,754,0008 7c (R=ZT—NF+=
to remit these unremitted earnings from the relevant subsidiaries to B=+—H : #4260,438,000%& 1) * &
the Company in the foreseeable future. ZIK% 8 4 5 50 7] B R 5K §5 0K 2 AR R T B
DA R EE B A E L EARAF]
11 INVENTORIES 1 #8
2020 2019
it —T-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT T
Raw materials R 89,984 91,455
Work in progress E®E 13,299 12,816
Finished goods BIRY on 185,472 184,889
288,755 289,160
Less: Provision for obsolete inventories B REGTERE (47,085) (18,096)
Inventories, net T8 %8 241,670 271,064
The cost of inventories included in cost of sales during the BE—Z_RET A= T—HILER
year ended 31 December 2020 amounted to approximately =T A BH & BX 7N B9 77 & X 7K £9649,105,000
HK$649,105,000 (during the year ended 31 December 2019: BrEE2—_T—hhF+-_A=+—8It
approximately HK$1,082,056,000). & 1 #91,082,056,000/57T) °
Direct written off of and provision made for obsolete inventories HEZZ-_ZTF+=-A= ‘f‘ B IE
for the year ended 31 December 2020 amounted to approximately TE E&Wfﬁ&ﬁ‘f PREGFEFTIRAEE
HK$1,006,000 (for the year ended 31 December 2019: 5 51%91,006,0008 7T (BLE—F—N5F
approximately HK$1,132,000) and approximately HK$29,293,000 w_L:H E+—E|¢¢F§z_: #91,132,00078
(for the year ended 31 December 2019: approximately JL) & #929,293,000 T (BLZ=ZF— N,
HK$6,572,000) respectively. These were recognised as an expense FT-A=1+—BILFE : 46,572,000
and included in “cost of sales” in the consolidated statement of BIL) cWEBRARAX - Wit AfZE
comprehensive income. ZHEHKREEZTH (§ﬁ¢W¢J
12 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 12 BERESERIAKREE
2020 2019
— 7 — ﬁf :%_)LLE'E
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx T
Trade receivables JEUE BRI 538,477 613,655
Bills receivables e R IE 1,382 4,624
539,859 618,279
Less: provision for impairment of receivables & : J& Ui 3k T8 5 (B B4 45 (40,328) (26,530)
Trade and bills receivables, net EWEZERRERFE 499,531 591,749
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

12 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

The credit period granted by the Group ranges from 15 days to 120 days.

Ageing analysis of trade and bills receivables by invoice date is as
follows:

FEMBHRRME (F)

12 ERESZRIFAREE @

AEEMETHEEHNTI15HBE1208 -

réuﬁzéi%ﬁ-ﬁ AR EEREZAHNER
WU ¢

2020 2019
—ECEHF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET AT
1-30 days 1%230H 263,953 324,893
31-60 days 31£60H 69,887 121,237
61-90 days 61%290H 34,947 69,635
91-180 days 912180H 71,731 49,675
Over 180 days 180H LA 99,341 52,839
539,859 618,279
2020 2019
—ECEHF —F—NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAETT

Denominated in: ZATEESIE
- RMB —ARE 306,721 317,909
- US$ -7 171,411 225,780
- HK$ — BT 24,518 43,394
— Other currencies —HEmE 37,209 31,196
539,859 618,279

The fair value of trade and bills receivables, net are as follows:

BUEZERREBFENRFENT

2020 2019

—ECEF —E-NE

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAT

Trade and bills receivables, net JEWE SRR R EEF5E 499,531 591,749

As at 31 December 2020, trade and bills receivables of
approximately HK$40,328,000 (as at 31 December 2019:
approximately HK$26,530,000) are impaired and have been
provided for. See Note 3(a)(iv) for information about how
impairment losses are calculated. Net impairment losses on trade
and bills receivables are presented as “net impairment losses on
financial assets” in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously impaired
and provided for are credited in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. Receivables for which an impairment
provision was recognised are written off against the provision
when there is no expectation of recovering additional cash. As
at 31 December 2020, the individually impaired trade receivables
mainly represent receivables of approximately HK$17,247,000 (as
at 31 December 2019: approximately HK$22,701,000) from PRC
customers which have remained long overdue and management
considered the recoverability is remote.

RAEERZERERAR o

R-ZZE-_ZEFE+-_A=+—08 EkZ
S8R & Z 1 440,328,000 T (R=Z

—hLF+=-A=+—H8H : 426,530,000
Br) BB RERELEE - EEE
REEBENERF2HME3@) ) - B
ZBHERAREBEZREBEFERGRA
2EBEERENEIEREERERBESF
#1 B 18 W ] 5 AT 2 R (B I T 12 7 6 0
RESBAGAEZEREER - WEHE
EUEIFEINR & - BIE #ERBE B E &
& g R T A 1 4 R B o EA_Q_ &
+=ZA=+—8 " @R BB RENEK
BSEREBHRERFTFEAZFAHEA
B R IB4917,247,0008 T (R=—E— N F
+=—A=+—H:#22,701,0008 7T) B
B E 3R A 0] Uk Bl E A o

BT E
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

= A
,%/T\l:l

12

13

MEmEAME (F)

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

Movements on the provision for impairment of trade and bills

receivables are as follows:

12 ERESZRIFAREE @

R SRR R R RERE D)
mF

2020 2019
—ECEF —T—hE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHEx T
At 1 January n—A—H 26,530 22,995
Net provision of trade and bills receivables FRERE FHER
recognised during the year REBRHEEFE 14,554 9,701
Write-off of provision for impairment of HsH W E 5 ER R EIRD
trade and bills receivables AR E (2,483) (5,652)
Exchange differences ME W 1,727 (514)
At 31 December Rt+-—A=+—H 40,328 26,530

The creation and release of provision for impaired receivables
have been included in net impairment losses on financial assets in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. Amounts
charged to the allowance account are generally written off when
there is no expectation of recovering additional cash.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the balance sheet date is
the fair values of trade and bills receivables disclosed above.

AMOUNT DUE FROM AN ASSOCIATED
COMPANY

The amount represents trade receivables from an associated
company. The carrying value of the amount approximates its
fair value. The amount is unsecured, interest-free and mainly
denominated in HK$. The credit period granted is 90 days. The
ageing analysis of the amount by invoice date is as follows:

13

B BB & W R IR B Y RT IR R IR R B T
AFAEHRERAZEREEREES
BEE - FABRBRPHNRE-—KRRE
HI & U D B HMNR & B SH -

REERNREEERR T EXREKE
MEWE ZEAREENAFE -

e — BB E AR FIE

ZHRBERER— R ERBNESIRK -
ZHRBEZERHEEELRAFERSE - %K
REER EMNEREBENETE:
RTYTMEEHROA -REZAHZE
O

2020 2019

—B-FF —FNF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

1-30 days 1230H 307 2,123
31-60 days 31£60H 551 1,691
61-90 days 61£290H 176 1,232
Over 90 days 90R A & 1,935 -
2,969 5,046
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

14 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTISED
COST

14

FEMBHRRME (F)

BEBERAI R 2 Htb S
gE

2020 2019
—E-FHF —E-hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TAT
Current: E

Deposits e 1,433 3,543
Other receivables H b e W s B 10,957 8,820
12,390 12,363

Non-current: FERE -
Long-term deposits RHEe 308 425
12,698 12,788

The carrying value of the amount approximates its fair value.

ZRA REERE A FERE

2020 2019

—ECEHF —E-NF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET AT

Denominated in: BT EEYE

- RMB —AR¥ 4,325 10,514

— HK$ — AT 679 727

— Other currencies —HmEE 7,694 1,547

12,698 12,788
As at 31 December 2019, the balance of other financial assets at R-ZE—NFE+—A=+—8 - R
amortised cost included receivables from joint ventures amounted KAGNEZ HW e EEESGBIEEL
to approximately HK$463,000 arising from non-trading activities. BHEE S EEH NS S DERELY
These balances were unsecured in nature, interest-free and 463,000/ 7T © It H 45 R EK A - EF

denominated in RMB.

BRAAREE -

15 OTHER ASSETS 15 Hth&EE
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TAT
Current: E -
Prepayments SEERE @ 19,920 16,137
Others Hifth 21,210 23,664
41,130 39,801
Non-current: JERE -
Prepayments TR IR 11,991 24,146
53,121 63,947
16 SHORT-TERM BANK DEPOSITS 16 EHISRIT1ER

As at 31 December 2020, short-term bank deposits of approximately
HK$986,000 (as at 31 December 2019: approximately HK$295,000)
represented bank deposits of the Group with original maturity over
three months which are denominated in Indian Rupee and RMB.

R_ZE_TF+-_A=+—H EHE
1717 5 49986,0008 L (R=ZF — "N F
+=RA=+—8 :#%295,0008 ) &R
BB =HAANNEELMARE
SHEZ ANEBETER -

PIEEBRIEREBRRE o —T-_DFEER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

GERBHERRME (F)

17 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

17 RekBREEEER

2020 2019
—EEHF —E-NEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Cash at banks and on hand RITHEHBEIRE 338,695 308,169
Short term bank deposits (original maturities %8 EA$R1T 173X
of less than three months) (RRBHEHLR=MEA) 54,259 40,680
392,954 348,849
Denominated in: BATEBYIE
~RMB — AR 162,629 93,196
- US$ —E7T 133,394 100,159
- HK$ — BT 51,246 92,537
— Euro —BT 18,135 27,138
— Other currencies —H i g 27,550 35,819
392,954 348,849
The Group’s cash and bank balances and short-term bank R-—ZZE_ZTEF+_F=+—80" $%I
deposits with banks in the PRC and India as at 31 December 2020 FRHABREENRITZR® RIRITLE
amounted to approximately HK$168,870,000 (31 December 2019: R R ERITE A S 5I#168,870,000
approximately HK$105,489,000) and approximately HK$800,000 BT (ZE—NLF+_A=+—H0:4
(31 December 2019: approximately HK$1,447,000) respectively, 105,489,000/ 7t.) K& #3800,000/% 7T (=
where the remittance of funds is subject to foreign exchange T-NE+=ZHA=+—H: 41,447,000
control. BIT) ﬁ@lﬁ%’&ﬁﬁl\Ea%H%ﬁﬁE
18 RESERVES 18 #1&
Other reserves H i {H B
Share-based
Merger Statutory  compensation Other Exchange Retained
reserve  reserve fund reserve Teserves Teserves eamings Total
AE MROZA
i1 REe OHeHER Bt EifE  RERA @5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TATL TATL THT TAT TAT TATL TATL
Balance at RZB-n%
1 January 2019 —B-BH&H 61,510 33,728 21,444 5233 30,182 359,681 511,778
Comprehensive income 2EKE
Profit for the year TERER - - - - - 97,936 97,936
Other comprehensive loss At 2EER
Currency tranlation differences  SUNEZS - - - - (7,187) - (7,187)
Realisation of exchange i QMTE
reserve upon dissolution of DARER
subsidiaries @FL’E@% - - - - (1,280) - (1.280)
Total comprehensive (loss)/ 27 (B#8) /i
income a8 - - - - (8,467) 97,936 89,469
Final dividend relating to “F-\EEY
2018 AEBRS - - - - - (36,442) (36,442)
Interim dividend relating to “ENEEZ
2019 RS - - - - - (10,942) (10,942)
Exercise of share options TEERE - - (3,192) - - 3,192 -
Lapse of share options BIREX W - - 423) - - 423 -
Balance at RZZ-NE+=R
31 December 2019 =t-AMEs 61,510 33,728 17,829 5233 21,715 413,848 553,863
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Re MK ERME (&)

RESERVES (Continued) 18 f#fE (@)
Other reserves (Continued) Hfth f# 5 (@)
Share-hased
Merger Statutory  compensation Other Exchange Retained
reserve reserve fund reserve reserves reserves earnings Total
i URGXA
aHRE fEe  HHERE Htbif B REEF st
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TER TR ThT THT TET TET
Balance at RZB-8%
1 January 2020 -B-RiEsH 61,510 33,728 17,829 5233 21,7115 413,848 553,863
Comprehensive income 2EYE
Profit for the year REERT - - - - - 79,046 79,046
Other comprehensive income/ ~ Ef2E W/ (§8)
(loss)
Currency translation differences ~ SMITEZE - - - - 2,53 - 2,53
Realisation of exchange reserve FY-RNBAIRE
upon dissolution of a subsidiary ERGE - - - - (6,490) - (6,490)
Total comprehensive income 2 ENHHE - - - - 16,043 79,046 95,089
Final dividend relating to 2019 “E-nEFEL
(Note 32) RBRE (Witz) - - - - - (21,865) (21,865)
Interim dividend relating 10 2020  —E-ZFE 2
(Note 32) RS (HE32) - - - - - (7,260) (7.260)
Balance at RZBZFE+ZR
31 December 2020 Zt-Bi&s 61,510 3728 17,829 5233 37,758 463,769 619,827
Representing; f%:
Reserves HE 608,813
Final dividend proposed BERERE
(Note 32) (Wit32) 11,014
Balance at RZB-8%+ZR
31 December 2020 =T-Bi&R 619,827
HIEREEKRERAR o« —E_TFEFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

PEDN

Fiy

18

19

MEmEAME (F)

RESERVES (continued)

Other reserves (Continued)

Nature and purpose

Merger reserve

Merger reserve of the Group represents the difference between the
cost of investments in subsidiaries and nominal value of the share
capital and share premium of the subsidiaries in 2007 arising from
the application of merger accounting in consolidating the financial
information of the affected entities.

Statutory reserve fund

Under the relevant PRC laws and regulations, PRC companies
are required to allocate 10% of the companies’ net profit to the
fund until such fund reaches 50% of the companies’ registered
capital. The statutory reserve fund can be utilised, upon approval
by the relevant authorities, to offset against accumulated losses
or to increase registered capital of the companies, provided that
such fund is maintained at a minimum of 25% of the companies’
registered capital.

Share-based compensation reserve

The share-based compensation reserve is used to recognise the
grant date fair value of options issued to employees but not
exercised (Note 19).

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT COMPENSATION

(a) Share options

As at 31 December 2020, 3,408,000 share options (as at 31
December 2019: 3,408,000 share options) were outstanding
and all of them are exercisable (as at 31 December 2019:
same). Among the outstanding share options, 2,846,000 (as
at 31 December 2019: 2,846,000 share options) and 562,000
(as at 31 December 2019: 562,000 share options) share
options will lapse on 9 September 2021 and 4 September
2022, respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, no share option
was exercised. During the year ended 31 December 2019,
6,087,000 share options was exercised at proceeds of
approximately HK$3,774,000. Share options exercised during
the year ended 31 December 2019 were issued at a weighted
average exercise price of HK$0.62 per share. The related
weighted average closing price at the time of exercise for the
year ended 31 December 2019 was HK$1.10 per share.
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19

EREEC D)

H iR (@)

14t &R 2

A oEE
AEBMAHEEERHBRARINEE
RARRAEDEEMBARNNR ST+
FAGTYERBUEENSRAA M
EHEMEAMBRDREHEE -

JATE R

REBBTFBEEARERL  PERAL
AR ARMAEI0%D P EZFEES
HEZRESEERREMERN50%
Bl - ZERFRBERKAEEERMERT
AR R EE IR N A B /M E
Ao EZFEESBAEFTRARIEMER
ZE P25%HKF -

LR G 1T BB E 7

IRHAZ e @EEDRRERE T
EEEMARTENEREAFELANR
(& (Hf5E19) ©

LURR 19 32 A9 9 B =

(a) B
RZE-_ZTF+=_A=+—80"
3,408,000 R E (R=ZZF— 1
F+=-A=+—8H :3,408,0001p
B mARITE B2EHAT T
TER=ZE—NF+=_A=+—
B :A8R) - FEHARITEBRESR -
2,846,000 (R=—ZFE—hE+= A
=+ —H :2,846,0001 & & 1) &
562,000 (R=—ZE—NLE+-A
=+—H : 562,000 i B 4E) BE IR
SRR —_BE-_—FhANLBE R
TE_FRARAMBKRM

BE-_ZT-TF+=ZAR=+—8H
EFE BETEBERE -HE=
T—NE+_A=+—"BHLEEFE"
6,087,00017 fE IR E B 1T - P 1S
FKIE 43,774,000 L - HE - F
—NWE+—A=+—HBHLEFERT
FBREDEMETLATEES
fRO.G2BTLET - HE-T—NF
TZA=F+—HLEFE THERKZ
MR ME TN mER TR 105

JG ©



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

19 SHARE-BASED PAYMENT COMPENSATION

(Continued)

FEMBHRRME (F)

19 UGB XM E @

Scheme, to (i) recognise the contributions by employees,
directors, consultants or advisers of or to the Group (the
“Eligible Persons”); and (ii) offer suitable incentives to attract
and retain targeted talents and personnel for the continuance
of operations and future development of the Group. Subject
to the rules as set under the Scheme, the Board may at its
absolute discretion to elect any Eligible Persons to participate
in the Scheme (the “Selected Persons”) and to award the
Company’s shares (the “Awarded Shares”) to these Selected
Persons, subject to vesting conditions, if any. These Awarded
Shares will be transferred to the Selected Persons upon their
fulfillment of all relevant vesting conditions.

RAEERZERERAR o

(a) Share options (Continued) (a) E%H“*E ()
During the year ended 31 December 2020, no share option HE_Z_ZHE+_A=+—HI
was lapsed and forfeited (during the year ended 31 December EF; $E%ﬁﬁ%ﬂxﬁé9€xﬂl&%&a% (&
2019: 883,000 share options were lapsed and no share —NF+ZA=+—BILF
option was forfeited). F“ 883 00017 B IR #E B K B R
ERERAEROR U ©
As all the share options were fully vested, no share-based EEEAFﬁ*ﬁﬁ%HﬂEi’J EEHER W
payment expense was recognised during the year ended 31 HE_Z_ZHF+_A=+—HI
December 2020 (during the year ended 31 December 2019: FE TR LA D A A 2 (&R
Nil). —NWFE+ZA=+—HBLF
A
Movements in the number of share options outstanding and MARITE IR 2 S A R E AT
their related exercise prices are as follows: EEZEHUT :
2020 2019
Average Number Average Number
exercise of share exercise of share
price in HK$ options  price in HK$ options
per share (thousands) per share (thousands)
BRUET BB
SHEZFY BREZHE E2TEH BREZHE
TEE (F1) 1B (F%)
At 1 January R—A—H 0.62 3,408 0.62 10,378
Granted B - - - -
Forfeited R - - - -
Exercised 171E - - 0.62 (6,087)
Lapsed 2 HR - - 0.62 (883)
Cancelled iy - — _
At 31 December Rt+t=B=+—H 0.62 3,408 0.62 3,408
(b) Shares award (b) R{EEE
On 23 September 2016, the Company has adopted the RZEBE-—XRFAAZT=A0 XA

AIERMETE - MOFEARER
BE EF HHAXER(AE
BATD FTERRE R - (it ¢
HEREBMARSIRBRBERAT R
ABUEAKERBERLERBERAR
o ZRMUEABIAEMRA  EF2
ARERBEETMEERALS
B8 ([BEAL] RA L FE
BALTHREANRA D ([2RE) R
fn)) ERBTHEBGRE (WH) -
Itk S5 22 B0 A 10 5 TR BT 8 AR A 5R U 1
HERTRERZEEAL -

—E_TFFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
l'/T\ = Eﬁﬁ#&%ﬁﬁui (AA)

19 SHARE-BASED PAYMENT COMPENSATION

(Continued)

19 UGB XM E @

(b) K17 8@ (@)
RPITHETS  AEED 255

(b) Shares award (Continued)

In connection with the implementation of the Scheme, the

Group has signed a trust deed with an independent third
party to act as the trustee (the “Trustee”) to hold certain
shares on behalf of the Group and the Selected Persons
before these Awarded Shares are granted and/or vested.
The Group may from time to time instruct the Trustee to
purchase the Company’s shares from the market on the Stock
Exchange and to hold them in trust for the benefit of the
Selected Persons.

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019,
no shares were purchased on the Stock Exchange by the
Trustee on behalf of the Group. No shares were granted to
Eligible Persons under the Scheme during the years ended 31
December 2020 and 2019.

YE=ZITRETRBEROERH
R/RGBA - FRAREAEER
EEAIRARSROMNITEA
(IZFEAD BT EAERE - AKHE

ATRERIEACEB AT SE
BEARRNBRG » W ABEAN LR
RIEBAGEEEATBEB BN

HE-_Z-_ZTER-_T—NAF+=
B=+—RHLEE - X%Awﬂﬁ
RAE BRI ATE B T ARHD

@ifg_fiﬁiﬁ—ﬂ¢+:
A=+—RLEE BMERGRIE

EmMAERALRE -

20 SHARE CAPITAL 20 IR
Number of
shares HK$'000
Mg B THET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each BRO.OIBTHEER
Authorised: ETE
At 1 January 2019, 31 December 2019, R=ZE-hE-A—8"
1 January 2020 and 31 December 2020 = g hE+=R=+-8"
—E-EF-A-HR
—B-EF+=H=t—H 10,000,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRER
At 1 January 2019 R-Z-h&—-HA—H 728,175,697 7,282
Exercise of share options TEERE 6,087,000 61
At 31 December 2019 and R-BE-NE+=A=+-—H
31 December 2020 kR—Z2-ZH5+-A=+-—H 734,262,697 7,343
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FEMBHRRME (F)

21 BORROWINGS 21 BE&
2020 2019
—B-FF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Non-current: s -
Secured bank borrowings without WEZEREBGRZ
repayable on demand clause BEHRFRITEE 303 405
Secured other borrowings without WEZERERIGRZ
repayable on demand clause EERAEMEER 3,077 715
3,380 1,120
Current: mE
Secured bank borrowings with BEBREREEGERZ
repayable on demand clauses BB ITEE 116,528 64,779
Secured bank borrowings without WERBSKERERZ
repayable on demand clause BEMBRITEE 1,116 292
Secured other borrowings without I i ERIEBER 2
repayable on demand clause EERAEMEER 77 232
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 17,721 65303
121,101 66,423

As at 31 December 2020, the borrowings are denominated in the

following currencies:

R-B_ZTFFT_A=+—B &UT
E¥IIEZEENT

2020 2019
—E-EF —T-NEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET
HK$ BT 18,922 26,644
uss$ EV 97,606 38,135
Japanese Yen (“JPY") HE(HED 4,573 1,644
121,101 66,423

The carrying amounts of borrowings approximate their fair values HRMTRZHETTERN  BEZER

as the impact of discounting is not significant. BHEAAFEES

PIEEBRIEREBRRE o —T-_DFEER



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBRRME (E)

21 BORROWINGS (continued)

As at 31 December 2020, the repayment terms of the borrowings
without taking into account the effect of repayable on demand
clauses are as follows:

21 BE @

R-FB_ZTHFE+_A=1+—8 AKH
MEEAEY BT RIZEREEERIOF
8T BEMERHMOT

2020 2019

—EEHF —E-hF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FAETT

Within 1 year R1FER 55,370 17,511
Between 1 and 2 years 1522F 7 & 25,383 15,819
Between 2 and 5 years 2% 5% 7 [E 38,778 31,181
Over 5 years 5L F 1,570 1,912
121,101 66,423

The weighted average effective interest rate per annum of the
Group's borrowings at 31 December 2020 and at 31 December
2019 are set out as follows:

K\—?—Yﬂz—'— H —'—_E&—?
—NE+TZA=1T—H XEEEEW
miEFEERFMEEFTIWT

2020 2019
—EEHF —E—hF
HK$ BT 2.70% 3.00%

The Group has complied with the financial covenants of its
borrowing facilities during the year ended 31 December 2020 and
during the year ended 31 December 2019.

Except for bank and other borrowings of approximately
HK$4,573,000 as at 31 December 2020 (31 December 2019:
approximately HK$1,644,000), which was secured by personal
guarantee of a non-controlling interest of the Group, other bank
borrowings were secured by certain property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets.
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HEZZ-_ZF+-_A=+T—HLFE
FHE-_FT—NAhF+-_A=+—HLHF
B ANEEEETHEERE 2 VIERE -

BRR-ZZEZZFTEF+-A=+—HBmRT
N E {8 & 494,573,000 7T (ZE— AN
F+=-A=+—H: #1,644,000% T)
LA 7R €5 (8] 3F 2 iR a5 2 {8 A $& 4R 1E 35 17
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

21 BORROWINGS (Continued)

The carrying amounts of assets pledged as security for borrowings
are as follows:

FEMBHRRME (F)

21 BE @)
RIEEDEREEEEGENT -

2020 2019

et —T-NEF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FER FAT

Property, plant and equipment M - BEREE 24,635 27,678

Right-of-use assets EREEE 30,204 31,233
Total carrying amounts of assets EEREE

pledged as security 2 AR 4R FR 54,839 58,911

At the balance sheet date, the following is the undrawn banking
facilities of the Group:

REER  ANEBZHARIRARTTH
B

2020 2019
—B-FF —T-hE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FTAT
Floating rate: SZEFER
Expiring within one year R —E N5 292,329 309,545

22 TRADE PAYABLES

The ageing analysis of trade payables by invoice date is as follows:

22 ENEZERX
R SRR E AR AT -

2020 2019
—E-%F —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FET
1-30 days 1Z30H 131,371 211,455
31-60 days 312608 2,434 8,037
61-90 days 61290H 2,542 5,172
Over 90 days 90H M E 1,607 1,766
137,954 226,430
2020 2019
—E-FF —FTNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TAT
Denominated in: WA T EEDIE
- RMB — AR 113,928 180,759
- HK$ — BT 4,183 5,813
- US$ —E7T 16,852 34,127
— Other currencies —EMhEEE 2,991 5,731
137,954 226,430
BRI AR AR ¢ — B -TEER 131
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

GERBHERRME (F)

23 ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES

23 BEErEAREMENSRE

2020 2019
—BEF —ZE-hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT T
Current; Vo2

Advance from customers (Note) EEENR M) 26,586 19,634
Other payables o e 5018 124,568 133,260
Accruals EEEA 133,360 179,272
284,514 332,166

Non-current: FERED -
Other payables H e IR 10,363 6,495
294,877 338,661

The carrying values of these balances approximate their fair values.

Note:

Revenue recognised during the year ended 31 December 2020 that was included
in the advance from customers balance at the beginning of the year amounted to
approximately HK$ 13,746,000 (2019: approximately HK$12,418,000). The Group
expects to deliver the goods to satisfy the remaining performance obligations of
these contract liabilities within one year or less.

24 LOANS FROM NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 24

Loans from non-controlling interests are unsecured, interest-free
and repayable on demand. The carrying value of these liabilities
approximate their fair values.

As at 31 December 2020, these balances are denominated in the
following currencies:

BT

BE_T_TF+_A=+—HLFE"
REDet AR FBENFEHRZ EEREALD
13,746,000 7T (= F — L4 : £712,418,000
BIL) c ARBEEHN — FRERE RN
EmMBETHEaNARZBTEORE -

REFERER Z2ERK
RS B AR &

Q&E&EH‘ZEE EERENKREE
HERNFEBS -

R-B_ZTHF+_A=+—8" UAT7
E¥IIE L FREHOT

2020 2019

—E-FHF —F—NF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FAT

HK$ BT 15,992 15,992
JPY AE 1,526 1,454
17,518 17,446
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25 EXPENSES BY NATURE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

25

The following expenses/(gains) are included in cost of sales,
distribution costs, administrative expenses and net impairment

losses on financial assets:

FEMBHRRME (F)

BMEEEIZHAX

FTABEERA  DHEERA THRASZ K
SREEREBEFEANAY ()
F i an R

2020 2019
—E-EF —T-hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Changes in inventories FTEE 649,105 1,082,056
Auditor’s remuneration A G
— Audit services — Z B R 15 2,680 2,680
— Non-audit services — IR ERTE 300 320
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - WERFEESN
equipment E 50,033 45,915
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENTE 8,703 8,764
Amortisation of intangible assets | EER S 1,255 2,184
Other lease expenses* HEuHEERY* 7,579 9,779
Provision for obsolete inventories REFEMNEBRE 29,293 6,572
Direct written off of obsolete inventories BEEMERERE 1,006 1,132
Net impairment losses on financial assets eRIEEREEETE 14,554 9,701
Employee benefit expenses EERBAHX 341,187 481,495
Transportation expenses EHEA 57,282 86,547
Exchange (gains)/losses, net P& (W) /B85 5 (11,910) 8,057
Advertising costs B &R 10,512 15,814
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWE BWENRERED
equipment i 179 180
Direct operating expenses arising from REEEHEZKA
an investment property that generates Z—IRIEMEY
rental income EEREERY 21 49
Utilities expenses NSRS 19,849 25,314
* These expenses relate to short-term leases. They are directly charged as * Y EFAX G HEEHEM LESHEEA

expenses and are not included in the measurement of lease liabilities

under HKFRS 16 Leases.

B ARX AT 8ETEMBRSE
AlF16REETFHERBEERE -

26 OTHER INCOME 26 HMW A

2020 2019
e —TNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FABTT
Rental income (Note 8) HMEWA (H1728) 310 313
Income from sales of scrap materials SHE BERIRA 659 1,820
Government grants (Note (i) Tl B (A7) 24,810 7,052

Gain on dissolution of subsidiaries NG P
(Note (ii)) (H1a2a1) 8,201 1,280
Others HAh 1,751 649
35,731 11,114

HIEREEKRERAR o« —E_TFEFR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ReMBERRME (K)

26 OTHER INCOME (continued) 26 Hug A )

Notes: Biat -
(i) Government grants recognised were primarily related to the capital (i) ERRZBEFMAFEZEHAER 2 ER
investments of the Group; refund of unemployment insurance from the BE REFPEBRFZRERBRERN
PRC Government and subsidies from the Hong Kong Government under EBFBFRERNEERES 2 HAER -
the Anti-epidemic Fund. There were no unfulfilled conditions and other U BR % 55 8 Bh 30 B A R E K IS R B
contingencies attached to the receipts of those grants. b3k SR 4
(ii) The Group completed the dissolution of a subsidiary during the year (i) AREBREE T -_ZEF+_-_A=+—
ended 31 December 2020 and recognised a gain of approximately AIEFESKBER —MHERR - IR
HK$8,201,000 in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, fRE &MU R R UM A 498,201,000
including reclassification of cumulative currency translation difference of BT REEM AR EEREETE
approximately HK$6,490,000. 496,490,000/ 7T, ©
27 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 27 EEREFBX
2020 2019
—E-%F —E-hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER T
Salaries, wages and bonuses He -  TENMIEA 328,553 432,163
Pension costs — defined contribution plans RIREBA — R EHERETE 1,769 1,521
Welfare and other expenses B R H AR 10,865 47,811
341,187 481,495
Five highest paid individuals TEREHFMAL

BE_ZE-_ZTF+_-_A=+—RHILFE "
AEERERFMATBEERIZES (B
E-T-hAE+-A=+—HItEE &
ZEDE) EFEMHNTE DK FE3T7

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 include five directors
(for the year ended 31 December 2019: five directors) whose
emoluments are reflected in the analysis shown in Note 37.

BE_E-_ZTHF+_A=+—BHILEE -
AEEWEAREMEMNALTHNESNEA
ANEBRAEEMBEAE BRI FEBE K
AELXEBNMZAHBEE(BHE=Z
—NWFE+-—A=+—HLFE : &) -

No emoluments have been paid to the individual or the directors
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office for the year ended 31 December
2020 (for the year ended 31 December 2019: Nil).

28 FINANCE INCOME AND FINANCE COSTS 28 Bf#& Uk A B BE & B A
2020 2019
—E-FF —TNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT T
Interest expenses on borrowings EEZFERAX (2,571) (2,630)
Less: amount capitalised on qualifying assets & : Bt& B IR EEEF
BAR L 2FE - 1,372
(2,571) (1,258)
Interest expenses on lease liabilities HEAECFERX (341) (496)
Fnamcecosts O BERA @912 (1.754)
_Financeincome #B®A 1042 1,515
Finance costs, net WIS AR T 58 (1,870) (239)
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(Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2019, interest expenses on
borrowings were capitalised at the weighted average rate of its
general borrowings of approximately 3.00%.

29 SUBSIDIARIES

28 FINANCE INCOME AND FINANCE COSTS 28

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

BE—

FEMBHRRME (F)

Bt 7 WA & B 7 R AN ()

—hEFE+-A=+—BLFE"

fﬁEZﬂE\Eﬂﬁé${t&E RIEE®

IN#EF 5 FIE£3.00% °

29 B

Proportion of ordinary

Particulars of ) Proportion of
. shares held directly .
issued share op ordinary shares
. st Rt Al
capital/ held by non-
Place of incorporation Principal activities registered by by controlling
Name of company and kind of legal entity and place of operation capital parent  the Group interests
BRIRE/ FERER
EER LR &Rz HEAE  HAKE FEEBR
NAEH HREREL TERBREE S #F  EERRE  EEBRE Z LAl
Ming Fai Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands, limited ~ Investment holding; Hong Kong Us$100 100% - -
liability company
PEERERAA EEANEE BREMLNR REARR A 100%7T 100% - -
Ming Fai Asia Pacific Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Trading of hospitality supplies HK$10,000,000 - 100% -
Company Limited company products, operating supplies and
equipment and health care and
i ‘ hygienic products; Hong Kong o
BETABRAR B BRALAA PERGHEOEES S8 1000000047 - 100% -
Fm &uﬂ%iﬁﬁﬁé@& g
Bm: BE
Ming Fai Enterprise International  Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Trading of hospitality supplies HK$1,000,000 - 100% -
Company Limited company products, operating supplies and
equipment and health care and
hygienic products; Hong Kong
HEEXER i BRELAT HEBEREREER %‘L 1,000,000/ - 100% -
BRAF AokiERRRER AL
Am: B8
Ming Fai Industrial (Shenzhen)  The PRC, limited liability Manufacturing and trading of HK$50,000,000 - 100% -
Company Limited company (Taiwan, Hong hospitality supplies products,
Kong and Macau's sole trading of operating supplies and
proprietorship of legal equipment and manufacturing
person) and trading of health care and
hygienic products; the PRC
PEEX(RYDBRAR  #E BREMNA(AER REXHERERELRES 5000000027 - 100% -
EANBE) RESEMRRREAREE
REERFEEREERM
EF
H-Square Hospitality Total Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Trading of operating supplies and HK$1,000 - 100% -
Solution Company Limited company equmment Hon Kong o
BB ERERRAR - ﬁ EEE RECERMRRE B4 1,000%7 - 100% -
Shenzhen H-Square Hospitality  The PRC, limited liability Trading of operating supplies and ~ HK$50,000,000 - 100% -
Total Solution Company company (Taiwan, Hong equipment; the PRC
Limited Kong and Macau's sole
proprietorship of legal
person)
MINERBEREARAT  FH EREELNA (582 BELEARRRE: +E 50,000,007 - 100% -
ENEE)
IKONE Design Limited Hong Kong, limited liability Provision of professional solutions HK$1,000 - 100% -
company in product design, corporate
branding, gifts & premiums, and
event management services;
) Hong Kong o
TEREMRRTERA &% BREARH km%ﬁum BER 1000787 - 100% -
\DD}%—L%E L\uu&
EENREIRT B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

GERBHERRME (F)

29 SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

29 B AT @)

Proportion of ordinary

Particulars of . Proportion of
. shares held directly .
issued share AR ordinary shares
capital/ held by non-
Place of incorporation Principal activities registered by by controlling
Name of company and kind of legal entity and place of operation capital parent the Group interests
BRITRE/ FERER
ML R dfExe  BEAR  HAKE FEEER
DAER HERERER TERBREE S #F  EERE  EEBRE Z LAl
IKONE Design (Shenzhen) The PRC, limited liability Provision of professional solutions HK$1,000,000 - 100% -
Limited company (Taiwan, Hong in product design, corporate
Kong and Macau's sole branding, gifts & premiums, and
proprietorship of legal event management services;
person) the PRC
TEREM &R mE BREEAR (AR REEXERRG MER 1,000,00077T - 100% -
(RYNBR AT ENEE) mERBAR M
REREIR
Ming Fai Innovative Skin Care  Hong Kong, limited liability Manufacturing and trading of HK$100,000 - 100% -
Lab Limited company hospitality supplies products
and health care and hygienic
products; Hong Kong
BRI EEHITA B BREARA BERHEREMRE 10,0007 - 100% -
BRAT ﬁiﬁﬁuuﬁﬁﬁ*ﬁ@&
BERR BB
Wayoutokushin Co., Ltd. Japan, limited liability Product development and trading ~ JPY140,000,000 - 51% 49%
company of body care products; Japan
WA GHNBEE A7 BREAAF SEEBERARERES BF 140,000,000 - 51% 49%
Quality Amenities Singapore, limited liability Trading of hospitality supplies Singapore dollar - 100% -
Supply Pte. Limited company products, operating supplies and 100,000
equipment and health care and
hygienic products; Singapore
Quality Amenities o EREARE HERLHEREER 48 100,000 - 100% -
Supply Pte. Limited AomREERERELREA MR
B Bg
Teng Xun Limited Cambodia, limited liability Manufacturing and trading of US$4,000,000 - 100% -
company hospitality supplies products and
trading of operating supplies and
equipment; Cambodia
Teng Xun Limited RmE ARELLH HERHEEEHEREERR  4,000000%7 - 100% -
HECERRLER REE
Oriental Lotus Hotel Supplies  India, limited liability Manufacturing and trading of Indian Rupee - 51% 49%
Private Limited company hospitality supplies products and 238,300,530
trading of operating supplies and
equipment; India
Oriental Lotus Hotel Supplies 1% "R E A BERRERELEEREERR 38,300,530 - 51% 49%
Private Limited HERBERLRE DE HEEN

Ming Fai International Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

INCOME TAX EXPENSES

FEMBHRRME (F)

30 IMEHIMAX

The amount of income tax charged/(credited) to the consolidated Rizd2ERERMNE(BE) &S
statement of comprehensive income represents: BRemEa:
2020 2019
—_ 7 —_ ﬁf :%_)LLE'E
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Current income tax: BVERFTIS R
— Hong Kong profits tax —BENEH 20,243 20,546
— PRC enterprise income tax — B EFTISH 7.341 12,995
— Other overseas profits tax — H A8 MRS 403 906
Adjustments in respect of prior year BEFEAE (353) 920
27,634 35,367
Deferred income tax (Note 10) BEIEPISHE (132 10) (697) (345)
26,937 35,022

Taxation has been provided at the appropriate rates prevailing in
the jurisdictions in which the Group operates.

Hong Kong profits tax, PRC enterprise income tax, Singapore
corporate income tax and Cambodia corporate income tax are
calculated at 16.5% (2019: 16.5%), 25% (2019: 25%), 17%
(2019: 17%) and 20% (2019: 20%) on the estimated assessable
profits for the year ended 31 December 2020 respectively.

Taxes on other overseas profits have been calculated at the rates
of tax prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group operates,
based on existing legislation, interpretations and practices in respect
thereof.

The difference between the actual income tax charged to the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income and the amounts
which would result from applying the enacted tax rates to profit
before income tax can be reconciled as follows:

IR Jh iR 7K & (B 4% ‘& P £ B OA #E & 3B
BB AR AT IR B o

EBFER  PECEMRSHR - FMEL
EFMSRERBECEMSHR DIREBE
E-E-FEE+-_A=+—HItFER
SHERFER D BIA16.5% (Z T —N4F -
16.5% ) ~25% (=T — LF : 25% ) *
17% (ZZ—NF :17%) %20% (= F
—NE 20%)EE -

H 495 53 Rl 2 B2 T 48 7K 9 B B
ERDERE 2 8 BRI TR
TS 1 VEEE

mAEZERERPERMEH SRR
7 K%R—v—&'s’t*u‘l—ﬁﬁ %/Eﬂﬁ' /ﬁ]limu-l— Fﬁ
SeE ERURMOT :

2020 2019
—_ 7 —_ ﬁf :%_)LLE'E
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Profit before income tax RETFT B BDAEF 101,537 127,102
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates REARSEREERR
applicable to profits in the respective 5&*‘]5’9%%&3—(
jurisdictions TERNFIE 16,171 21,722
Income not subject to tax ﬂi’f/,\ %XRE’JJ%U\ (6,691) (6,915)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes AT IE 89 A 2 7.830 7,455
Utilisation of prior year tax losses BRBTFECHBER (1,121) (121)
Adjustments in respect of prior year BEFERAE (353) 920
Tax losses for which no deferred T RERBEEMESHEE
income tax asset was recognised wHi 1B B 1R 11,101 11,961
Tax charge HEL 26,937 35,022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
l'/T\ = Eﬁﬁ#&%ﬁﬁui (AA)

30

31

INCOME TAX EXPENSES (continued)

The weighted average applicable tax rate was 17% per annum
for the year ended 31 December 2020 (for the year ended 31
December 2019: 17% per annum). The change is caused by a
change in the profitability of the Group’s subsidiaries in respective
jurisdictions.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried
forward to the extent that realisation of the related tax benefit
through the future taxation profits is probable. The Group has
unrecognised tax losses of approximately HK$220,435,000
(31 December 2019: approximately HK$196,965,000) as at 31
December 2020 to offset against future taxable income. These tax
losses expire in the following years:

30 Fﬁ?%'cﬁﬁﬁ -3¢ )

HE_T-_ZF+_A=+—HLEFE
Eﬁﬂu%ﬂ?t’hﬁﬁm BFE1T% (HE=
E—NAF+-_A=+—HLEFE: tﬁ
17%) HERETRAAEENBA
TE@RERENAF RN -

i E TS TR & 2 Ty [ 8 AR B8 A S A & Al
R DN = o
ZHEEEBERER R _ZT_TF+—
A=+—H AEEBZAERHIEEIE
49220,435,0008 L (ZZE— L F+= A
=+—H : #4196,965,000/87) » A K
RIREARTUWA o W EFHIEEEBHR T
FHEMm ¢

2020 2019
—E-8F —E—hF
HK$000 HK$'000
In the first to fifth years inclusive E-FE2ERF (BIEERERF) 136,207 125,503
In the sixth to tenth years inclusive BERFEETF (BEEEMSF) 5,151 1,464
No expiry date = 79,077 69,998
220,435 196,965

EARNINGS PER SHARE 31 BREF

(a) Basic (a) &R

Basic earnings per share attributable to owners of the
Company is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to

ARBER NEIESRERRF A
$ATT§&§AE¢£@%U&%M¢WE

owners of the Company by the weighted average number of BT MR 2 T E
ordinary shares in issue during the year.
2020 2019
—BCEH —ZE-NEF
Profit attributable to owners of the RN THEE AES R
Company (HK$°000) (F¥T) 79,046 97,936
Weighted average number of ordinary BRI SRR INE TS
shares in issue (thousands) (Fh) 728,839 726,910
Basic earnings per share attributable &2 T #EHE AELS
to owners of the Company BRERBF
(HK cents) (GEAl) 10.8 13.5
(b) Diluted (b) #58

Diluted earnings per share attributable to owners of the
Company is calculated by adjusting the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding to assume conversion
of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. The Company has
share options as dilutive potential shares. A calculation was
done to determine the number of shares that could have
been acquired at fair value (determined as the average
annual market price of the shares) based on the monetary
value of the subscription rights attached to the outstanding
share options. The number of shares calculated as above was
compared with the number of shares that would have been
issued assuming the exercise of the share options.
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31 EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)

(b) Diluted (continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBERME (E)

31 EREN @
(b) #58 @

2020 2019
—EIEF —T-NEF
Profit attributable to owners of the PAN/NSIE ¥ = DN L bl
Company (HK$'000) (F#T) 79,046 97,936
Weighted average number of ordinary BT T B e
shares in issue (thousands) EHE(FAR) 728,839 726,910
Adjustment for: FEE
— Share options (thousands) — R (F17) 545 2,009
Weighted average number of ordinary BREE RN T BR
shares for diluted earnings per share 2 INREE
(thousands) (FAR) 729,384 728,919
Diluted earnings per share attributable 72 7% & A E1S
to owners of the Company BREBERER
(HK cents) (GB1l) 10.8 13.4

32 DIVIDENDS

32 BB

On 27 May 2020, a final dividend of HK3.0 cents per share for the
year ended 31 December 2019 was approved by the Company’s
shareholders. Total dividend of approximately HK$22,028,000 was
paid out, including dividend paid to the shares held for the Scheme.

On 26 August 2020, the Board resolved to approve an interim
dividend of HK1.0 cent per share for the six months ended 30 June
2020. Total dividend of approximately HK$7,343,000 was paid out,
including dividend paid to the shares held for the Scheme.

The final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December
2020 of HK1.5 cents per share, amounting to a total dividend
of approximately HK$11,014,000 was resolved by the Board to
propose on 25 March 2021, which is subject to approval at the
annual general meeting of the Company to be held on 26 May
2021. This proposed dividend is not reflected as a dividend payable
in the consolidated financial statements, but reflected as an
appropriation of retained earnings for the year ended 31 December
2020.

RAEERZERERAR o

R-ZEBE-_FTERA=-++H  A2FIK
REHERZEEHE-_T—LF+=A
=+ —BIEFEZREAR S T30 -
#922,028,000/%8 7T 2 IR B AR FEE SR 3% -
BRERTE TRE ZCRNERE ZKE -

RZZE-_ZTFNA=-Z+ B EFg
BRABABE-_T_TEFERA=1A
IERBEAZHHREFTRI.0EAM - &
7,343,000 T 2 IR EAAEEEIRE - B
ERAE TRHREZRHERE ZRE -

R-_TE-_—F=A_-_+HH BFg
FEARBRERBREBEE_Z_TF+_- A
=T —HILEFENRBREATRRSHE
il - BE EABEEHI11,014,000/8 7T © AR
BR—_TE-—FRA -+ BEITHARN
ARAIRERAF ARG B AR - F A
B -HEZEREMARGEEVBERER
MAENKRE BERBAHBE-ZT=-F
FHZA=1T—RIEFEMNDERBRAF -

—E_TFFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ReMBERRME (K)

33 NOTE TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

33 MEBHERERKE

(a) RETAMBHARANELRE

(a) Reconciliation of profit before income tax to

cash generated from operations XBFESRENYR
2020 2019
—EBC-BHF —E—hNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Profit before income tax RETFT1S B A& T 101,537 127,102
Adjustments for: EYEH TR :
— Depreciation of property, plant - BER
and equipment (Note 6) REBITE (Kite) 50,033 45,915
— Depreciation of right-of-use —ERAREENE
assets (Note 7(b)) (Htzt7(b) 8,703 8,764
— Amortisation of intangible — A E
assets (Note 9(b)) (K1 #£9(b)) 1,255 2,184
— Gain on dissolution of subsidiaries . CENGIPA
(Note 26) (Htzt26) (8,201) (1,280)
— Loss on disposal of property, —HEWE - HEK
plant and equipment HEHEE
(Note 33(b)) (K1:£33(b)) 179 180
— Finance income (Note 28) — BB UR A (B 3£28) (1,042) (1,515)
— Finance costs (Note 28) — BB R AS (B 3£28) 2,912 1,754
— Provision for obsolete inventories —RETFTENEE

(Note 11) (Ba%11) 29,293 6,572

— Direct written off for obsolete —EEMERETE

inventories (Note 11) (Btat11) 1,006 1,132
— Net impairment losses on —SRMEERBEES

financial assets (Note 12) RER(H17E12) 14,554 9,701
— Share of profit of an associated — BB E AR

company i ) (381) (897)
— Share of profit of a —EE—REEEDLE

joint venture St ) (24) (56)
— Fair value gain on an investment ——IHREWMEZ

property (Note 8) N EWE (F1728) (787) -

Changes in working capital: EEESEE

— Inventories - FE 9,879 (38,130)
— Trade and bills receivables - BWESERRERE 90,605 59,731
— Other assets — HMhEE 11,882 (12,649)
— Other financial assets at — B ARNER 2

amortised cost EfhemEE 313 (342)
— Trade payables — ENE SRR (102,496) 4,059
— Accruals and - EHEAR

other payables IR (59,455) 42,130
— Amount due from an associated — W —FH ‘9‘%%—."“ Al

company KB 2,076 (1,922)
— Amounts due from joint ventures — G ERERIE (546) 230

Cash generated from operations REEBPRENRE 151,295 252,663
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ReMBERME (F)

33 NOTE TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 33
CASH FLOWS (continued)

FERERERFE @

(b) Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and
equipment

(b) HENR BMERREMRS
b
REERERERT HENE.
BERREABRERSE

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds from
disposal of property, plant and equipment comprise:

2020 2019
—E-EF —T-NEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Net book amount: BRE A ¢
— Property, plant and equipment —M% - WERRKE
(Note 6) (Htst6) 807 4,985
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEME  BWERZEZ
equipment (Note 25) &1 (K77t25) (179) (180)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant &9 - ME L &E#E
and equipment Fr 8 3/ I8 628 4,805
() Net debt reconciliation (c) BEBZHE
Liabilities from financing activities
REMEEZBZER
Loans from
non-controlling
Borrowings  Lease liabilities interests Total
FERER
HE HESE NER @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THEL THEL TET TAT
Net debt as at RZB-h¥
1 January 2019 —-A-BzEEfE 34,588 5,224 15,492 55,304
Cash flows BeRE 28,832 (5916) 500 23,416
Addition due to business AEBA
combination MmRE 1,972 435 1,460 3,867
Addition to lease liabilities HEBERE - 8,050 - 8,050
Finance costs (Note 28) B (f7228) 1,258 496 - 1,754
Foreign exchange adjustments INE TR (227) (152) (6) (385)
Net debt as at RZE-AFE+ZA
31 December 2019 St-B2EAf 66,423 8,137 17,446 92,006
Cash flows Bene 52,152 (5,986) - 46,166
Addition to lease liabilities BEREARE 7308 - 7,308
Finance cost (Note 28) BISRA (B77228) 2,571 341 - 2,912
Foreign exchange adjustments HNE B (45) 233 72 260
Net debt as at R-E-Z5+-H
31 December 2020 =t-HZEaf 121,101 10,033 17,518 148,652
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBRRME (E)

34

35

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2020, the capital commitments of the
Group were approximately HK$6,654,000 (31 December 2019:

34

BEAXARE

N-_ZE-_ZTF+-_A=+—H8 ' A£H
7 & 72N 7 HE #496,654,0008 T (Z 2 — 1

approximately HK$45,406,000). FH+ZA=+—H : #45,406,000% 7T ) °
2020 2019
—EC-EF —E—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TH T T T
Contracted but not provided for in the BRI AW R 4R & B 75

consolidated financial statements MR NG 6,654 45,406

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 35 B ARXZ

Related parties are those parties that have the ability to control the
other party or exercise significant influence in making financial and
operating decisions. Parties are also considered to be related if they

are subject to common control.

The ultimate controlling parties of the Group are Mr. CHING Chi
Fai, Mr. CHING Chi Keung, Mr. LIU Zigang and Ms. CHAN Yim

Ching.

(a) Significant related party transactions

il ] — T BE4EH 5 — 77 - KR HE MK
REEARETREATEN  BREH
Hﬁ“jj_ X:tlJ/\

[l 2 %1 49 & B8 75 TR R AR &

BARE DT

The Group has carried out significant transactions with the

following related parties:

Name of related party
BB REEB

Principal business activities

ITEXKED

REB 2 REAESH T BIE
HORELE - Bl FMIEERRYS L -

SEELE A2

(a) EXEBARS

REBDEP TR ETEAR
Z

Relationship with the Group
HEAREEZBER

Ming Fai Plastic Industrial
Company

B

BREXRAA

Quality Amenities Supply (M)
Sdn. Bhd.

Quality Amenities Supply (M)
Sdn. Bhd.

iBridge Technology
(Shenzhen) Limited
("iBridge Technology”)

BEHEEE ORI BR A A
(TREHERE])

Manufacturing of plastic products
(Ceased manufacturing of plastic
products since April 2003)

HEPRER(B_ZTT=F
ORI REBRER)

Trading of hospitality supplies
products, operating supplies and
equipment and health care and
hygienic products

HEBEHEMBER €8
PR am SRR B2 R AR IR L BT AE
M

Provision of information technology
services

R E AR SRS

Partnership owned by Mr. CHING
Chi Fai, Mr. YEUNG Tin Loi and
Mr. CHING Chi Keung

HIZEIESEE BRREER
BERTEMEBNEREE

Associated company of the Group

Joint venture of the Group

REBHA

U>

EEE

Ji]
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FEMBHRRME (F)

35 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 35 BEA RSB @)
(a) Significant related party transactions (a) EXRBEBARS (@)
(Continued)
In addition to those disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated RN E MG HREREME D FKE
financial statements, the Group had the following significant BN NEBEEBEH T HETHERXR
transactions with related parties: R :
2020 2019
—EB-EF —E-NEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
(i) Sales of goods () EEE®
—to Quality Amenities — T"Quality Amenities
Supply (M) Sdn. Bhd. Supply (M) Sdn. Bhd. 7,318 18,379
— to iBridge Technology — TRIEERX 154 242
(i Purchase of goods (i) BEE M
— from iBridge Technology —BRETERE 200 165
(iii) Rental charged (i) BRSO ES
- by Ming Fai Plastic Industrial — BB R
Company BERNA 1,292 1,321

Sales of goods are transacted at prices mutually agreed
between the parties.

Purchases of goods are services are transacted at prices
mutually agreed between the parties.

The Group leased certain properties from Ming Fai Plastic
Industrial Company as one of its production bases in the PRC.
The transaction is carried out at prices agreed between the
parties.

HEEMDRTNN ZAERRE
MERETRS -

BEEmERBLRINT 2HE
HIHENERETRS °

AEBRPEEZEBEX A RERS
TYEEABERTRROER — @4
EEM - R Z IR ZHE
R EREBHET

PAEERZERERAR o —T_TEFRH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

GERBHERRME (F)

35 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b) Key management compensation

35 A XS @

(b) TEEBEAEME

2020 2019
-t —E-hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT

Basic salaries, housing allowances, ¥ - (580 - EfERL
other allowances and benefits-in-kind KIES BRI 9,041 10,452
Contributions to pension plans BIKEETEIR R 104 112
9,145 10,564

(c) Year end balances arising from sales and (c)

purchases of goods

HERBEEmMFRER

2020 2019
—ECEF —E-hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FET
Amounts due from FEUWTLA TN & 75 BB
— Quality Amenities Supply (M) — Quality Amenities Supply (M)
Sdn. Bhd. Sdn. Bhd.
(Note 13) (H1:£13) 2,969 5,046
— iBridge Technology (Note) - BIEE R (K 241 35
— Advance Medical Designs — Advance Medical Designs
(Hong Kong) Limited (Hong Kong) Limited 340 -

Note:

As at 31 December 2019, the balance represented the amount due
from iBridge Technology of approximately HK$35,000 arising from
sales of goods. The balance was unsecured in nature, interest-free and
denominated in RMB.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ReMBERME (F)

36 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT 36 ANFEEABRERE
OF THE COMPANY 5 E)
Balance sheet of the Company as at 31 December R-—EBE-_FEE+=-BA=+—H
2020 ZEAREEEEBER
2020 2019
—E-EHF —T—hF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
HiaE THET FAT
ASSETS BE
Non-current asset ERBEE )
Investment in a subsidiary R—EBARNKE 235,673 235,673
Total non-current asset kRBEELEE 235,673 235,673
Current assets REBEE
Other current assets HibmE&E 183 198
Other financial assets at LA AR 2
amortised cost Ht2mEE 79 73
Amounts due from subsidiaries AN NGRS E] 792,625 789,589
Amount due from a joint venture e —fEE & EFIE 38 38
Tax receivable FE U 7t 18 267 -
Cash and cash equivalents [ &Eﬁﬁﬁ{glﬁ S| 2,417 5,243
Total current assets REBEEEEE 795,609 795,141
Total assets EEHATE 1,031,282 1,030,814
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to the owners 7 A FEA A
of the Company FEHHE%’E
Share capital f& X 7,343 7,343
Shares held under the Scheme ;.ﬂ'iIJT?—;ﬁZHx{ (6,051) (6,051)
Share premium & mE 613,261 613,261
Other reserves H b fE A 406,001 407,602
Total equity R 1,020,554 1,022,155
LIABILITIES =R
Current liabilities REBEE
Accruals and other payables fEst B A HJ‘MEH RIH 1,064 767
Amounts due to subsidiaries JEASHBT B A B 9,489 7,560
Tax payable FESFIE - 146
Dividends payable FERT IR S 175 186
Total current liabilities REBaEaE 10,728 8,659
Total liabilities EEH8E 10,728 8,659
Total equity and liabilities HWEZREE 1,031,282 1,030,814

The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board of
Directors on 25 March 2021 and was signed on its behalf.

CHING Chi Fai
Director

EFE

AABEERBBERNZ

T-—F=H

AR EEERHETHATEEN

REE -

CHING Tsun Wah
TR

Director
EE
BRIERBRIERR AR A o

BT E



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ReMBERRME (K)

36 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT

OF THE COMPANY (continued) BB (m
Note A: Reserve movement of the Company for MEA: BE-_FT_FF1+=
the year ended 31 December 2020 A :%j — El It EFEER
NCIRERCE
Merger  Share-based
reserve compensation Retained
(Note) reserves earnings Total
aftEE  AROXAH N
(Hrit) MemsE REEF @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THL T THT
Balance at 1 January 2019 RZB-NF-R—Bz&&H 224,147 31,512 148,793 404,452
Comprehensive income 2EbE
Profit for the year NEEHF - - 50,534 50,534
Total comprehensive income ZHERREE - - 50,534 50,534
Final dividend relating to 2018 ZE-\FEZRBRE - - (36,442) (36,442)
Interim dividend relating to 2019 —E-NFEZHRHERE - - (10,942) (10,942)
Exercise of share options TEERE - (3,192) 3,192 -
Lapse of share options BRELRY - (423) 423 -
Balance at R-ZEB-NE
31 December 2019 T-A=t-Rz&& 224,147 27,897 155,558 407,602
Balance at 1 January 2020 R-Z-ZE%
—A-B2&&H% 224,147 27,897 155,558 407,602
Comprehensive income 2EE
Profit for the year KERER - - 27,524 27,524
Total comprehensive income 2EKREE - - 27,524 27,524
Final dividend relating to 2019 “E-NFEZREBRE - - (21,865) (21,865)
Interim dividend relating to 2020 “ETFEZHRHRE - - (7,260) (7.260)
Balance at R-Z-EH§
31 December 2020 tZRA=t+-B2&H 224,147 27,897 153,957 406,001
Representing: R
Reserves 1?%‘ 1% 394,987
Final dividend proposed ERERE 11,014
Balance at R-BZEF
31 December 2020 TZR=+-B2&& 406,001
Note: /fﬁg .

AEENGHFREBERMNEARNREKRAE R
BAEELMBERARNR _—_Z2LFAHITE
ERVBERBRAA HEIHEME NN
mERERE -

Merger reserve of the Group represents the difference between the cost of
investment in subsidiaries and nominal value of the share capital and share
premium of the subsidiaries in 2007 arising from the application of merger
accounting in consolidating the financial information of the affected entities.

146 Ming Fai International Holdings Limited e Annual Report 2020



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ReMBERME (F)

37 DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 37 EBERFETHRAEBZHME
EMOLUMENTS
The aggregate amounts of emoluments paid/payable to Directors of REBMEN  EBREAAREZSHHE 4
the Company by the Group are as follows: BEUR ¢
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET T
Fees we 1,350 1,350
Basic salaries, housing allowances, other ¥ - (T £ - EfhERL
allowances and benefits-in-kind FIES BRI 8,441 9,852
Contributions to pension plans RIREET AR 104 112
9,895 11,314
The emoluments of each Director and chief executive of the HE_Z-_ZF+_A=t+—HILFE"
Company for the year ended 31 December 2020 are as follows: RAFBBERFETHRAENMSAT
Employer's
contribution to
Share-based  a retirement
Discretionary payment benefit
Name of Directors Fees Salary bonuses expense scheme Total

MRS EEREK
XfH BAEED

ESng we Ei BERa Bx #3% ag
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TRR TR TR TR TRR TR

Executive Directors (Note (i)  HI{TES (#22())

Mr. CHING Chi Fai BEBERAE 120 1,258 720 - 18 2,116
Mr. CHING Chi Keung BEaEE 120 761 526 - 18 1,425
Mr. LIU Zigang Bl FRIEE 120 912 735 - 2 1,799
Mr. CHING Tsun Wah BEEEE 120 762 676 - 18 1,576
Mr. KEUNG Kwok Hung ZEELE 120 1,363 728 - 18 2,229

Independent Non-Executive BUFHTES

Directors

Mr. HUNG Kam Hung Allan Aeds 150 - - _ _ 150
Mr. MA Chun Fung Horace BiRELE 150 - - - - 150
Mr. NG Bo Kwong RERAE 150 - - - - 150
Mr. SUN Yung Tson Eric A 150 - - - _ 150
Non-Executive Director FHTES

Ms. CHAN Yim Ching R&BEL+ 150 - - - - 150
Total 2% 1,350 5,056 3,385 - 104 9,895
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ReMBERRME (K)

37 DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 37 EBERFETHRAEBZHME
EMOLUMENTS (continued) (%)

The emoluments of each Director and chief executive of the HE_Z-—hF+_A=+—RHBLLFE -

Company for the year ended 31 December 2019 are as follows: RAFBBERFETHAENMSAT
Employer's
Share-based  contribution to
Discretionary payment a retirement

Name of Directors Fees Salary bonuses expense  benefit scheme Total

By EERERR
ffH) EAEHEI

EEiA [l i BBiEa 53 3578 it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
TR TR T8 TR TR TR

Executive Directors (Note (i)  H{TES (#22())

Mr. CHING Chi Fai 2EBRAE 120 1,304 1,150 - 18 2,592
Mr. CHING Chi Keung BEart 120 790 710 - 18 1,638
Mr. LIU Zigang BlFRIEE 120 948 968 - 40 2,076
Mr. CHING Tsun Wah BEEEE 120 790 718 - 18 1,646
Mr. KEUNG Kwok Hung ZHERE 120 1,411 1,063 - 18 2,612

Independent Non-Executive BUFHTES

Directors
Mr. HUNG Kam Hung Allan HEEE 150 - - - - 150
Mr. MA Chun Fung Horace BiREEE 150 - - - - 150
Mr. NG Bo Kwong REAEE 150 - - - - 150
Mr. SUN Yung Tson Eric FepLE 150 - - - - 150
Non-Executive Director FHTES
Ms. CHAN Yim Ching BREERL 150 - - - - 150
Total ek 1,350 5,243 4,609 - 112 11,314
Note: Biat -
(i) The role of chief executive officer has been performed collectively by all (i) THREHZBEHEEZEBHNTES (25
the Executive Directors, including the Chairman of the Company. AARERFE) KRBT °

148 Ming Fai International Holdings Limited e Annual Report 2020



ANNGAN.

o 4P B P BAA PR 8]

Ming Fai International Holdings Limited



	COVER
	CONTENTS
	CORPORATE INFORMATION
	HIGHLIGHTS FOR THE YEAR 2020
	FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY
	KEY SHAREHOLDER VALUE INDICES
	CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
	MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
	BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
	DIRECTORS’ REPORT
	CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
	INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
	CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
	NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
	BACK COVER

